CITY OF ELKO

P I ann I n g Department Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov

1751 College Avenue - Elko,Nevada89801 - (775)777-7160 - Fax(775)777-7219

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

The City of Elko Planning Commission will meet in a special session on Thursday, September 6,
2018 in the Council Chambers at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and
beginning at 5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T.

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Commission. In accordance with
NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda were posted on the City of Elko Website at
http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada’s Public Notice Website at https://notice.nv.gov,
and in the following locations:

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE- 571 Idaho Street, Street, Elko, NV 89801

Date/Time Posted:  August 31, 2018 2:10 p.m.
ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY - 720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801

Date/Time Posted: August 31. 2018 2:05 p.m.
ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT- 1448 Silver Street, Elko NV 89801

Date/Time Posted: August 31. 2018 2:15 p.m.
ELKO CITY HALL- 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801

Date/Time Posted:  August 31. 2018 2:00 p.m.

Posted by: Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician %W\QA N‘l/l,()%
Name Title Slgnature

The public may contact Shelby Archuleta by phone at (775) 777-7160 or by email at
sarchuleta@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The
agenda and supporting material is also available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko,
NV.
Dated this 31°' day of August, 2018.

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the
meeting are requested to notif'y the City of Elko Planning Department, 1751 College Avenue, Elko,

Nevada, 89801 or by calling (775) 777-7160. =
( (Ltlm/ Z(LLL(’K \

Cathy Lapghlin, City Planner




CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA
5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2018
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER
The Agenda for this meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission has been properly posted
for this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements.

ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
August 7, 2018 — Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
I. NEW BUSINESS
A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 9-18, filed by Moises
Luna for a reduction of the required interior side yard setback from 5 1/2’ to 0’ and
the required rear yard setback from 10’ to 0’ for an accessory building within an R
(Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the north side of Benti Way,
approximately 257" east of Spruce Road. (927 Benti Way - APN 001-621-015)

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Review, consideration and possible action on a transfer of Conditional Use Permit
No. 4-86 to new property owner, filed by Cristina Giammalva on behalf of Kathern
L. Stringfield, which would allow for a child care center and a preschool within a R
(Single-Family and Multi-Family) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The location of said property is generally on the northwest corner of the intersection
of 2" Street and Sewell Drive. (1737 Sewell Drive — APN 001-640-035).



2. Review, consideration, and possible action and possible approval of Final Plat No.
11-18, filed by Parrado Partners, LP, for the development of a subdivision entitled
Great Basin Estates Phase 3 involving the proposed division of approximately 9.65
acres divided into 38 lots for residential development within the R (Single Family
and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally at the extension of Village Parkway and
Opal Drive. (001-633-030).

II. REPORTS

A

B.

&

G.

Summary of City Council Actions.

Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.
Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

Preliminary agendas for Planning Commission meetings.
Elko County Agendas and Minutes.

Planning Commission evaluation. General discussion pertaining to motions, findings, and
other items related to meeting procedures.

Staft.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda

and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

Respectfully submitted,

(Zlf) (Z‘LLL ltk,
(éathy ll(;lyg/hliu
ity Planner



CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
S:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, AUGUST 7, 2018
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

David Freistroffer, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commi
order at 5:30 p.m.

called the meeting to

ROLL CALL

Present: David Freistroffer
Evi Buell
Ian Montgomery
Jeff Dailing

John Anderson
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman

City Staff:  Curtis Calder, City Manag

Scott Wllkmson, Assistant
Cathy Laughli

Chairman David Fel r explained the procedure to Mr. Gurr.
APPROVAL OF MITES

June 5, 2018 — Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
***Motion: Approve the minutes from June 5, 2018.

Moved by Jeff Dailing, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed. (40, Commissioners Buell, Hooiman, and Montgomery abstained )

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 17



July 9, 2018 — Special Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
***Motion: Approve the July 9, 2018 Minutes.
Moved by Jeff Dalling, Seconded by Evi Buell.
*Motion passed. (4-0, Commissioners Montgomery, Beck, and Anderson abstained )

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Va filed by
HCPI/UTAH, LLC for a reduction of the regiiee interior lot line,
from 27’ to 0’ on the Northwest, 29’ to 54° 0. 3’ on the

from 35% to 73%, w1th1n a PQP (Publi !
conjunction with a zone change appllcatlon atid iattersrelated therefo. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is locate
approximately 205° south of
005)

Golf Course Drive,
Drive - APN 001-200-

Bob Morley, 640 Idaho | A ,  ltem wasted from the July meeting,

jor some 1mprovements staff discovered that
taff suggested that those properties be

uvite grierous. In order to get the buildings, as they exist, in
ariance applications were submitted to reduce the setbacks.

which was approved h ' lanning Commission and the City Council. Ms. Laughlinwent over
the City of Elko Staff R€port Dated June 25, 2018. Staff recommended approval subject to the
facts, findings, and conditions in the staff report. Parcel Map 3-18 was needed because when
they surveyed the property in order to provide applications for the rezone and the variance, there
were some errors found in the previous mapping of the property. Mr. Morley has done a parcel
map to modify the boundary of the surgical center parcel to accommeodate the errors that were
found. The Parcel Map has been approved, but has not been recorded yet.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer recommended approval as noted by staff.

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, recommended approval.

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 17



Curtis Calder, City Manager, recommended approval.

***Motion: Conditionally approve Variance No. 7-18 subject to the conditions in the City
of Elko Staff Report dated June 25, 2018, listed as follows:

1. Approval of Rezone 5-18.
2. Parcel map 3-18 is to be approved, recorded and all conditions satisfied.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support her recommendation wagithe proposed variance
approval is in conformance with the Land Use Component of thé M astér Plan. The
property is not located within the Redevelopment Area and eratlon of the plan is not
required. The property is a lot with interior property line des, and no common

: qulrements for the

percent of the net site area lot coverage Approv
approval of Rezone 5-18 will bring the proper

[ practical difficulty is directly
the existing use of the property

zoned for the developed use of the property. The exc
related to the fact that the property is improperly zon
and the variance is required to legally*

setbacks stipulated in the proposed zo of a fully developed
property with several legal non-conformig ise of the property as a
Public/Quasi-Public use is limited in extent ¢ tircumstance does not

generally apply to other prties i & entified issue is restricted to a

er area ofthe community. The granting of
pr prejudice to other properties in the
dress a fully developed property with

e of the property as a Public/Quasi-

small number of prop

vicinity. The appli¢ant;
several legal non- conf orn

Public use. The ance to develop or expand the use of the
property witiance is directly related to an improperly zoned property
and wi posg of the zoning and will not change the use of the
lan rty is fully developed with several legal non-
conform ¢ uses0f the property as a Public/Quasi-Public use and the
granting o 3

Moved by Evi Buel ed by Jeff Dalling.

*Motion passed unanimously. (74)

II. NEW BUSINESS

A. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 17



1. Review, consideration, and possible initiation to amend Title 3, Chapter 3, of the
Elko City Code entitled “Subdivisions®, with the repeal and replacement of the
chapter, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Ms. Laughlin explained that this item was an initiation of a repeal and replace of The Title 3,
Chapter 3, which is currently titled Subdivisions. Keep in mind that this is initiation and that in
the past initiations have been brought to the Planning Commission many times before they were
sent to City Council. It does not mean this item will be set for a public hearing. The 5" Street
District was brought back to the Planning Commission five or six times for initiation before it
was set for a public hearing. Developers, Engineers, and Contractors, st#ff would like you to
understand that with this full title replacement and repeal that it is iggpOrtantthat we start
somewhere and we had to get something in writing. It was most jfapostant to have legal review

is not set in ink.
uld get input. It

ad legal review. Wei
&g rev151ons that

usékeeping polity, cleanmg up
f code, so it is important that

Laughlin reiterated that this was a houseke nges that are proposed
are not radical changes. In the packet are a ¢ 3 . Thig first document is a track

e draft Ordinance is what we

. We started with the draft

inance what is bold and struck through is the
hesproposed Code changes. Because there

ents And the Planning Commission Chairman. It is a very

cause staff tries to work with Developers on what they need to
e Map. Stage 2 will now be called the Tentative Map, and used to
" There are several stages within the Tentative Map process. It gets
brought to the Plannifg mission for consideration, as well as City Council. Once the
Preliminary Plat is apeﬁved the final stage is the Final Plat. At the same time as the Final Plat
the Civil Improvement Plans, or Construction Documents, are considered. There is also a
Performance Agreement and a Performance Guarantee. This is all in the Code as it is. Ms.
Laughlin then showed a slide of the proposed changes to the Subdivision Process. Previously,
staff only had 21 days prior to Planning Commission meeting to review the applications. NRS
allows up to 60 days prior to the Planning Commissioner. Staff is proposing 45 days for review
prior to the Planning Commission Meeting. Fourteen days prior to the Planning Commission
Meeting Preliminary Plat legal notifications have to go out to the newspaper, so that does not
allow staff enough time to review the Plat and get changes if needed, which is why staff is asking
to extended that out to 45 days. That will give staff enough time to review the application to

the meetl 1
important

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 17



make sure the application is complete and the Map has everything that is needed for the Planning
Commission’s review. Another proposed change is for the same section for the Final Plat, to
extend from 21 days to 45 days prior to the Planning Commission Meeting. A change in the title
is also proposed. She then wanted to go over the changes to the Table of Contents. On the left is
what is proposed and on the right is what is existing. The numbering has changed. The previous
Subdivision Code skipped some numbers, so now it will be in chronological and numerical
order. The title has been changed to ‘Divisions of Land’, which matches the NRS. She then went
over the proposed changes to the Table of Contents, included as Exhibit A. There has been some
misconception on a part of the performance guarantee. The next slide showed, on the left, the
Performance Guarantee as it is in the Code currently, and on the right 'hat is proposed. She
then explained the differences between the two. There is a lot of tal h

Workshop, which will be a joint effort between City Council
would like that to be held before the next Planning Commissi

This is a long part of the Code, an important part of the’ d itts fairly complex. It ties in
with a complex part of the Nevada Rev1sed Statutes He tho it would be beneficial for

is a work in progress. It is not intended to
working on it today, putting in new langua
in line with the NRS, which are not in the dr. _ i
is far enough along to start sussion. comment on the old Code, it is

c issues. If you look at the old code you’ll
asspack in the 70’s. Specific issues would
change like that over a long period of
don’t always jive, and you find ambiguities

tanton didn’t think the draft they had now was. There are still
cation. He thought it was a lot better than the old code. One of the

n the industry, or people who work in those departments, are familiar
with but they are not familiar to everyone else. They are trying to beef up the definition section
and get some clear and consistent definitions. That was one of the main areas of focus when all
the changes started to be made. Another area was incorporating corresponding provisions in the
NRS, Chapter 278. Mr. Stanton was still working on that. That was one of the focuses, to go
through this carefully and make sure that if it’s not consistent with NRS we make it consistent or
take it out, so that the NRS provision applies by default. Some terms are outdated, so those have
been taken out and updated with the new terms. The text of the code was reorganized to try to
make it chronological. He noticed that the grammar in the old code was not that great, so they
tried to make it grammatically correct. There are some issues that there will hopefully be some

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 17



discussion about that have to do with the practicality of going through the Subdivision Process.
Hopefully we hear from people who are going to be affected by this code. Hopefully we hear
some of the practical difficulties of the encounters, and come up with some resolutions and ways
to make it work for everyone. Mr. Stanton stated that his role was to make sure the changes were
clear, concise, consistent with the NRS, legal, and enforceable. Mr. Wilkinson and Ms. Laughlin
will be good resources in terms of the practical side of things from the staff’s point of view. One
key area that Mr. Stanton thought would be talked about more than other areas was the issue of
Performance Agreements and Performance Guarantees, and maybe Maintenance Guarantees.
Performance Guarantees are not required by law. The NRS does not require the City to have a
Performance Guarantee for improvements. If there is an Agreement to ifistall improvements, then
we may require a guarantee for the improvements. The term may s yotr can do it, but you
don’t have to. From the legal perspective there are some options have a Performance
Agreement you are requiring improvements in connection wi
require a performance guarantee. That leaves a few optiong ir

major option, would be, since it’s an agreement and it’s"a; fig cohtract, you cdn just sue them
and take them to court for not installing 1mprovements to t ity’s standards, he didn’t

: ’ 1ng, expensive, and
tes a lot of those issues.
been doing it. As sort of a
ing into, where

unpredictable process. Havmg a Performa
He thought that seemed like the best fit andhat’

Chairman Dav1d Frelstro : ed uld be a three minute time limit, per
person, for p 3

be a fire em to’drink in four days. When they say they rewrote the code,

- {ia’t get to you guys. They abandoned the old code. They had a

' Mr. Gurr stated that he read it three or four times and couldn’t

. y were trying to do. Simplify, clean-up, he agreed that there were
some issues. The bort ing is going to be a big item, on how you handle it and where you go
with it, especially if it ﬁot required under NRS. There are a lot of Cities in this state that don’t
require it, there are some that do, and they have different methods of handling it. The biggest
issue is this community and the housing side wasn’t contacted. They’ve had no input in this.
There is a regulation sitting there that is being revised every day. He thought the best way to go
with this was to table it, or move for initiation in another month and have a task force appointed
between the Council, the Planning Commission, and the development community. The task force
could sit down and go over the issues, so that everyone speaks the same language and know what
is being done. Once it’s cleaned up, and everyone understands where it’s going, then there
wouldn’t need to be a five hour meeting. When this comes to a meeting, not for initiation,
everyone has three to fifty minutes in their mind. They really wanted to have a task force

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 17



appointed. He thought it should be the full members of each board and have agendas, so that
everyone understands the process. And so that the Planning Commission and City Staff
understand what goes into developing in Elko, and understand why Elko is just about the hardest
place to do a development in Nevada. Staff is correct, they gave up to 60 days for Counties under
700,000. Mr. Gurr stated that he tried to tie NRS Chapter 278 into this document. Chapter 278
has definitions and they pulled most of those. Chapter 278, in the quotes that Mr. Gurr found,
included the whole Chapter 278. They would really appreciate either tabling the item tonight, so
that everyone understands what is going on, and/or even if it is tabled they want to have the task
force meeting. They want to have it after the holidays, and after September 1st.

oduct, which is houses for
ston understands the process

Jim Winer, 700 Idaho Street, stated that he was representing the en
sale and the clients that they represent. Just so the Planning Co
they are about to start, the decisions they are about make, the

have an appreciation of 3 to 5% a year. The statistic
Association of Realtors, state that the average sale

p es of lumbef are through
We are in a labor shortage of
merica. There are only a fist

full of builders and developers that choosé
from surrounding communities, because R : ;
usually where trades are drawn from. There dfg : ations that are going to make
it more cumbersome, red tap :

sing. There is already an issue with supply.
it.going to get better in the near future.

ays, all the way down to employment. The
ike, and the recommendations they will

bothered her t
when there were

lack of desire to involve the public. She couldn’t understand why,
ts for a workshop, there wasn’t one. There were builders upset
with the Building Def nt at times, and there were workshops with them. There were
workshops held with apyone that wanted a workshop. It was great to have public involvement.
When you have all these stakeholders in the room, and they are this upset, she thought it could
all be resolved with good communication, good working relationships, and listening to the
public. She didn’t think that was happening, and that is very disturbing. Her advice to the
Planning Commission, as a former elected official, was to listen to the public and let them be
involved. She highly suggested that a workshop be in order and be very organized and go
through things as they should be. She didn’t think it was good government.

Dusty Shipp, 959 Montrose Lane, wanted to run through the numbers with the Planning
Commission, in regards to the Performance Agreement. Right now the idea is that they are going

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 17



to do an Engineer’s Estimate base on prevailing wage, and based on that they are going to put up
cash or put up a bond on that. He has a subdivision he’s working on, it is 26 lots, and the
Engineer’s Estimate is $2.3 Million. If you divide that by 26 lots that is $91,000 per lot. The lot
value is probably about $90,000 in today’s market, and that doesn’t include the land costs, bond
costs, interest on money, selling, or insurance. It is really about double what it should be. The
way the Agreement is going to work is he will put up the cash, or bond, and he will be paying on
that twice, because it needs to be half what that is. This specific subdivision is not tied to another
subdivision, it is a loop. If he decides to never do it, or not finish, Mr. Shipp didn’t see a lot of
impact on the City if he didn’t follow through. The idea of being able to pay for the development
as he goes, out of his pocket and not have to put up the bond, would make. it more doable. If
there was going to be a Workshop he thought it was going to need Ste than just a half day
meeting. It’s going to need to be several meetings, extended, an f conversation and ideas
to make this work.

Marcey Logsden, 625 W. Birch Street, said the changes
surprise to many of us here. She stated that she was
but when she had the chance to read though this, i

] =*She understdod the need to
get the ball rolling, that this is something that needs to get 'S so we can get organized, but
stake. She talked to the key

players in the game. This ordinance input
have actually been putting millions of doll
her as a private citizen. Input was taken, per
State. She asked Mr. Wilkinsen. to talkgp the developers that actually

r. That wagalso disturbing to her. She

d up a bunch of things for Ms. Logsden. Ms.
tedethere has been no catastrophic impact of

ere. There is no urgency here. There are no

[ko. They have the opportunity to utilize the

taking it very serioust ause it is a big deal that doesn’t only affect the development
community, but the cogtmunity as a whole. As he studied this quite a bit, he appreciated Dave
Stanton’s comments about some of the language in the current code. Some of it is not clear, and
could be clarified, so everyone could have a better understanding. Also, being a land owner, he
appreciated any City’s concern about taking ownership of property. Once a Final Map is
recorded the City is taking possession of improvements, so you want to be 100% sure you’re not
getting stuck with something. There can be some things clarified in code that will help with that.
The Performance bond is a big deal. As proposed it is a very expensive undertaking, which is
only going to make the cost of supplying lots and homes even more expensive. There is no way
to get around interest and bond expense. Other Cities are doing performance bonds, generally
speaking, and he had studied this extensively. Reno, for example, Performance Bonds are

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 17



common there, but because the developers want to do them because they have huge phases and
they want to be selling lots at the beginning of the phase, before they get to the end of the phase.
This is a different situation here. He also studied NRS, Chapter 278, Section 380 and 371. They
both clearly state that developers have the option of either completing the improvements prior to
the final map being recorded, or some type of performance guarantee to do that if they are not
complete. He thought it was good that the code is being looked at, and that it can be clarified.
Another thing that is very important is consistency. They want to be sure everything is being
applied consistently. He asked that there be a workshop. He thought this was a big deal and that
it should be further vetted before any action was taken.

Ms. Laughlin wanted to address some of the public comments. She
understand that the word initiation, is exactly what that is, it’s inj
to get through the zoning ordinance for 5 Street. It took five_

Recall how long it took
ths of workshop
bped, until it got to a

“process of getting public

. There is no sense in tabling
ness exactly how you see it
it was started with legal

the item, because if it is tabled it will cor
today. Staff agrees with the consistency a
counsel doing so much work in this code,

through all of the materia ) i stions, to forward those to Ms. Laughlin.
Yesterday eveni

itand t ‘ : ded to the City Attorney.

thought they w4 ent to get improved and evolve, as it moves forward. Tabling the
item locks it in. H&j at they wanted to do was to have new drafts be presented, that are
taking the comments; , and new changes into consideration. He thought that was the way

the document review pracess should work. If there is a task force and a workshop there will be a

whole bunch of other things that will go to it. Procedurally, tabling it will not accomplish that.

Mr. Thibault stated that he had read through the document and any comments he had were
included. One thing about some of the comments from the public. There were some concerns
raised about additional costs that are being created by this change. Mr. Thibault was curious
where exactly those were. He knew there were costs involved with the Performance Guarantee.
As stated that is already in the Code. Some specific statements about what changes in the code
are adding costs is what Mr. Thibault would be curious to hear.

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 17



Mr. Holmes had no comments.

Mr. Calder had some general comments. The City Council, from time to time, decides to change
code. A lot of the time it is not Planning and Zoning Code, it’s unrelated. Right now we are
going through a Traffic Code Amendment, so the Planning Commission wouldn’t be involved,
which is an additional level of public involvement. When we go through an ordinance change to
change code, so everyone understands how that works, we ask the City Council to initiate a code
change. Once they say go ahead and bring back a proposed draft, it goes through a 1* reading
process, which isn’t a formal public hearing but public comment is always taken at the City
Council meeting. Based on the public comment, if there are going to bgihanges to the proposed
code it would have to come back for another 1% reading before it’s ggdy 10°go to a 2™ reading,
and then gets adopted. That is the process to change City Code. the Planning and Zoning
Code there’s an additional level of involvement in the public

lan ing Commig$sion members,
ill be some logistics involved in
that. He heard some comments that may
that’s what the public would like to see, 1
pressing rush to hold a workshop, so if it tak i } ¢ and the Planning
Commission to digest this, we can shoot for & etime+after Labor Day. In the end
what we want to see is an impii \
ordinance will be, whic

-_ he Policysfs set it will be Staff’s job to
implement that Polic '

he Pollcy issues have to be debated in

Mr. Stanton &gt i S jus a draft document to start talking about it. When it gets up
to the City Cou will be a 1% reading, and if there are a lot of changes after the 1*

reading and that’s w
sends it on to the City ¢

Chairman Freistroffer wanted to clarify that they had a zoning change on N, 5% Street, which
was a mixed business residential zone, and that rather small change took about 5 months at the
Planning Commission level before they sent it to the City Council. 1t was up for public hearings
every month for five months. This is the process by which they start doing those sort of things.

Commission Buell said this is where they start getting input and making the document better.

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 17



Chairman Freistroffer had a few wording questions. The first one is probably just a
modernization of wording, and also goes to procedure for when they approve things or don’t
approve them. Throughout, when it talks about approval of a map, for example, instead of using
approve or not approve, it is using approve or disapprove. He wondered how that worked with
formulating motions.

Mr. Stanton thought that archaic language came from some language from the NRS. There is an
example in NRS 278.349 (2).

Chairman Freistroffer asked if it was synonymous with not approve. 1{l
something, then they disapprove it.

don’t approve

Mr. Stanton said that was a procedural question, sometlme thig
it dies, and sometimes there is an affirmative decision to
two as being synonymous.

{,not approved because

Chairman Freistroffer asked if the Planning Commg
make motions to disapprove things because of thé

because he wasn’t sure, so that means otl 2that is the case then that should

go in there.

Mr. Wilkinson mentioned with a subdivision [anning y!nssion disapproves it they
have to present findings justifyi ] and then to the City Council. In
that case the Planning C g action te*disapprove it for whatever reasons
Chairman Freistrofft it findings to explain to the developer
and to direct staff to exp

Mr. Stant ig they could put in the definitions section. The NRS doesn’t
really oe that appears in the statutes and they are expecting
the lgf

Chairman F ith Mr. Wilkinson. He thought it was at least partially addressed.

in’s presentation she presented a side by side of new code and old
code for the Parfo
liked how staff tried
were included.

nize how the changes were made in the different documents that

Ms. Laughlin explained that was the draft ordinance and all the deletions have to be bold and
struck through and everything that is being added has to be bold and underlined. An ordinance
isn’t the track change document that was provided, that is very difficult to read, which was why
the draft ordinance was provided.

Chairman Freistroffer said in the packet on Page 82 G(1)(d) was one of the sections.

Commissioner Dalling suggested they go over all questions in the workshop.

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 11 of 17



Chairman Freistroffer wanted to go over prevailing wages and local rates. He thought that was
where one of the major concerns was coming from. That makes the performance guarantee twice
as expensive. He needed a clarification between prevailing wages and local rates.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that under the NRS if the City is required to undertake work, and it’s
subject to prevailing wage, that would be the rate at which the City would incur if it had to
complete the work. What is proposed is to address that. Typically we look at the local rates. The
City bids a variety of projects over the course of a year and most of those are based on prevailing
rates. If you had sidewalk and the engineer estimated that their cost wg /sq. yd. and we look
at what the City has had to pay under contracts and its $4, the City 1djust that rate up to
$4. There is a potential impact for that bond to be higher initiall hen the reimbursement, if
you had a reduction in the bond over time, or the deposit of s _
it in accordance with those rates. There is just the beginning pe, i here they might
have an initial higher cost, but eventually that bond is bgi ( (

Chairman Freistroffer said he understood the prev
local rates fit into that.

16w the

prevailing rate would have you paying a
because that’s what the City would end up p

Chairman Freistroffer aske

; t rates that are tracked are reflective of the

prevailing rates on & va I jobs. e clarified to say ‘and/or’, or ‘or the local
rates’. What we want to d appropriate security. The City has incurred
expense in thg :
sk ost communities that Mr. Wilkinson has looked at, under
their ¢ i 1 yed by the Jurisdictional Authority, or the City Staff,

questions or comme e City Planner, so that we can take a look at that and be that much

further along.

Commissioner Stefan Beck asked if the Planning Commission tabled the item if it would have
any effect on the timeline of the general philosophy that Ms. Laughlin has mentioned, that we
have to start somewhere. He thought it wouldn’t affect anything at all until the next meeting.

Mr. Stanton explained that tabling it would stop it in its tracks. What you have right now is the
agenda item and the agenda packet before you, and if you table it that would be what you would
have at the next meeting. He thought they were talking about making this document evolve,
making changes that would take into account comments from all different sources, and making

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 12 of 17



revisions and have another version of this document to take to a workshop. He recommended
against tabling this particular item. It would make more sense to just move forward, take in more
public input, and have a living document.

Commissioner Beck was wrestling with, as an oversite committee member, the purpose of a
government is to serve the people. He was hearing the public saying that they didn’t know what
was going on, they are confused, they are drinking out of a fire hose, they’ve been blindsided,
and there is a lot of concern on their part. What he was hearing was that they wanted to table this
and put it off. He asked if there was a way that the public could be satisfied that their concerns
are being heard, that there will be plenty of opportunity for them to hay ut, and to be
satisfied without tabling it. He asked if there was a way to get an ive summary on what the
path and procedures are. He stated that he was a little confused. nain argument was that
when he looked out at the public and they’re hesitant and uns, going on, that is not a
' on from his point of

through the 13" to have a workshop. He d
them from building the document before i is g to be revisions and
changes keeping going with it, bring it back i , They are having their first
second meeting Thursday afte t1t pretty closely. It’s not going
ould stop anything,

Ms. Laughlin explaihe

ets tabled, using the word table, would
leave the document as it i

Mr. Gurr said they shd look at the middle of September for the workshop.

Commissioner Buell asked if there was a countdown clock to get this finished. (No)

Catherine Wines, 421 Railroad Street, explained that she was an architect, but she was coming to
the Planning Commission as a citizen. The construction public, real estate agents, engineers,
architects, and developers are asking to slow down. She appreciated everyone’s comments. As
the public they were asking to get caught up. She only became aware of this four days ago, and
didn’t have time to go through it because there is so much development going on. Elko is not
going to stop if this is put off for a month. There was no one in the room that Ms. Wines was not

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 13 of 17



familiar with and she thought that was what was nice about living in a small town. She thought
they all appreciated that. This disconnect between the public and government, why would we
want this? Why not just give the public a chance to catch up.

Ms. Logsden said from someone who has to be fiscally responsible in her everyday life. She
thought that it was the Planning Commission’s responsibility to be fiscally responsible here as
well. If this item is not tabled tonight, changes will be made every day, billable hours will be
going to the City Attorney that the tax payers have to pay, and Ms. Logsden wasn’t ok with that.
If it gets tabled it stops random emails to the City Planner. Changes made on a daily basis can
cause quite a mess. Please table this tonight, and have the much need yrkshop, and come
together with everybody’s recommendation.

Commissioner Dalling wanted to propose keeping it going an
everyone and the building public. He wanted to keep that
have the public workshop. That doesn’t mean they are p

blic workshop with

ed to come in and gi
% of time, movi

wouldn’t be done until after the holiday. That woy
digest it and to get questions in to Ms. Laughlin.

Commissioner Buell thought one of the keys was that the g Commission’s duty was to
safeguard the interest of the City, but at this ; he public. She stated that she
had never built, or sold a home. The Plan: hc S 1nput She d1dn 1

ext year. Commissioner Buell
#would r ot vote to recommend
sion was sure that the public’s concerns had

Commission: to initiate a conversation

Comm g Commission’s job was to protect and safeguard the
publi aring, after all the debate, that there was still
uncertain sconnect. He thought to regain a good faith relationship,
his recomm an executive summary put together to clarify what is being
done and why ble the item, because that’s what the public wanted

Mr. Calder said just jeryone knows, during this period of looking at this ordinance,
considering changes, up until the final option, the current Code, as it is written today, applies
and will be enforced as it is written. If there are developers out in the audience that are concerned
about Performance Guarantees, nothing changes until the Code changes. Mr. Calder stated that
he didn’t care how long this took, but a developer who had a concern about a Performance
Guarantee, who may want the Council to change the current code, may have some concerns if
this drags out and they are in the process of starting a subdivision.

Chairman Freistroffer clarified that Performance Guarantees were currently required under Code.

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 14 of 17



***Motion: Initiate an amendment to Title 3, Chapter 3 of the Elko City Code, known as
Subdivisions, repealing and replacing the Chapter, and direct staff to get together a
workshop, which would include the City Council, Planning Commission, and the public.
Moved by Jeff Dalling, Seconded by Evi Buell.

*Motion passed (6-1 Commissioner Beck voted no).

Commissioner Dalling clarified that they didn’t initiate changes. Now they want to include the
public. He thought that was the right step for the public and the Planni ommission.

Commissioner Tera Hooiman expressed that in her opinion initi id not approve what had

been done. It keeps it moving forward.

regular
ROSSIBLE

2. Review, consideration, and possible action
Planning Commission Meetings, and ma
ACTION

onimissioners. Fe has been on
the Planning Commission several years. He can’t make the*iings work in the future. He

explained that he needed to teach evening "t work for him at work. His
evening classes have to be Tuesday and
out of those early once a month to make it
make the 5:30 p.m. meetings anymore for th

30 p.m., would there be an issue or an open
meeting law violatién. we have a quorum to start the meeting

at 5:30 p.m., and as long

in the same situation.
Commissioner lan Montgomery said it didn’t matter to him.

Commissioner Beck said it didn’t matter to him.

Commissioner Hooiman said she couldn’t to 6:30 p.m.

***Motion: Keep the Planning Commission meeting times at 5:30 p.m.

Moved by Jeff Dailing, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 15 of 17



*Motion passed. (6-0, Chairman Freistrof fer abstained from the vote)

III. REPORTS

A.

Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that at the July 24" City Council Meeting, they approved the
Rezone for VFW, Elko Clinic, and Surgical Center, the Rev le Permit for VFW was
approved, the Final Plat for Riverside Villas was approved, Pacation for Humboldt
Hills was approved; and the Preliminary Plat for Humbol@t Hills was approved.

Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.
Professional articles, publications, etc.
1. Zoning Bulletin

Preliminary agendas for Planning
Ms. Laughlin reported that the

Special meeting. It got pushed to
deadline for applications is August 1

Commissioner Montgomery said that's why they started with initiation, was so that they
could understand their comments, listen to them, and make note of them, and get to work
on this.

Mr. Wilkinson thought they were taking the right action to accommodate the public input.

Chairman Freistro ffer thought they took the action to get more public input.

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 16 of 17



Ms. Laughlin ex plained that once all changes are made that are wanted, and we come to
a final agreement, then we set it for a public hearing at a Planning Commission meeting,
which is when they would make a recommendation to City Council.
G. Staff.
COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

David Freistroffer, Chairman , Secretary

August 7, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 17 of 17



Agenda Item # 1.A.1

9.

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet

Review, consideration and possible action on Variance No. 9-18, filed by Moises
Luna for a reduction of the required interior side yard setback from 5 !4’ to (0’ and
the required rear yard setback from 10’ to 0’ for an accessory building, within an R
(Single Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: September 6, 2018

Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS,

Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: The applicant has requested a variance to allow him to
build an accessory building within the interior side yard and rear yard setbacks.

Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report
Recommended Motion:

If denied, based on facts and findings presented in the Staff Report dated August 23,
2018

If approved, recommend conditional approval based on facts, findings and
conditions presented in the Staff Report dated August 23, 2018

Findings: See Staff Report dated August 23, 2018

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

11. Agenda Distribution: Moises Luna

927 Benti Way
Elko, NV 89801

Created on 8/24/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet



Z20\4- 1235
CITY COPY

i =N OEPT
- afef 14 4 RECEIVED
LA B *\\)x Gt st
R APR 03 2014
Ll SR Yo 62 52..’} C f E“
. 56.10 2 ity o ¢
- P)},-FSSW" Péj ‘J”# i / £0.G0" 545. Building Department
r aad
YA T ;ﬁ
\[4[\/6 3 yut) U’"‘f eF—1~ N
o ’
"a/ﬁ’ st > '-—& P 5;: g . 5
: gl 3 >0
g gz.o( '1‘ ™4 U P ; ?Zj
¥ ‘;‘} T 2L = =
l = S 8 13
! B n e - E
f /—/ ' g a:.t.‘ ‘_ [ E
| | 3% 3
* FF = 59.75 j 2%
E | FG = 59.25 A 8 e
g 1 : o &
e N o)1 . o= i
2 ) P
A =1y : 5 iz r m ay
20 = Plan 2131 . ' = ¢ iz
0@ A Elev. C =2 LEE
22 Ca 3 S= Jr gRt
Z0 ’—é’ 3-Car . SO o B
ZQﬂ * P4 _7" C.’.', X q 7
X ' SES
38 W < | |
< .0 © e 1
E: § "‘i— !i 41"71_7’ L
5 P g BT - PRt
g o«é’ ';é ¥ S i :I g it \\(b _\ < \J" I“
2 5 & Ll N | /ALY WL
B Bape  § L S g £ f
' i 197 SN X T
TE!?:&. : LarT 1s ® wﬁ'\Lj

RICCEIVED
AUG 13 2018
BUIL BING FaD
e X A
IARTISAMCOMMUNITIESLLL ' REQUIRE DSETBACKS
ARTISANCOHRUN 8 MILE ESTATES
\RENO, NEVADA 89521 PLAN INFO: 2191C, 3 BEDROOM, 2 1/2 BATH, 3 CAR GARAGE| ,, (% Fi% oRr)

ADDRESS: G627 BENTI WAY EXTIOR SIDE: 15
ELKO, NV RERR: 20 !

(775) 742-8202
APN: 001-621-015 | |

'iFAX {775} 355-5702




STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: q /(.0

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** '

Tide: _\ariance. 9-12
applicant(s): _YYlpises_Luno
Site Location: _ 427 Benti - APALOOL- b 21-015

Current Zoning: & Date Recelved: _% M& Date Public Notice: _8 122 L 8_
coMMENT: _Thig_is.tn_allaw for o rdiction of _rigired
tevior Side vond_Set mm_fmm_é 2" 40 0" ond e veay
Aj@m etrocy. Dom. 10 4p 0.

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Assistant City Manager: Date: 3/ 24/ '8
Recommend Ve P L. pevuer— M i /M/d/z,uﬂl;,_

/%//w’é/ftﬁj (///1(/7 Va7 &?fé’l/ te /%/ ﬂ/’/’ // calpmn
7 A

SH

Initial

City Manager: Date: 7/2 q/lg
it e :g.!_\gzgs;si_upmA_MEE_&&Q;;::_EAAM&&

e

Initial




X City of Elko
x 1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160
FAX (775) 777-7119

’(;*

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: August 23, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: September 6, 2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: l.A.1
APPLICATION NUMBER: Variance 9-18
APPLICANT: MoisesLuna
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 927 Benti Way, Elko

A Variancerequest to reduce:
1. Allow accessory building to remain within the existing side and rear yard setbacks
by reducing the side yard setback to 0” and the rear yard setback to 0” for the
accessory structure

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND DENIAL, subject to findings of fact.

Page 1 of 8



VAR 9-18
Moises Luna
APN: 001-621-015

PROJECT INFORMATION
PARCEL NUMBER: 001-621-015

PARCEL SIZE: 6,600 sg. ft.
EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential
MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residentia Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Residential
BACKGROUND:

The applicant is the property owner.

The property isfully developed as a residentia land use.

The area proposed for variance fronts Benti Way and the rear property line abuts the
Peace Park.

The property was developed in approximately 2014.

Thelot areais approximately 6,600 square feet and meets the area requirements

stipulated in code.

The property, as developed, is built to the maximum extent of the parameters outside of

setback requirements.

8. The parcel was created with 8 Mile Estates Subdivision Final Map, file number 682116,
recorded with Elko County Recorder on December 18, 2013

9. 8 Mile Estates Subdivision Final Map states easements along street frontage of 7.5” and
side lines of 5” for Mr. Luna’s parcel. There are no rear easements on Mr. Luna’s
property as shown on file number 682116. There is a 15° slope and drainage easement
located on the Peace Park parcel abutting Mr. Luna’s parcel.

10. City of Elko Building Department put a stop work ticket on the door of the residence on

8/1/2018 when they noticed the accessory building being built. The property owner has

stopped all work on the accessory structure.

o0 hWDN

~

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
North: Public, Quasi-Public (PQP) / Developed as Peace Park
West: Single Family Residential (R) / Developed; Residential use
South: Single Family Residential (R) / Developed; Residential use
East: Single Family Residentia (R) / Partially Developed; Residential use

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is currently developed with asingle family use.
The property is generdly flat.
The property is accessed from Benti Way
The property is several feet lower in elevation than the adjacent property to the west.
The parcel to the east has not been developed

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Page 2 of 8



VAR 9-18
Moises Luna
APN: 001-621-015

City of Elko Master Plan — Land Use Component

City of Elko Master Plan — Transportation Component

City of Elko Redevelopment Plan

City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

City of Elko Code — Section 2-1-4 Permits

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning Districts

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-22 Variances

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-3-25 Easement Planning

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN - Land use:

The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Residential Medium Density.

R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential zoning district is listed as a
corresponding zoning district for Residential Medium Density.

Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of
lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.

Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

> W bR

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

MASTER PL AN - Transportation:

1. Theareawill be accessed from Benti Way
2. Benti Way isclassified asalocal.

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is not
required.

ELKOWELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property islocated within the 20 year capture zone for several City wells.

The existing use of the property does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 2-1-4(G) PERMITS:

Permit Exemptions: The following buildings, structures and other improvements to property are
exempt from any permit requirements contained in thistitle:

1. Buildings And Structures: Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, no permit
shall be required for the construction or installation of any of the following:

a. A single one-story detached accessory structure used as atool or storage shed,
playhouse or similar use, or a patio cover, carport, garage or similar use, provided the

Page 3 of 8



VAR 9-18
Moises Luna
APN: 001-621-015

floor area does not exceed two hundred (200) square feet and further provided the
structure is not occupied, except as follows:

(1) Permits are required for the following:

(A) Additional detached accessory buildings or structures of any size when built in
conjunction with a building or structure that is classified as a Group R, Division 3 one-
family or two-family dwelling; or

(B) Any one-story detached accessory structure located on any parcel used or zoned for
any purpose other than single-family residential.

Notwithstanding the foregoing exceptions, accessory structures shall meet all setback
reguirements set forth in the Zoning Code.

As stated in this section of code, the accessory building is under 200 square feet and therefore is
exempt from the requirement of a building permit, however, the structure shall meet al setback
requirements set forth in the Zoning Code.

The proposed accessory building is not in conformance with Elko City Code 2-1-4(G)

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set
forth in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall
apply uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this
subsection.

No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building
or structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or
structurally altered, unlessin conformity with all regulations specified in this
subsection for the district in which it is located.

No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:

a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;

b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in
this chapter;

c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or

d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open
spaces, than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the
provisions of this chapter.

No part of arequired yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading
space, provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part
of ayard, open space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for
any other building.

No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension
or area below the minimum requirements set forth in thistitle.

Page 4 of 8



VAR 9-18
Moises Luna
APN: 001-621-015

The accessory structure, as located on the property does not conform to the rear and interior side
yard setbacks.

The property does not conform to Section 3-2-4 of City Code. Approval of the variance
application is required to bring the property into conformance.

SECTION 3-2-5(E)(7) RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Property Development Standards For Accessory Buildings:

a. Building Height: The maximum building height shall not exceed twenty five feet (25'), or
requirements contained within the city airport master plan, whichever isthe most restrictive.

b. Building Setbacks: Any detached accessory building that is erected shall conform to front
and side yard setback requirements. A minimum rear yard setback of ten feet (10') shall be
required, which may be reduced to zero feet (0) if therear ot line abuts a public aley.

c. Building Area: A detached accessory building shall be limited to a maximum area of one
thousand (1,000) square feet or ten percent (10%) of the lot area, whichever is greater, but
not to exceed one thousand two hundred (1,200) square feet.

The property, as developed with the principal structure, meets all requirements of Elko City
Code 3-2-5. The proposed accessory structure does not meet setback requirements for the
rear or interior side yard.

If the accessory structure was to be located outside of the rear yard setback, it would be within 2
feet of the rear wall of the residence and therefore block necessary egress windows. This
would be a safety concern.

Setbacks requirements are important for drainage purposes, easements as well as required for fire
separation.

SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES:

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include:

Application Requirements

1. Thereare specia circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape, configuration,
exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions
applying to the property under consideration.

Mr. Luna stated in the application that the property is already developed from setback to
setback dueto it being a smaller lot and larger home. Area behind will not have
neighbors dueto it being the Peace Park. The property islower than the neighbors to the
west so the accessory building will not interrupt his neighbors view.

Page 5 of 8



VAR 9-18
Moises Luna
APN: 001-621-015

. The specia circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of
the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the
property owner of reasonable use of property.

Mr. Luna stated in the application that the property isa smaller parcel. Thereisno
additional room for an accessory building. In order for himto comply with code 3-2-17,
they park in garage which doesn’t have any room for the items they want to store in the
accessory building.

With the FEMA flood zone as mapped, the northeast corner of the property is alower
elevation than the northwest. Thereis agreater possibility of exposure to the structure
and contents to flooding in the northeast corner.

. Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other propertiesin the
same zoning district.

Mr. Luna stated in the application that most subdivisions don’t have park space abutting
their rear property line like his does.

FEMA floodway appears to come within a foot of the back property line of Mr. Luna’s
property.

. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
propertiesin the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

Mr. Luna stated in the application that he spoke with his neighbor and there are no issue
that will result in any material damage or affect their property or view.

Due to the elevation change between Mr. Luna’s property and the property to the west,
the top of the accessory structure is within afoot of the height of the fence which
separates the two properties.

. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification.

Mr. Luna stated in the application that if there are zero setbacks it will not affect his
neighbor or the park. It will not block any visibility. Land use to remain R- Residential
and accessory buildings are allowed in that classification.

. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.

Mr. Luna stated in the application that there will be no drainage to adjacent properties
and will not affect the park adjacent to the property.

Page 6 of 8



VAR 9-18
Moises Luna
APN: 001-621-015

The Peace Park along the rear property line has a 15’ drainage and utility easement
running parallel to Mr. Luna’s property.

SECTION 3-3-25 EASEMENT PLANNING:

A. Utility Easements:

2. Along side lot lines where required for distribution facilities, utility easementsfive feet (5')
wide on each side of side lot lines; where service to street lighting is required: one foot (1)
on each side of such lot lines, or as required by the utility company.

As shown on 8 Mile Estates Subdivision Final Map, the proposed accessory structure would be
placed over the side lot line utility and drainage easement.

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

1. FEMA floodway, as mapped, is not located on the lot but appears to be on the lot line. As
FEMA mapping is approximate, locating the accessory structure on the northeast corner
of the property could expose the structure and its contents to flooding. There is an
elevation difference between the northwest corner and northeast corner with the northeast
corner being lower in eevation.

FINDINGS

1. It doesnot appear that granting the variance will result in material damage or prejudice to
other propertiesin the vicinity.

2. It appearsthat the FEMA floodway would present a higher level of hazard for the
structure or contents within the structure if it was located in the northeast corner

3. Granting of the variance does not appear to be detrimental to the interest, health, safety
and genera welfare of the public.

4. Granting of the variance will substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning
ordinance.

5. Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources.
6. It appears that the features or conditions of the property result in practical difficulty or
undue hardship and deprive the property owner of reasonable use of property.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

If denied, based on the findings and facts presented in this Staff Report.
If conditionally approved, staff would recommend the following conditions:

Planning Department:

Page 7 of 8



VAR 9-18
Moises Luna
APN: 001-621-015

1. Compliance with al staff recommendations.
2. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen (18) months.
3. Vacate drainage and utility easement along the west property line.

Building Department:

1. Please see Elko City building code amendments table R302.1 regarding Exterior walls
Walls: < 5 feet require 1 hour fire rating
Projections: 2 feet to <5 feet require 1 hour on underside. O to 2 feet not allowed
Openings: 3 feet to 5 feet allowed at 25% maximum of wall areaor less
Penetrations: < 5 feet must comply with section R317.3

2. Obtain an electrical permit for any electrical work to be completed.

Page 8 of 8



CITY OF ELKO Website: www.clkocity.com

P I a n n | n g D epartment Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us

1751 College Avenue - Elko, Nevada 89801 - (775) 777-7160 - Fax (775) 777-7119

August 27, 2018

Moises Luna
927 Benti Way
Elko, NV 89801

Re: Variance No. 9-18
Dear Applicant/Agent:

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting. Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information
before the meeting.

The Planning Commission requests that you, or a duly appointed representative, be in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you will not be able to attend the meeting
but wish to have a representative present, please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting.

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, the information you received, or if you will not
be able to attend this meeting, please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160.

Sincerely,
Shelby Archule
Planning Technician

Enclosures

CE:



YPNO

001621020
001621013
001621012
001621009
001621008
001621018
001621016
001621017
001621006
001621007
001620074
001972031
001972034
001621010
001620069
001620035
001972030
001621005
001621014
001972028
001838025
001621019
001972029
001838012
001972032
001621011
001838011
001972033

@

PANAME

AGUILAR, JOSHUA S

ARTISAN EAST LLC

ARTISAN EAST LLC

ARTISAN EAST LLC 4

ARTISAN EAST LLC . 'P-C .

ARTISAN EAST LLC

ARTISAN EAST LLC

ARTISAN EAST LLC

ARTISAN EAST LLC

ARTISAN EAST LLC

BENTI, ROGER W ET AL
CHAMBERS, JOHN B & SHARLYN
DAME, RICHARD S

DE CARLO, WILLIAM J & VALERIE }
ELKO, CITYOF ) /P C.
ELKO, CITY OF

FONDA, LOYD HENRYI

FRANKS RAYMOND & AMBER
GRISWOLD, CARL §

HAGGARD, K Qe

HEADLEY, G ® Y& MARY
PENROD, ZAEC'H/E*S D & LAN|
POLKINGHORN ", OWEN M & MARKI A
SIROTEK, TipO_.. .Y R & TERRI TR
STONE, SHALUp | & CANDICE L
TESTOLIN, BARBARA A
VILLEGAS, JOSE M & MARTHA G
WILSON, MICHAEL M

—

967 BENTI WAY
10630 MATHER BLVD
10630 MATHER BLVD
10630 MATHER BLVD
10630 MATHER BLVD
10630 MATHER BLVD
10630 MATHER BLVD
10630 MATHER BLVD
10630 MATHER BLVD
10630 MATHER BLVD
PO BOX 323

643 SPRUCE RD

631 SPRUCE RD
930 BENTI WAY

1755 COLLEGE AVE
1755 COLLEGE AVE
647 SPRUCE RD

970 BENTI WAY

919 BENTI WAY

655 SPRUCE RD
3105 UNIVERSITY CT
959 BENTI WAY

651 SPRUCE RD

935 MITTRY AVE
639 SPRUCE RD

922 BENTI WAY

364 MAPLE ST
55-550 NANILOA LOOP

Moiled ©/23/8

PMCTST
ELKO NV
MATHER CA
MATHER CA
MATHER CA
MATHER CA
MATHER CA
MATHER CA
MATHER CA
MATHER CA
MATHER CA
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
LAIE HI

Variance G- 19 Luna

PMADD1 PMADD2

PZIP
89801-3411
95655-4125
95655-4125
95655-4125
95655-4125
95655-4125
95655-4125
95655-4125
95655-4125
95655-4125
89803-0323
89801-4535
89801-4535
89801-3411
89801
89801
89801-4535
89801-3411
89801-3411
89801-4535
89801-5055
89801-3411
89801 4535
89801-5086
89801-4535
89801-3411
89801-3148
96762-1238



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City
Planning Commission will conduct a public
hearing on Thursday, September 6, 2018 beginning
at 5:30 P.M. P.D.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1751
College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and that the public
is invited to provide input and testimony on this
matter under consideration in person, by writing,
or by representative.

The specific item to be considered under public
hearing format is:

Variance No. 9-18, filed by Moises Luna for a
reduction of the required interior side yard
setback from 51/2’ to 0’ and the required rear
yard setback from 10’ to 0’ for an accessory
structure within an R (Single-Family and Multi-
Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters
related thereto.

The subject property is located generally on the

north side of Benti Way, approximately 257’ east
of Spruce Road. (927 Benti Way - APN 001-621-

015)

Additional information concerning this item may
be obtained by contacting the Elko City Planning
Department at (775) 777-7160.

ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT

K 1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
' (775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7219 fax

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE

APPLICANT(s):_ ™MDYS Ll
MAILING ADDRESS:“1 7 ]_toun_ WAL

PHONE NO (Home) ] 15y- Jloy- 721K ~ (Business)
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (if different):

(Property owners consent in writing must be proviied,)
MAILING ADDRESS:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO..C0|- W2 - 0|5 Address__ G271 2enz’ ok

|| Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision _ ¢ m i« cstq Fe g /

1 Or Parcel(s) & File No.

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 15t Tuesday of
every month).

Fee: A $500.00 non-refundable fee must be paid. If in conjunction with a Rezone Application a
$250.00 non-refundable fee must be paid.

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks,
parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent information must be provided.

Elevation Plan: Elevation profile of all proposed buildings or alterations in sufficient detail to
explain the nature of the request must be provided.

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible,
reproducible plans 8 72" x 11”7 in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation
to support this Variance application.

Revised 1/24/18 Page 1



The APPLICANT requests the following variance from the following section of the zoning

ordinance:

%2-5(E)7

1. The existing zoning classification of the property g-

2. The applicant shall present adequate evidence demonstrating the following criteria which are
necessary for the Planning Commission to grant a variance:

a) ldentify any special circumstances, features or conditions applying to the property under
consideration. i.e., unusual shape, configuration, exceptional topographic conditions or
_other extraordlnary situations or conditions
Woperty, alvendiydevelppr brom ot bace 40 cov back due do 1t Leivy

Saalley Lot &\mm&movw/, Avea bend will npt ZWave mmh\@vé Aue 1o

i ‘Dmm i ?mc:o Fave . Mu wmu{rm 5 lowsy Poan ¢ Lg\flm/& & e

t&@é‘ob%} buldiig wilnpt \ﬁ*cw\a F iy NGANOVS VICYY.
b )ldentify how such cireumstances, features or conditions result in pracfical difficulty or

undue hardship and deprive the property owner of reasonable use of property.

vz wvo\aevm o A snadlev pavie Tovve, 6 D additonal vioom (o

AU SO bul\\&\wm TA ovAer S usto mw\u wi\y code, %211

W Pave W W\V mm,, Wi dDesiil have A \’EDV\W v v ilete, We

went Y Stove IWT ACCCHVL, Dunlains o
c) Indicate how the granting of the variance is nébessary for the applicant or owner to

make reasonable use of the property.

L AL WA eynce Xp SV vy pevsonal e ws,

d) Identify how such circumstances, features or conditions do not apply generally to other
opertles in the same Land Use District.

05t SubdhwSionS dopt Nawd m(L Space @ mmej e veay
wo\pz,vhﬁ NG 1y mine Aotk

Revised 1/24/18 Page 2




e) Indicate how the granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice
to other properties in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the public health, safety and

general welfare.

L Spoy_widtn_ny_oeignbov Aaeve AL 0 ESUes Hat wall vesult i

any oogueed Aarvvige or atfedt 0O propedty o view.

f) Indicate how the variance will not be in conflict with the purpose or intent of the Code.

Tt vl W) St oS it wil] nOt ket iy LGy
OV Ay g Yt will N Dlock aud visivibhy

g) Indicate how the granting of the variance will not result in a change of land use or zoning
classification.

Land use, 10 reman, K-visSidenta) . Acwimg_mudm@
allowgd et dassianin,

h) Indicate how granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural
resources,

Tagie, will_be o Ammmgw f0_adiacnt propernts b )
ot akfect Thy pane adyactnt T g propgriy

3. Describe your ability (i.e. sufficient funds or a loan pre-approval letter on hand) and intent to

construct within one year as all variance approvals must commence construction within one year
and complete construction within 18 months per City Code Section 3-2-22 F.1.: =

L havp_pean veoréing o0 wy proper, daing, imgovemgots.

Tht Sl e SipportS HeSe wnprovements.

(Use additional pages if necessary to address guestions 2a through h)

This area intentionally left blank

Revised 1/24/18 Page 3



By My Signature below:

II:I/ | consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property only for the sole purpose of
inspecting said property as part of this application process.

O object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of

this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

m/ | acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

E( | acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either | or my

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

Ij | have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

Applicant / Agent Mpises |uind :

(Please print or type)

Mailing Address 0!17 60’?” V\/ﬂl/L

Street’Address or P.O. Box

Lo, W 2490l

City, State, Zip Code
Phone Numbep: . 1 16)7 g Y g

Email address: _MIOYLPALERIA DHOTMALL.. M
// //7

SIGNATURE: /7215 -

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

File No.: _A- IR Date Filed:_ D /|2//3  Fee Paid> 500 CrF 230
RECEIVED

AUG 13 2018

Revised 1/24/18 Page4



Agenda Item# [.B.1

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on a transfer of Conditional Use
Permit No. 4-86 to a new permittee, filed by Cristina Giammalva, which would
allow for a childcare center within an R- Single Family and Multiple Family
Residential Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date: September 6, 2018

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes

5. Background Information: CUP 4-86 was approved on September 16, 1986 for the
second location of the Noah’s Ark Childcare Center. The permittee of the 4-86 CUP
is in the process of selling the business and property to the applicant.

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report

8. Recommended Motion: Move to approve the transfer of Conditional Use Permit 4-86
based on facts, findings and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated
August 17, 2018.

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated August 17, 2018

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

11. Agenda Distribution: Cristina Giammalvo

1292 4™ Street
Elko, NV 89801

Created on 8/17/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet




STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: q / (-ﬂ

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce**

tine:_Conditional Use Peymit Y-8 Ti-ansfer
Applicant(s):_(ristina_Giammalia

Site Location: _ 1337 Sewell Drive.

Current Zoning: J_ Date Received: 7 Z(p/ /8 Date Public Notice: 2 /’4
COMMENT: _This 1S 46 Tronsfir _QQE_H:@Q_fmm_Kbesj_Sim’gﬁb'
Ap Cristina Gianmalua_do_allew o Child Cave center dnd a
“DYesclos _m.ﬂai_nnm:&_zonmﬁ__dz&mgt,.

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Assistant City Manager: Date: 9/ 2/ //Z
7 N/ é /
[{ecomm enAd ﬂ/ﬁ/’ﬂﬂ[/ﬂ/ as___pursen /7 S

sy’

Initial

City Manager: Date: ?/Q“{/lg

_M&mmmiéé Concerns .

el

-
Initial




™ City of Elko

x 1751 College Avenue
X Elko, NV 89801
** (775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7219

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: July 31, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: September 6, 2018
APPLICATION NUMBER: CUP 4-86
AGENDA ITEM: 1.B.1

APPLICANT: Cristina Giammalva
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 1737 Sewell Drive

A transfer of conditional use permit 4-86 for new ownership of a Childcare Center within
an R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential zoned property.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to facts, findings, and conditions stated in this memo.

Pagelof 5



Transfer CUP 4-86
Cristina Giammalvo

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-640-035

PARCEL SIZE: 11,020 q. ft.

EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential
MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density
EXISTING LAND USE: Was developed as Noah’s Ark childcare center in

1988 with CUP approval in 1986

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
o0 North & East: (R) Single and Multiple Family / Developed
0 South & West: (PQP) Public, Quasi-Public / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is devel oped.

The property fronts 2nd Street and Sewell Drive.

Main door accessis off Sewell Drlve in which there is no off street parking provided.
Off Street parking is provided off 2" Street.

BACKGROUND:

1.
2.

ONO Ogh

The parcel isidentified as APN 001-640-035.

The existing Conditional Use Permit 4-86 was conditionally approved by the Planning
Commission on September 16, 1986. There were two conditions stated in the
conditionally approved CUP, all of which have been satisfied. With the transfer of CUP,
the new permittee would be required to comply with the existing conditions.

Kathy Stringfield, the CUP 4-86 permittee, still owns the property and is selling the
property and business to the applicant October 1, 2018. Kathy has provided a letter
stating her intentions.

CUP 4-86 was recorded with the Elko County Recorder’s office, book 536 page 606.
CUP 4-86 is specific to childcare center and the address of 1737 Sewell Drive. The
proposed transfer is not conflicting with the approved use or specific property.

The property islocated on the north corner of 2" Street and Sewell Drive intersection.
The area of the parcel is 11,020 square feet and is triangular shaped.

The existing structure was permitted April 22, 1988.

MASTER PLAN AND ELKO CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plans and Elko City Code Sections are:

City of Elko Master Plan — Land Use Component

City of Elko Master Plan — Transportation Component

City of Elko Redevelopment Plan

City of Wellhead Protection Plan

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-3 General Provisions

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-5(E) R — Single Family Multiple Family Residential
District

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations

Page 2 of 5



Transfer CUP 4-86
Cristina Giammalvo

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-18 Conditiona Use Permit
MASTER PLAN:
Land use:
1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
2. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential is listed as a corresponding zoning
district for the Medium Density Residential Land Use.

The transfer of the Conditional Use Permit isin conformance with the Land Use Component of
the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The property fronts 2" Street and Sewel| Drive.
2. Parking that is provided on siteis off 2" Street and is considered legal non-conforming.

The transfer of the Conditional Use Permit is consistent with the Transportation Component of
the Master Plan. The proposed use, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will not
create any significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area and therefore the Elko Redevel opment
Plan was not considered for the transfer of the Conditional Use Permit.

ELKOWELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property islocated outside any capture zone for City wells.
2. The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the R- Single Family and
Multiple Family Residential zoning district do not present a hazard to City wells.
The transfer of Conditional Use Permit isin conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions
shall apply.

1. Principa Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

1. Section 3-2-3(C) states that certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance specified in Chapter 3 or
imposed by the Planning Commission or City Council.

Page 3 of 5



Transfer CUP 4-86
Cristina Giammalvo

2. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by
reason of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock
formation, extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any
other features likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the
community. The planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section,
shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The
applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to the
city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or
withdraw the determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed use of the property requires a transfer of the existing conditional use permit to
conform to Section 3-2-3 of City code.

The transfer of the existing conditional use permit is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City
code.

SECTION 3-2-5 R-SINGLE FAMILY AND MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL:

1. Childcare center islisted as a conditiona permitted use under 3-2-5(E)(3).

The transfer of the existing conditional use permit is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(E)(3) of
City code.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS:

There are 6 off street parking spaces provided off 2" Street.

Childcare centers require 1 parking space per every 10 students based on licensed
occupancy, plus 1 per each employee on the largest shift, plus 1 per each facility vehicle.
Existing parking can be considered alega non-conforming use.

A condition of the previously approved CUP 4-86 was frontage along Sewell Drive be
designated a loading zone, with no parking allowed during the hours of operation.

AW DNpE

Existing parking for the childcare center is considered a legal non-conforming use.

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS:

Genera Regulations:

1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses
only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this
chapter, other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards
established by the Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit
for such uses may be issued.

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of itsissue unless the
permit holder is actively engaged in devel oping the specific property to the use for which
the permit was issued.

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it isissued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run
with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditionsimposed by the permit,

Page 4 of 5



Transfer CUP 4-86
Cristina Giammalvo

as well as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the
responsibility of the property owner.

Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel.
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the
event that any or al of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation.

With the filing of the application for the transfer from permittee to new owner, the applicant isin
conformance with Section 3-2-18 of City code.as conformed to this section of code

FINDINGS

1. The existing conditiona use permit is consistent with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

2. The existing conditional use is consistent with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan. The proposed use, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will not
create any significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system.

3. The transfer of Conditional Use Permit is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection
Plan.

4. The transfer of the existing conditional use permit is in conformance with Section 3-2-3
of City code.

5. The existing conditiona use permit is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(E)(3) of City
code.

6. With the filing of the application for the transfer from permittee to new owner, the
applicant isin conformance with Section 3-2-18 of City code.

7. The property as developed isin conformance with City Code 3-2-17 as legal non-

conforming.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Conditional Use Permit 4-86 transfer to new owner, Cristina Giammalvo,
be approved with the conditions as stated in approved CUP 4-86:

1. The parking spaces are to be located entirely upon the applicants property along 2™
Street, and frontage along Sewell Drive be designated a loading zone, with no parking
allowed during the hours of operation.

2. This conditional use permit shall automatically lapse and be of no effect one year from
the date of its issue unless the permit holder is actively engaged in developing the
specific property to the use for which this permit isissued.

Planning Department Condition:

1. The transfer of CUP 4-86 shall be recorded with the Elko County Recorder’s office
after the recordation of the deed of sale to Cristina Giammalvo. Thisto occur within
1 year of approval of the CUP transfer by the Planning Commission or the CUP
transfer will automatically lapse and be of no effect.

Page 5 of 5



CITY OF ELKO

Plannlng Department Email: planning@ci.etko.nv.us

1751 College Avenue - Elko, Nevada 89801 - (775) 777-7160 - Fax (775) 777-7119

August 27, 2018

Cristina Giammalvo
1292 4™ Street
Elko, NV 89801

Re: Conditional Use Permit No. 4-86 Transfer
Dear Applicant/Agent:

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting. Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this inf ormation
before the meeting.

The Planning Commission requests that you, or a duly appointed representative, be in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you will not be able to attend the meeting
but wish to have a representative present, please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting.

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, the information you received, or if you will not
be able to attend this meeting, please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160.

Sincerely,

Ol

Shelby Archul
Planning Technician

Enclosures

(EIE:



NOAH'S ARK CHILD CARE CENTER
Kathy Frederick
1225 Sixth Street; Elko, NV g9g01
FFE5-924-5218

July 30, 2018

Cathy Laughlin,
Elko City Planner
1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801

SUBJECT: Transfer of ownership of Noah’s Ark Child Care Center
Dear Cathy:

| am writing to inform the City of Elko that | am in the process of preparing to transfer
ownership of Noah’s Ark Child Care Center located at 1737 Sewell Drive, Elko, NV, to Cristina
Giammalva. The planned effective date of this transfer of ownership will be October 1, 2018.
This transfer of ownership will include the property at 1737 Sewell Drive and the business of
Noah’s Ark Child Care Center currently in operation at that address.

Please call or email me if further information is needed. Thank you!
Sincerely,

. %,{//7 ® /;rz/)rr'-/

Kathy Frederick
Owner




CITY OF ELKO PLANNInG DEPARTMENT
1751 College Avenue* Elko* Nevada* 89801

REC
(775) 777-7160 phone* (775) 777-7219 fax EIVEL

JUL 2 6 2018
APPLICATION FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TRANSEER—

APPLICANT(s):{ i 510 (i amma lve
(Applicant must be the owner or lessee of the proposed structure or use.)
MAILING ADDRESS:\292 L_«l”‘ S EVO N %9900 _
PHONE NO. (Home)(n 210251144 O (Business)N2) VERO Al G 7155
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different):
(Property owner’s consent in writing must be provided.)
MAILING ADDRESS: ! 127 Sewe\\ Dv. FA\LO MV K950 \
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary) l
ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO.:0U | -{, U (3 ,-/\,"é'-\ddress\ TR Tyeaaell S BN BaNS
Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdiyision
Or Parcel(s) & File No.

FILING REQUIREMENTS

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 15t Tuesday of
every month).

Fee: No fee is required.
Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation
to support this conditional use permit transfer.

1. Explain in detail the type and nature of the use proposed on the property: = i~ ~ef
TZ) feepy Tt S e S e 1 uxf PASRIL AR QL\ \d \(;F 0 \\j
it \‘ i Pry . < } W S, ) 3 3 ‘Qa‘\.‘. { .(7{ y EN § e
JL'IL Pac \neeny 2t Doy o "‘.\.(- Comptavhy <o £y (M
L IN00Ee Pyt ren avveoNed  doter® o taeieth Ouen
vl o YA s RN - R QC*%A{ - Auv s
Cagguy ovinte s fov Chadveny. Tt F\\ﬁ( with The oS
F nwy adp lities Fo Sontiiius oA : Rk
“H 1 : ) ‘,J P d §

Revised 12/04/15 Page 1




By My Signature below:

[ | consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

] object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of

this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

EZI | acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

Q | acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either | or my

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

Q | have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

Applicant / Agent( I TG CR\CR\'\\‘MC«\\) )\
(Please print or type)

Mailing Address 1247 4™ . _
Street Address or P.O. Box

_ElkD . NN B8N
City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number: {QL@__L:) | <HET
Email address: .&.DQ\QEE&KM_MD@%MLLCOm

(/Jﬂ,/

SIGNATURE:

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

File No.: %MDate Filed: _Eﬁm&rfee Paid: l\}/ A

Revised 12/04/15 Page 2



*¥%* THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL COPY*¥*

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AGREEMENT

FILE NO. 4-86

THIS CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AGREEMENT, made this 16th

day of September , 19 86 , by the CITY OF ELKO, a municipal

corporation of the state of Nevada, acting by and through its duly
elected Board of Supervisors, hereinafter referred to as the "City",

and pave & Kathy Stringfield

of the City of _Ello , County of _Elko , State of Nevada

hereinafter referred to as "Permi ttee'.

WITNESSETH:

That the parties to this Agreement, in consideration
of the City's agreement that, if all conditions enumerated below
are faithfully performed, it will grant to Permittee a Conditional
Use Permit authorizing the use of the following described property
in the manner hereinafter set out and, in addition, the Permittee
will faithfully perform all conditions enumerated herein, therefore
City.and Permittee do hereby agree and contract as follows:

I.

That the property which is subject to this Conditional

Use Permit is located in the City of Elko, County of Elko, State of

Nevada and is more fully described as follows:

1730 Sewell Drive

II.
That the application for a Conditional Use Permit under

Elko City Code 3-2-17 filed by the Permittee on the 1arn  day

of AWUSE » 19 8¢ is attached hereto as, Exhibit 4,

incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement and the terms

soox 30 page U6



**¥% THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL COPY¥**¥*

and conditions thereof are hereby ratified by Permittee and City
as though the same had been set forth fully in this Agreement.
I11.
That the terms and conditions enumerated in this Agreement
shall not prevent the City from imposing such other conditions
or amending or terminating any of the conditions set forth in this
Agreement as may be reasonably necessary in order to promote
the health, safety, morals, or general welfare of the City of Elko.
Iv,
That the City shall file this Agreement in the Elko County
Recorder's Office. That the Permittee shall pay all recording
costs incurred thereby.
v.
That this Agreement for a Conditional Use Permit shall
be personal to the Permittee and applicable only to the specific use
and to the specific property for which it is issued. Upon issuance
of an occupancy permit for the conditional uge signifying that
all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection
with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit
shall thereafter be transferrable and shall run with the land whereupon
the maintenance of special conditions imposed by the permit, as
well as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district,
shall be the responsibility of the property owner.
VI.
The Board of Supervisors may review the Conditional Use
Permit, from time to time, during the terms of this Agreement,
and upon them finding that the terms and conditions of this Agreement
have not been met, or finding that previous statements or representa-
tions by Permittee in Permittee's application or otherwise are
not true and correct, the Board of Supervisors of the City may
revoke such Conditional Use Permit upon giving fifteen (15) days
written notice to Permittee of Permittee's failure to comply with

the conditions and requirements of this Agreement.

ok 536 raab07



*¥%* THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL COPY**%

VII.
That the following conditions and requirements are hereby
imposed by the City of Elko in authorizing the issuance of said

Conditional Use Permit:

The parking_ spaces are to be located entirely upopn. the_pprlicants

property along 2nd Street, and frontage along Sewell prjve be

designated a loading zone, with no parking allowed during the hours

of operation.

This Conditional Use Permit shall automatically lapse and be of no effect

one year from the date of its issue unless the permit holder is actively

engagedin developing the specific property to the use for which this

permit is issued.

VIII.

It is hereby understood between the City and Permittee
that this Agreement does not abrogate the Permittee's duty to
obey all applicable federal, state, county and City rules, regulations,
statutes, ordinances and laws.

IX.

This instrument contains the entire Agreement between
the parties and no statement by either party which is not corntained
in this written agreement shall be considered valid or binding, and
this Agreement may not be altered except in writing signed by the
parties hereto..

X.

It is further understood and agreed by the parties hereto
that if any part, term, or provision of this Agreement shall be
decided by any court to be illegal or in conflict with any federal,
state, county or City law, ordinace or statute, the validity of
the remaining portions or provisions of this Agreement shall not

be affected thereby.

sk 936 PAuf.ﬁbg



**% THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL COPY**+

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto

set their hands thiséﬂ_ day of >£)‘JL‘ , 19 S'Q S

CITY:
BY . X
Bk 7~ MAYOR
ATTEST:
~ CITY CLERK ; ? % }
STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.

COUNTY OF ELKO )

On 4’%ﬁé 25, 19 §(, , personally appeared before

me,a Notary Public, D. GEORGE CORNER, Mayor and GIULIANA MURPHY,
City Clerk, City of Elko, who acknowledged to me that they executed
the above instrument in the name of and on behalf of said City.

Doagd Lo 2enechoa
NOTARY PUBLIC

PERMITTEE: Dave & Kathy Stringfield

STATE OF NEVADA

COUNTY OF ELKO |

/
- 2. ' 19/4 y per}gonally appeared before
me, a Notary Publie ;7 “ﬂd_ﬂﬂ__z &ﬁ, who acknowledged

that ZZ.;%_ exe

R

LEDORA BERNADOT

S8 XN Notery Puttis - State of Ne
C ko Coun'y. N =
/ Commission Expires May 2, 19 OTARY PUBLIC

s sook D30 mﬁb{]



*%%x THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL COPY**¥

Applicant: S7vrj ,;Q'C{ [ H

4>
File No.: . /7/‘?(”
Date Filed: Aug. 13 1986

Fee Paid: 557‘)\/0(/0 | g://iz%_)éj

HEARING DATE:

Planning Commission: Sep'r, o?, I?Xé
|

APPLICATION FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT T\ (T
ELKO CITY CODE 3-2-17 [ i

TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA:

1. The legal owner(s) of said property being petitioned for
change (is) (are)

Daup sup Aoz Secmis mes i

2. Legally described property being petitioned for change:
(Give exact legal description including Lot, Block, Track, etc
If more space is needed than has been provided, please put
complete description on an additional sheet of paper and attach
same to this application).

(BCres [ of 7AET Corzinl BoEL RS e Jliysedt M/n//
LRNELS LT IA BAL DAIVIEL AL KBTHERH Z. S7 C/NVGE /2> NZHy

HHE NE W NE Sy of sECn th, 72 34N, R..55 ., MDBFN,
FHLED NVEZbeAT 7, [5ES, W IHE OFFIEE B0 £ Lrw, Coonty
Lecopes L, ELKLD cowvn_/,_az. VALA, Fres” NO. 209407

3. Applicant acquired title to such property on:

Yz 724 /g/fié (Date).

4. The property is situated (Give street address or
exterior boundaries of area petitioned for change by streets,
alleys, property lines, etc.):

_ NbeIM LT (DRIETE BT THE [ Arer Saiia”
O SEWELL #MD 279 sS7

1 sk 930 eaeeb10



**x THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL COPRY ***

5. A detailed site plan of the propertyinvolved showing
the location of all existing and proposed buildings and showing
plans and descriptions of the proposed use of property with
ground plans and elevations for all proposed buildings is
attached hereto and made a part of this petition.

6. Applicant(s) (has) (have) the ability and intention to ,
utilize said Conditional Use Permit within one (1) vear from the_ i
date of final approval; and the applicant(s) understands that
this Conditional Use Permit, if granted, becomes null and void
and of no effect if unused within one (1) vear from the date of
filing of the application, or if at any time after -grenting, the
use is discontinued for a period of six (6) months, or if the
applicant(s)fails to comply with conditions and safeguards which
are part of the terms under which such permit is granted.

7. When a Conditional Use Permit is granted subject to
conditions, such Conditional Use Permit does not become effective
until such time as those conditions have beén met.

8. Provision of Zoning Ordinance for which the Conditional
Use Permit is required:

3-2-5 (c) 3. (Hup cpes cenzers

9. Explain in detail the type of use which will be made on
this property. If it is a commercial, industrial or public,
guasi-public use, including an explanation of the intended
operation.

Lot p Copes Cn7ar pYD S seHont.

10. Is the proposed site adequate in size and topographic
characteristics to accommodate the Conditional Use? Explain.

Ves, HPleers Szprs /ﬁf?///z’ﬂ?t’/?Zf / el
JRLD, Bruomns et iy 7y . s 75/6
O Spar T Gaekant .

2 | sk 936 paz 611



*%**x THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL COPY*x*¥*

11. Describe in detail the method to be used in development
as it may pertain to earth fill or excavation, flood provisions,
drainage, terracing or other unusual features.

N EZC7 FILE Nip FZopD> SOV S1o0S
REpuiBalDy  Thsmupses_ oty sze 72 (27 Searny
T2 N LS, FE LTSS :

12. 1In accordance with the Zoning Ordinance, construction
will be commenced within one (1) year, or the =xtension thereof.
Is there any reason forseen which would requirs an extension?

Nor =

13. Describe the site including storm drainage, soil
conditions, erosion susceptibility, general topography, other
distinguishing characteristics and any other features which may
affect the use of the property.

/n/ 7/}/;7 ..9/4 77 P /f&/ Lo7 e é.e
%m/ 2407 % /// & s Crmsion FLeRT 75

14. (a). Will the use entail the use of additional
vehicles? Jbs [frre& L wffia/ces o Jrsness /ey LS,

(b). Number: ‘5: Ao e/zfﬂzo/ YesS 5 /7/&&75;/ Ausme il

. 15. What provisions have been made for the elimination or
reduction of any traffic problems or hazards resulting from
increased traffic?

/Aﬂ,z_ﬁtzz 22E Sp7 72D fz/a5 LIALES [ e, 04////

Moz #.%aé Laben? s rpsonts, .

16. (a). Is there sufficient off-street parking available
on the site to meet the off-street parking requirements of Elko

City Code 3-2-16? Y= - ,5"5,,954_—5 s Bz =

(b). Explanation: [Vzyp 3- ,Z_é_éél).-_ -—[——) )

7”

et et 7HRY BnD LT etz Schoses’ i

Ve
__/ gLl E 2L EZ .
/7 V.l V4

. sk D30 race 612



*%% THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL COPY**x

17. (a). 1If a sign is to be erected give the dimensions of
the sign and the type of sign.

Gonr of 2bovr 4B AT D TABA M

(b). Does the sign meet the requirements of Chapter 5,
Title 2 of the Elko City @de i = .S ;

— e

(c¢). Explanatiorn: MZ f//‘;&'{ .fo?'///ﬂ//]/,é

18. (a). Will there be any outside storage of goods,
materials or equipment at the site? 2. e,

(b). Give a detailed explanation of this type of
storage.

19. (a). Will there be any accessory building structures
whose uses are associated with the general use on the site?

No :

(b). Explanation:

20. A nonrefundable filing fee of $75.00 must accompany
this application and filed in the Office of the City Clerk of the
City of Elko, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada 89801.

21l. This Application will be referred to the Planning
Commission of the City of Elko and a public hearing will be held
on such application by such Commission.

22. 1If the Planning Commission approveé the Application, it
shall issue a Conditional Use Permit Agreement setting forth all
conditions and requirements covering such use and shall make the
‘approved site plan a part of the record of the case.

23. " If the Planning Comniission denies the permit, notice of

the denial, including reasons therefore, shall be mailed to the
applicant(s) at the address shown on said Application.

4 sk 30 page 813



*%% THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL COPY**¥*

Applicant's Name: ADTHEEN IMPIWID SN AZD

Applicant's Phone Number: home 702 - 35 9-4/75
Business 7 36520 Z

Applicant's Mailing Address: 473 LUIELF Sl C7-

Street

SpeKs L BI¥3)

City State Zip

I, the applicant(s) (or an authorized agent or employer of
Applicant) being first duly sworn deposes and says that all of
the above statements contained in the document submitted herewith
are true and as to those matters stated on information and belief

I beliesve the same to be true.

Ap llﬁant

Dy

F_#/lM c;gooa\l

2Eqbn.6 T ur )

»w’x *g’lgf*fz  INDEXED

= | ) §3G - (p O(p
FRETOGH S Wl e e R
WERECT D, 8 ErHCLTS
ELKD CO. RECCRDER



Agenda Item # [.B.2

9.

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet

Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Plat No. 11-18, filed by
Parrado Partners LP., for the development of a subdivision entitled Great Basin
Estates, Phase 3 involving the proposed division of approximately 9.650 acres of
property into 38 lots for residential development within the R (Single Family and
Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: September 6, 2018

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: Subject property is located generally northeast of Flagstone
Drive between Opal Drive and Clarkson Drive (APN 001-633-030). Preliminary Plat
was recommended to City Council to conditionally approve by Planning
Commission May 3, 2016 and conditionally approved by City Council May 24, 2016.
Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report

Recommended Motion: Recommend to City Council to conditionally approve Final

Plat 11-18 based on the findings of fact and conditions in the Staff Report dated
August 23, 2018

Findings: See Staff Report dated August 23, 2018

10. Agenda Distribution: Parrado Partners, LP

12257 Business Park Drive #1
Truckee, CA 96161

High Desert Engineering
Bob Morley

640 Idaho Street

Elko, NV 89801

Created on 8/24/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: CM@

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce™*
tide o[ Plat 11-18  Cient Basin Estates Phase 3
applicant(s;: __Povrado_Poriners., LP
Site Location: _&mLQD_i_MJ_UQ%L:B Arkia _i_O.PQJIKL'Me
Current Zoning: _3_ Date Received: _%_ﬂiﬂ& Date Public Notice: ,/\},/ A
COMMENT: “This Is 10 Suboivide 9Q.L5 acves i 33 lofs

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

v
Assistant City Manager: Date: %ZZ 4 / i %

L .
':__EC' i Vé/ ¢ [&//o/,/? A2 ai(aj i A S //5/2%? SN Lo /7
4/4
SHAL
Initial

City Manager: Date: glz‘///f
__d&,mmmm.c_!__c&pgcep vo| baszd v pon ceditions licred in Staff Q.Qeor-h

"

P~

Initial



X City of Elko
x 1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160
FAX (775) 777-7119

X x

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: August 23, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: September 6, 2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 1.B.2

APPLICATION NUMBER: Final Plat 11-18
APPLICANT: Parrado Partners, LP
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Great Basin Estates, Phase 3

A Final Map for the division of approximately 9.650 acres into 38 lots for single family
residential development within an R (Single Family and Multiple Family Residential)
Zoning District and oneremaining lot.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to APPROVE thisitem subject to findings of fact and conditions.

Page 1 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBERS: 001-633-030

PARCEL SIZE: 9.650 acres Phase 3, final phase of the subdivision
EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential
MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density
EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
Northwest: River corridor / Undeveloped
Northeast: RMH- Residential Mobile Home / Developed
Southwest: Single Family Residential (R) / Developed
Southeast: Single Family Residentia (R) and (RMH) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.
The area abuts the second phase the Great Basin Estates Subdivision.
The parcel is generaly flat.

MASTER PLAN, COORDINATING PLANS, and CITY CODE SECTIONS:
Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are:

City of Elko Master Plan — Land Use Component

City of Elko Master Plan — Transportation Component

City of Elko Redevelopment Plan

City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

City of Elko Zoning — Chapter 3 Subdivisions

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-3 General Provisions

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-5(E) Single-Family Residential District

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback And
Height Schedule For Principal Buildings

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1. TheFinal Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 1B was recorded on June 29, 2017.

2. TheFina Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 2 was approved by City Council on August
14, 2018.

3. TheFina Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 3 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

4. The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City
Council on the Preliminary Plat on May 3, 2016.

Page 2 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

The City Council conditionally approved the Preliminary Plat at its meeting on May 24,

2016.

Phasing was shown on the preliminary plat.

Under the conditional approval for the preliminary plat, a modification of standards was

granted for al lot dimensions.

The subdivision islocated on APN 001-633-030, shown as parcel E on Final Plat for

Phase 2.

9. The proposed subdivision consists of 38 lots with no additional phases.

10. Thetotal subdivided areais approximately 9.650 acresin size.

11. The proposed density is 5.09 units per acre.

12. Approximately 2.187 acres are offered for dedication for street devel opment.

13. The area proposed for subdivision has been removed from the FEMA Specia Flood
Hazard Area by a Letter of Map Revision submitted to and approved by FEMA as Case
No. 16-09-0367P with an effective date of April 3, 2017.

14. The property islocated off Opal Drive and Clarkson Drive.

o ~No v

MASTER PLAN:

Land Use
1. Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with
review and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Plat isin conformance with the
Preliminary Plat and the Master Plan.
The proposed subdivision isin conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

Transportation

2. Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with
review and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Plat is in conformance with the
Preliminary Plat.

The proposed subdivision isin conformance with Transportation Component of the Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

1. The property is not located within the Redevel opment Area.
ELKOWELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property lies within the 20 year capture zone for the City of Elko.
The proposed subdivision isin conformance with the Wellhead Protection Program. The sanitary
sewer will be connected to a programed sewer system and all street drainage will report to a
storm sewer system.

SECTION 3-3-6 FINAL PLAT STAGE (STAGE I11)

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(1) — The Final Plat isin conformance with the zone
requirements. A modification of standards for the lot dimensions was granted with the
conditional approval of the Preliminary Plat.

Page 3 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(2) — The proposed final plat conformsto the preliminary
plat.

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(3) — The Title Sheet includes an affidavit for public utilities
and no objections were received from public utilities upon notification for the Preliminary Plat.

SECTION 3-3-8 INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR FINAL PLAT SUBMITTAL

A. Form and Content-The final plat conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.
B. Identification Data
1. The subdivision map identified the subdivision, and provides its location by
section, township, range and county.
2. The subdivision map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The subdivision map provides a scale, north point, and date of preparation.
C. Survey Data
1. Theboundaries of the tract are fully balanced and closed.
2. All exceptions are noted on the plat.
3. Thelocation and description of cardinal points are tied to a section corner.
4. Thelocation and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of
the tract are noted on the plat.
D. chrlptlve Data
The name, right of way lines, courses, lengths and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the plat.
All drainage ways are noted on the plan.
All utility and public service easements are noted on the plat.
The location and dimensions of al lots, parcels and exceptions are shown on the
plat.
All residentia lots are numbered consecutively on the plat.
There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the plat.
The location of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the plat with required
information.
There are no deed restrictions proposed.
E. Dedication and Acknow! edgment
1. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements
and right of ways.
2. Theexecution of dedication is acknowledged and certified by a notary public.
F. Additiona Information
All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the plat.
The centerline and width of each right of way is noted on the plat.
The plat indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine the
boundaries of the subdivision.
Thelength and bearing of each lot lineisidentified on the plat.
The city boundary adjoining the subdivision is not identified on the plat, as the
plat is not adjoining a boundary.
The plat identifies the location of the section lines, and 1/16™ section line
adjoining the subdivision boundaries.
G. City Engineer to Check
1. The Engineer shall check the final map for accuracy of dimensions, placement of
monuments, the establishment of survey records, and conformance with the
preliminary map.
a) Closure calculations have been provided.

® NOU AWN B

o gk wbhrk

Page 4 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

b) Civil improvement plans have been provided, previous civil
improvement plans have been approved for this subdivision.
c) Civil improvement plansfor drainage have been submitted.
d) An engineer’s estimate has not been provided.
2. It appearsthelot closures are within the required tolerances.
H. Required certifications
The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the final plat.
The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right of ways shown on the plat.
A Clerk Certificate is shown on the fina plat, certifying the signature of the City
Council.
The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the plat.
A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the plat and provides the required language.
The City Engineer’s Certificate is listed on the plat.
A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided
with the required language.
A copy of review by the state engineer is not available at this time.
A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the plat with
the required language.
10. The civil improvement plans identify the required water meters for the
subdivision.

0o Nouk wdhRE

SECTIONS 3-3-20 through 3-3-27 (inclusive)

1. The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of
code during the preliminary plat process. A modification of standards for lot dimensions
was approved during that process.

Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary plat
application, the proposed development conforms Sections 3-3-20 through 3-3-27 (inclusive).

SECTION 3-3-40-RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider shall be responsible for al required improvementsin conformance with Section
3-3-40 of city code.

SECTION 3-3-41-ENGINEERING PLANS

The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans in conformance with section 3-3-41 of
City code. The plans have been approved by city staff.

SECTION 3-3-42-CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive al
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-42 of city code.

SECTION 3-3-43-REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with Section 3-
3-43 of city code.

Civil improvements include curb, gutter and sidewalk, paving and utilities within the Village
Parkway, Village Green Circle, Nicole Court and Opal Drive right of ways.

Page 5 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

SECTION 3-3-44-AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to address to conform to
Section 3-3-44 of city code.

SECTION 3-3-45-PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE

The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance Guarantee as stipulated in the
Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-45 of city code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G) and 3-2-17

1. The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of
code during the preliminary plat process. A modification of standards for lot dimensions
was approved during that process.

Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary plat
application, the proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G) and
3-2-17 of city code.

SECTION 3-8-FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT

1. The proposed subdivision has been removed from the FEMA Specia Flood Hazard
Areaby a Letter of Map Revision submitted to and approved by FEMA as Case No.
16-09-0367P with an effective date of April 3, 2017.

The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of city code.
FINDINGS

1. TheFinal Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 3 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. TheFina Plat isin conformance with the Preliminary Plat.

3. The proposed subdivision isin conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan.

4. The proposed subdivision isin conformance with Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

5. Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary
plat application, the proposed development conforms Sections 3-3-20 through 3-3-27
(inclusive).

6. The Subdivider shall be responsible for al required improvementsin conformance with
Section 3-3-40 of city code.

7. The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans in conformance with section 3-3-
41 of City code. The plans have been approved by city staff.

Page 6 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

8. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all

0.

required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-42 of city code.

The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with
Section 3-3-43 of city code.

10. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to

Section 3-3-44 of city code.

11. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance Guarantee as stipulated in the

Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-45 of city code.

12. Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary

plat application, the proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E),
3-2-5(G) and 3-2-17 of city code.

13. The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of city code.

14. The subdivision isin conformance with 3-8 Floodplain Management.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the subdivision based on the following conditions:

1.

w

© © N o o &

The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with Section 3-3-
44 of city code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in accordance with Section
3-3-45 of city code. In conformance with Section 3-3-44 of city code, the public
improvements shall be completed within atime of no later than two (2) years of the date
of Final Plat approval by the City Council unless extended as stipulated in city code.

The Performance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

The Developer shall enter into the Performance Agreement within 30 days of approval of
the Final Plat by the City Council.

The Final Plat is approved for 38 single family residential lots.

The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

State approval of the subdivision isrequired.

Conformance with Preliminary Plat conditionsis required.

Civil improvements are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

The Owner/Developer isto provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record isto ensure all materials meet the latest edition Standard

Specifications for Public Works. All Right —of-Way and utility improvements are to be
certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

Page 7 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

10. An engineer’s estimate for the public improvements shall be provided prior to the fina

plat being presented to the City Council to allow for finalization of the required
Performance Agreement.

11. Modify Planning Commission approval jurat to the 3" day of May, 2016 prior to City
Council approval.

Page 8 of 8



CITY OF ELKO =~

P I a n n | n g Department Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us

1751 CollegeAvenue - Elko,Nevada89801 - (775)777-7160 - Fax(775)777-7119

August 27, 2018

ParradoPartners, LP
12257 Business Park Drive #1
Truckee, CA 96161

Re: Final Plat No. 11-18
Dear Applicant/Agent:

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting. Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information
before the meeting.

The Planning Commission requests that you, or a duly appointed representative, be in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you will not be able to attend the meeting
but wish to have a representative present, please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting.

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, the information you received, or if you will not
be able to attend this meeting, please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160.

Sincerely,

8>\/\QMBSMM%

Shelby Archuleta
Planning Technician

Enclosures

CC: High Desert Engineering, Attn: Bob Morley, 640 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7219 fax

APPLICATION FOR FINAL PLAT APPROVAL
APPLICANT(s):l Parrado Partners, LP I

MAILING ADDRESS;] 12257 Business Park Drive #8, Truckee, CA 96161

PHONE NO (Home) i(Business) (530) 587-0740

NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (if different):
(Property owner consent in writing must be_provided) e

MAILING ADDRESS: I

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):

ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO.:I 001-633-030 Addres Flagstone Dr/Granite Dr

Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision | Lot E, Great Basin Estates Subdivision, Phase 2

Or Parcel(s) & File No. |

PROJECT DESCRIPTION OR PURPOSE: |

I
APPLICANT’'S REPRESENTATIVE OR ENGINEER: | High Desert Engineering, LLC

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 15t Tuesday of
every month), and must include the following:
1. One .pdf of the entire application, and ten (10) 24” x 36” copies of the final plat folded to
a size not to exceed 9”x12” provided by a properly licensed surveyor, as well as one (1)
set of reproducible plans 8 2" x 11” in size and any required supporting data, prepared in
accordance with Section 3-3-8 of Elko City Code (see attached checklist).
2. Pre-Submission Requirements:
a. The final plat shall meet all requirements of the zoning district in which located,
and any necessary zoning amendment shall have been adopted by the Elko City
Council prior to filing of the final plat. |
b. The final plat shall conform closely to the approved preliminary plat and be
prepared in accordance with the provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance.
c. The final plat submittal shall include a letter signifying approval of utility easements
by all public utilities involved, and shall be so indicated by an affidavit on the map.
d. A complete set of construction plans for all public improvements associated with
the final plat shall have been approved or substantially approved by the City
Engineer.

Fee: $750.00 + $25.00 per lot including remainder parcels; non-refundable.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation
to support the request.

[ W
Revised 1/24/18 Page 1

AUG 15 2018




Final Plat Checklist as per Elko City Code 3-3-8

Identification Data

Subdivision Name

Location and Section, Township and Range

Name, address and phone number of subdivider

Name, address and phone number of engineer/surveyor

Scale, North Point and Date of Preparation

Location maps

Survey Data (Requir

ed)

Boundaries of the Tract fully balanced and closed

Any exception within the plat boundaries

The subdivision is to be tied to a section corner

Location and description of all physical encroachments

Descriptive Data

Street Layout, location, widths, easements

All drainageways, designated as such

All utility and public service easements

Location and dimensions of all lots, parcels

Residential Lots shall be numbered consecutively

All sites to be dedicated to the public and proposed use

Location of all adjoining subdivisions with name date, book and page

Any private deed restrictions to be imposed upon the plat

Dedication and Acknowledgment

Statement of dedication for items to be dedicated

Execution of dedication ackowledged by a notary public

Additional Information

Street (1, and Monuments identified

Street CL and width shown on map

Location of mounuments used to determine boudaries

Each city boundary line crossing or adjoing the subdivision

Section lines crossing the subdivision boundaries

City Engineer to Check

Closure report for each of the lots

Civil Improvement plans

Estimate of quantities required to complete the improvements

Required Certifications

All parties having record title in the land to be subdivided

Offering for dedication

Clerk of each approving governing body

Easements

Surveyor's Certificate

City Engineer

State Health division

State Engineer

Division of Water Resources

City Council

Revised 1/24/18

Page?2




By My Signature below:

g\ | consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

3 | object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of

this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

ﬂ\ | acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

ﬂ | acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either | or my
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is

scheduled.

\@\ | acknowledge that, if approved, | must provide an AutoCAD file containing the final
subdivision layout on NAD 83 NV East Zone Coordinate System to the City Engineering
Department when requesting final map signatures for recording.

\[Z | have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

Robert E. Morley, P.L.S.

(Please print or type)

640 ldaho Street

Street Address or P.O. Box

Elko, Nevada 89801

City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number:l 775-738-4053
Email address:l remorley@frontiernet.net

Applicant/ Agent

Mailing Address

SIGNATURE: FZrot7 < VA "ZL;%\

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY Biolals X250l {32%;

File No:_|1-1® Date Fitea: _ R [I5/I8 Fee Paid“:g 1300_cr# 150d

Revised 1/24/18 Page 3



Phase 3.txt

RECEIVED
AUG 15 2018

Parcel name: Lot 44

612360.1426

North: 28473550.8913 East
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 59.00
North: 28473511.6062 East
Line <Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00
North: 28473436.9976 East
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 74.00
North: 28473486.2704 East
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 9.55
North: 28473493.3955 East
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 75.45
North: 28473549.6878 East :
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius:
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent:
Cherd:; 21.21 Course:
Course In: S 48-15-09 E Course Out:
RP North: 28473539.7000 East
End North: 28473550.8913 East

Perimeter: 341.56 Area: 7,352

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses,

Error Closure: 0.0000
Error North: 0.00000
Precision 1: 341,560,000.00

612404.1617

612337.5768

612282.3664

612288.7253

612338.9636

15.00

15.00

N 86-44-51 E
N 41-44-51 E
612350.1549

612360.1426

S.F. 0.169 ACRES

Course:
East

radii,

S 90=00=00 E
0.00000

and deltas)

Parcel name: Lot 45

North: 28473511.6062 East

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length:

North: 28473471.6552

Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length:

North: 28473397.0466

Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length:

North: 28473436.9975

Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length:

North: 28473511.6062

Line Course: S 21-04-39 W Length:

North: 28473511.6062

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F.

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses,

Error Closure: 0.0000
Error North: 0.00000

612404.1617

60.00
East
100.00
East :
60.00
East
100.00
East
0.00
East

Course:
East

Page 1

612448.9269

612382.3420

612337.5768

612404.1617

612404.1617

0.138 ACRES

radii, and deltas)

S 90-00-00 E
0.00000




Phase 3.txt
Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 46

North: 28473471.6552 East : 612448.9268

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473431.7042 East : 612493.6920
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473357.0956 East : 612427.1071
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473397.0465 East : 612382.3419
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473471.6552 East : 612448.9268
Line Course: S 31-08-20 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473471.6552 East : 612448.9268

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 47

North: 28473431.7042 East : 612493.6920

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473317.1446 Fast : 612471.8722
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473357.0955 East : 612427.1070
Line <Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473431.7042 East : 612493.6920
Line Course: S 44-32-56 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473431.7042 East : 612493.6920

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East: 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00



Phase 3.txt
Parcel name: Lot 48

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473351.8022 East : 612583.2223
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473277.1936 East : 612516.6374
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473317.1445 East : 612471.8722
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571
Line Course: S 46-10-09 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 49

North: 28473311.8512 East : 612627.9874

Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473351.8021 East : 612583.2222
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473277.1935 East : 612516.6373
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473237.2425 East : 612561.4025
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473311.8512 East : 612627.9874
Line Course: S 36-17-33 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473311.8512 East : 612627.9874

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 50

North: 28473307.5780 East : 612632.7754
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 6.42
North: 28473311.8528 East : 612627.9855

Page 3




Line Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Phase 3.txt

S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

28473237.2442

East

S 48-15-09 E Length: 25.06

28473220.5580

East

S 37-41-16 E Length: 43.58

28473186.0708

BEast

N 41-45-12 E Length: 105.55

28473264.8130
61.56

4-33-04

61.54

S 46-17-55 W
28472729.3656
28473307.5826

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:

East

East

S 01-47-24 E Length: 0.00

28473307.5826

East

612561.4006

612580.0975

612606.7405

612677.0289
775.00

30.80

N 45-58-37 W
N 41-44-51 E
612116.7424
612632.7754

612632.7754

Perimeter: 342.16 Area: 6,912 S.F. 0.159 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0045 Course: N 00-20-13 E
Error North: 0.00452 Fast : 0.00003

Precision 1: 76,037.78

Parcel name: Lot 51

North: 28473264.8082 East 612677.0290
Curve Length: 74.85 Radius: 775.00
Delta: 5-32-02 Tangent: 37.45
Chord: 74.82 Course: S 40-56-04 E
Course In: S 46-17-55 W Course Out: N 51-49-57 E
RP North: 28472729.3608 East: 612116.7425
End North: 28473208.2818 East 612726.0533
Line Course: S 48-00-44 W Length: 108.30
North: 28473135.8321 East 612645.5553
Line Course: N 37-41-16 W Length: 63.48
North: 28473186.0672 East 612606.7463
Line Course: N 41-45-12 E Length: 105.55
North: 28473264.8095 East 612677.0347
Perimeter: 352.18 Area: 7,389 S.F. 0.170 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure:
Error North:
Precision 1:

0.0058
0.00125
60,720.69

(Uses listed courses,

Course:
East

radii,

N U7=25=04 B
0.00562

and deltas)



Parcel name: Lot 52
North: 28473208.2841
Curve Length: 74.85
Delta: 5-32-01
Chord: 74.82
Course In: S 51-49-57 W
RP North: 28472729.3631
End North: 28473147.2966
Line Course: S 50-43-33 W
North: 28473076.9034
Line Course: N 32-39-03 W
North: 28473135.8332
Line Course: N 48-00-44 E
North: 28473208.2829
Perimeter: 364.34 Area:

Mapcheck Closure -

o g T T g e e s S R e e S S —

Error Closure: 0.0032
Error North: -0.00121
Precision 1: 113,856.25
Parcel name: Lot 53
North: 28473147.2961
Curve Length: 74.85
Delta: 5-32-01
Chord: 74.82
Course In: S 57-21-58 W
RP North: 28472729.3626
End North: 28473082.4133
Line Course: S 53-39-25 W
North: 28473018.9794
Line Course: N 32-39-03 W
North: 28473076.9072
Line Course: N 50-43-33 E
North: 28473147.3003
Line Course: S 90-00-00 E
North: 28473147.3003
Perimeter: 361.89 Area:

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure:
Error North:
Precision 1:

0.0063
0.00425
57,442.86

(Uses listed courses,

(Uses listed courses,

Phase 3.txt

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
East
East
111.20
East
69.99
East
108.30
East

Length:
Length:

Length:

7,935 8.F.

Course: S 67-29-22 W
East ~0.00293
East 612769.394¢6
Radius: 775.00
Tangent: 37.45
Course: S 29-52-02 E
Course Out: N 62-53-59 E
East 612116.7410
East 612806.6542
Length: 107.04
East 612720.4353
Length: 68.80
East : 612683.3165
Length: 111.20
East 612769.3993
Length: 0.00
East : 612769.3993
7,824 S.F. 0.180 ACRES
radii, and deltas)
Course: N 47-53-33 E

East

radii,

612726.0514
775.00

37485

S 35-24-03 E
N Si=21=58 8
612116.7405
612769.3940

612683.3113

612645.5504

612726.0484

0.182 ACRES

0.00471

and deltas)



Phase 3.txt

Parcel name: Lot 54
North: 28473069.3312 East 612868.4368
Curve Length: 63.52 Radius: 825.00
Delta: 4-24-42 Tangent: 31.78
Chord: 63.51 Course: N 26-32-30 W
Course In: S 65-39-51 W Course Out: N 61-15-09 E
RP North: 28472729.3617 East 612116.7416
End North: 28473126.1459% East 612840.0585
Line Course: N 63-48-49 E Length: 103.71
North: 28473171.9123 East 612933.1240
Line Course: S 33-34-46 E Length: 76.31
North: 28473108.3370 East 612975.3305
Line Course: S 68-46-47 W Length: 108.63
North: 28473069.0179 East : 612874.0661
Line Course: S 65-39-51 W Length: 5.00
North: 28473066.9574 East 612869.5104
Line Course: N 24-20-09 W Length: 2.61
North: 28473069.3355 East 612868.4349
Perimeter: 359.77 Area: 7,621 S.F. 0.175 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0047 Course: N 24-54-01 W
Error North: 0.0042¢% East -0.00199
Precision 1: 76,548.94
Parcel name: Lot 55
North: 28473126.1460 East 612840.0584
Curve Length: 58.26 Radius: 825.00
Delta: 4-02-46 Tangent: 29.14
Choxrd:s 58.25 Course: N 30-46-14 W
Course In: S 61-15-09 W Course Out: N 57-12-23 E
RP North: 28472729.3618 East 612116.7416
End North: 28473176.19238 East 612810.2588
Line Course: N 57-29-16 E Length: 100.01
North: 28473229.9471 East 612894.5949
Line Course: S 33-34-46 E Length: 69.66
North: 28473171.9120 East 612933.1234
Line Course: S 63-48-49 W Length: 103.71
North: 28473126.1455 East 612840.0578
Perimeter: 331.63 Area: 6,473 S.F. 0.149 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0008 Course: S 50-47-13 W
Error North: -0.00049 East -0.00060
Precision 1: 414,550.00

Page 6



Parcel name: Lot 56
North: 28473176.1939%
Curve Length: 70.23
Delta: 4-52-39%
Chord: 70.21
Course In: S 57-12-23 W
RP North: 28472729.3620
End North: 28473233.5426
Curve Length: 22.40
Delta: 85-33-39
Chord: 20.38
Course In: N 52-19-44 E
RP North: 28473242.7095
End North: 28473253.8373
Line Course: N 47-53-23 E
North: 28473304.2903
Line Course: S 42-06-44 E
North: 28473229.9438
Line Course: S 57-29-16 W
North: 28473176.1904
Line Course: N 90-00-00 W
North: 28473176.1904
Perimeter: 368.09 Area:

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure:
Error North:
Precision 1:

Parcel name:

0.0039
-0.00347
94,384.62

Lot 57

North: 28473304.2895

Line
North:
Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:
Line Course:
North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

28473344.7578
21.47
82-00-04
19.68

St 42=06=37 B
28473333.6300
28473345.1390
S 50-06-33 E
28473290.9020
17.45
49=59="41

Phase 3.txt

Length:
Length:
Length:

Length:

8,568

(Uses listed courses,

East

Course: N 47-53-23 E Length:

Length:

East 612810.2587
Radius: 825.00
Tangent: 35.14
Course: N 35-13-56 W
Course Out: N 52-19-44 E
East 612116.7414
East 612769.7552
Radius: 15.00
Tangent: 13.88
Course: N 05-06-33 E
Course Out: N 42-06-37 W
East 612781.6281
East 612771.5697
75.24
East : 612827.3869%
100.22
East 612894.5930
100.01
East 612810.2569
0.00
East 612810.2569
S.F. 0.197 ACRES
radii, and deltas)
Course: S 28-20-56 W
East -0.00187
612827.3875
60.35
East 612872.1584
Radius: 15.00
Tangent: 13.04
Course: N 88-53-25 E
Course Out: N 39-53-27 E
East 612882.2168
East : 6128%91.8367
84.57
East 612956.7246
Radius: 20.00
Tangent: 9.33

Page 7



Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:

Course:

North:

Course:
North:

Course:
North:

Line

Line

Line

Perimeter:

Mapcheck Closure -

16.90
S 39-53-27 W
28473275.5566
28473275.5965
S 56=37=37 W
28473229.9447
N 42-06-44 W
28473304.2912
N S50-00-00 W
28473304.2912

367.04 Area:

Error Closure: 0.0020
Error North: 0.00171
Precision 1: 183,525.00
Parcel name: Lot 58
North: 28473275.5971
Curve Length: 81.11
Delta: 92-56-48
Chord: 72.51
Course In: N 89-53-08 E
RP North: 28473275.6970
End North: 28473225.7683
Line Course: S 03-03-40 E
North: 28473126.4103
Line Course: S 68-46-47 W
North: 28473108.3343
Line Course: N 33-34-46 W
North: 28473171.9097
Line Course: N 33-34-46 W
North: 28473229.9448
Line Course: N 56-37-37 E
North: 28473275.5966
Line Course: S 90-00-00 E
North: 28473275.5966
Perimeter: 459.51 Area:

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure:
Error North:
Precision 1:

0.0005
-0.00053
919,020.00

(Uses listed courses,

Phase 3.txt
Course: S 25-06-43 E
Course Out: N 89-53-08 E

(Uses listed courses,

East : 612943.8980
East 612963.8980
Length: 82.99
East 612894.5925
Length: 100.22
East : 612827.3865
Length: 0.00
East 612827.3865
8,586 S.F. 0.197 ACRES
radii, and deltas)
Course: N 29-41-16 W
East -0.00098
East 612963.8968
Radius: 50.00
Tangent: 52.64
Course: S 46-35-16 E
Course Out: S 03-03-40 E
East : 613013.8967
East 613016.5668
Length: 99.50
East 613021.8802
Length: 49.94
East 612975.3263
Length: 76.31
East 612933.1198
Length: 69.66
East 612894.5914
Length: 82.99
East 612963.8969
Length: 0.00
East 612963.8969
11,758 S.F. 0.270 ACRES
radii, and deltas)
Course: S 06-41-40 E

East:

0.00006




Phase 3.txt
Parcel name: Lot 59

North: 28473225.7683 East : 613016.5668
Curve Length: 62.48 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 71-36-03 Tangent: 36.06
Chord: 58.50 Course: N 51-08-19 E
Course In: N 03-03-40 W Course Out: S 74-39-43 E
RP North: 28473275.6970 East : 613013.8968
End North: 28473262.4713 East : 613062.1159
Line Course: S 74-39-43 E Length: 262.30
North: 28473193.0894 East : 613315.0733
Line Course: S 80-27-31 W Length: 217.18
North: 28473157.0896 East : 613100.8977
Line Course: S 68-46-47 W Length: 84.76
North: 28473126.4104 East : 613021.8848
Line Course: N 03-03-40 W Length: 99.50
North: 28473225.7684 East : 613016.5714

Perimeter: 726.22 Area: 18,725 S.F. 0.430 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0046 Course: N 89-24-51 E
Error North: 0.00005 East : 0.00455

Precision 13 157,873 .91

Parcel name: Lot 60

North: 28473316.4906 East : 613042.8083
Curve Length: 61.10 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 70-00-42 Tangent: 35.02
€hords 5734 Course: S 19-40-04 E
Course In: S 35-19-35 W Course Out: S 74-39-43 E
RP North: 28473275.6970 East : 613013.8967
End North: 28473262.4714 East: 613062.1157
Line Course: S 74-39-43 E Length: 262.30
North: 28473193.0894 EBast & 6138156 731
Line Course: N 46-55-41 W Length: 204.73
North: 28473332.3029 East : 613165.5185
Line Course: N 54-33-09 W Length: $0.62
North: 28473385.4585 East : 613091.6952
Line Course: S 35-19-35 W Length: 84.54
North: 28473316.4848 East : 613042.8113

Perimeter: 703.28 Area: 19,445 S.F. 0.446 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0066 Course: S 27-18-00 E
Error North: -0.00584 Fast : 0.00301

Precision 1: 106,559.09

Page 9




Parcel name: Lot 61

North: 28473329.2660

Line Course:
North:
Line Course:

North:

Line Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Perimeter:

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure:
Error North:
Precision 1:

s Sk el i e s i A S . o e e s e e e s T el e s o Ao A e e o, i i ) s i, oo it e R B i, il o, sy i S s

N 50-06-33 W
28473351.6483
N 37-00-20 E
28473433.7340
S 54-33=09 E
28473385.4584
S 85=19=35, W
28473316.4847
39.65
45=25=49
38.61
S B5=19=35 W
28473275.6911
28473324.9157
1. 45
49-59-41
16.90
N 10-06-14 W
28473344.6055
28473329.2601

362.57 Area:
0.0059

-0.00584
61,452.54

Parcel name: Lot 62

North: 28473407.8278

Line Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

N 37-00-20 E
28473477.2481
S 54=3833=09 E
28473433.7339
S 37-00-20 W
28473351.6482
N 50-06-33 W
28473374.2229
10.93
31-18-01
10.79
N 89=53=27 E
28473389.5683

Phase 3.txt

East

Length:
Length:
Length:

Length:

612988.7897

34.90
East

102.79

East
83.24

East :

84.54

East :
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:

Course Out:

Efaasit
East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:

Course Out:

8,289

(Uses listed courses,

East

Length:
Length:
Length:

Length:

East
EBEast

612962.0121

613023.8806

613091.6918

613042.8080
50.00

20.93

N 77-23-20 W
N 10-06-14 W
613013.8963
613005.1246
20.00

9. 313

N 75-06-24 W
S 89=58=27 W
613001.6159
612988.7894

S.F. 0.190 ACRES

Course:
East

radii,

S 02=53=81 W
-0.00030

6l2910.431]1

86.93
East
75.03
East
102.79
East
35,20
East
Radius:

Tangent:

Course:

Course Out:

East

Page 10

612962.7536

613023.8766

612962.0081

612935.0002
20.00

5.60

N 34-27-33 W
S 71-11-28 W
612947.8268

and deltas)




Phase 3.txt

End North: 28473383.1200 East 612928.8948
Curve Length: 31.36 Radius: 50.00
Deltay 85=56=09 Tangent: 16.22
Chord: 30.85 Course: N 36-46-36 W
Course In: S 71-11-28 W Course Out: N 35-15-19 E
RP North: 28473366.9994 East 612881.5648
End North: 28473407.8288 East 612910.4259
Line Course: N 08-52-50 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473407.8288 East : 612910.4259
Perimeter: 342.23 Area: 7,239 S.F. 0.166 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0053 Course: N 79-03-06 W

Error North: 0.00101 East -0.00524

Precision 1: 64,573.58

Parcel name: Lot 63

North: 28473414.6415 East 612866.4001
Line Course: N 07-35-56 W Length: 146.26
North: 28473559.6171 East ©12847.0591
Line Course: S 54-33~-09 E Length: 142.02
North: 28473477.2516 East 612962.7553
Line Course: S 37-00-20 W Length: 86.93
North: 28473407.8313 East ©12910.4328
Curve Length: 46.18 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 52-55-02 Tangent: 24.88
Chord: 44.56 Course: N 81-12-12 W
Course In: S 35-15-19 W Course Out: N 17-39-43 W
RP North: 28473367.0019 East 612881.5718
End North: 28473414.6450 East ©12866.4018
Perimeter: 421.39 Area: 9,139 s.F. 0.210 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0039 Course: N 25-04-50 E
Error North: 0.00353 East 0.00165
Precision 1: 108,048.72
Parcel name: Lot 64

North: 28473458.0698

Line Course:
North:
Line Course:
North:

Bast

N 41-44-40 E Length: 136.10
28473559.6170 East
S 07-35-56 E Length: 146.26
28473414.6414 East

Page 11

612756.4434

612847.0601

612866.4011



Phase 3.txt

Curve Length: 48.65 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 55-44-56 Tangent: 26.45
Chord: 46.75 Course: S 44-27-49 W
Course In: S 17-39-43 E Course Out: N 73-24-39 W
RP North: 28473366.9983 East 612881.5711
End North: 28473381.2736 East 612833.6522
Line Course: N 45-09-12 W Length: 108.90
North: 28473458.0712 East 612756.4425
Line Course: S 08-52-50 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473458.0712 East 612756.4425
Perimeter: 439.91 Area: 9,913 S.F. 0.228 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0017 Course: N 32-10-58 W
Error North: 0.00141 East -0.00089%
Precision 1: 258,770.5%
Parcel name: Lot 65
North: 28473398.3800 East 612703.1787
Line Course: N 41-44-40 E Length: 80.00
North: 28473458.0697 East: 612756.4435
Line Course: S 45-09-12 E Length: 108.90
North: 28473381.2722 East 612833.6532
Curve Length: 10.93 Radius: 20.00
Delta: 31-18-02 Tangent: 5.60
Choerd: 10.7%9 Course: S 32-14-22 W
Course In: N 73-24-39 W Course Out: S 42-06-37 E
RP North: 28473386.9823 East 612814.4856
End North: 28473372.1452 East 612827.8968
Line Course: S 47-53-23 W Length: 63.83
North: 28473329.3434 East 612780.5442
Line Course: N 48-15-17 W Length: 103.69
North: 28473398.3823 East 612703.1798
Line Course: N 90-00-00 W Length: 0.00
North: 28473398.3823 East 612703.1798
Perimeter: 367.34 Area: 8,290 S.F. 0.190 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0025 Course: N 26-06-30 E
Error North: 0.00228 East 0.00112
Precision 1: 146,940.00
Parcel name: Lot 66

Page 12



North: 28473398.3800 East 612703.1787
Line Course: S 48-15-17 E Length: 103.69
North: 28473329.3411 East 612780.5431
Line Course: S 47-53-23 W Length: 54.90
North: 28473292.5274 East 612739.8152
Curve Length: 23.29 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 88-58-41 Tangent: 14.73
Ehoenrdi 21 ;02 Course: N 87-37-17 W
Course In: N 42-06-37 W Course Out: S 46-52-04 W
RP North: 28473303.6552 East 612729.7568
End North: 28473293.3999 East 612718.8102
Curve Length: 73.73 Radius: 825.00
Delta: 5-07-13 Tangent: 36.89
chordy 73.70 Course: N 45-41-33 W
Course In: S 46-52-04 W Course Out: N 41-44-51 E
RP North: 28472729.3604 East 612116.7434
End North: 28473344.8817 East 612666.0689
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 7.93
North: 28473350.1619 East 612660.1524
Line Course: N 41-44-40 E Length: 64.62
North: 28473398.3763 East 612703.1770
Line Course: S 90-00-00 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473398.3763 East 612703.1770
Perimeter: 328.16 Area: 6,570 S.F. 0.151 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0041 Course: S 24-14-30 W
Error North: -0.00371 East -0.00167
Precision 1: 80,039.02
Parcel name: Lot 67
North: 28473350.1625 East 612660.1514
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 88.68
North: 28473409.2100 East 612593.9885
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
Chord: 21.21 Course: N 03-15-09 W
Course In: N 41-44-51 E Course Out: N 48-15-09 W
RP North: 28473420.4013 East 612603.9762
End North: 28473430.3890 East : 612592.7849
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 49.62
North: 28473467.4099 East 612625.8244
Line Course: S 48-15-17 E Length: 103.67
North: 28473398.3843 East : 612703.1738
Line Course: S 41-44-40 W Length: 64.62
North: 28473350.1699 East 612660.1492
Line Course: N 30-41-59 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473350.1699 East 612660.1492

Phase 3.txt

Page 13



Phase 3.txt

Perimeter: 330.16 Area: 6,651 S.F. 0.153 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0077 Course: N 16-43-22 W
Error North: 0.00736 East : -0.00221

Precision 1: 42,876.62

Parcel name: Lot 68

North: 28473467.4083 East : 612625.8264
Line Course: S 48-15-17 E Length: 103.67
North: 28473398.3827 East : 612703.1758
Line Course: N 41-44-40 E Length: 80.00
North: 28473458.0724 East 612756.4406
Line Course: N 48-15-19 W Length: 80.37
North: 28473511.5838 East : 612696.4750
Curve Length: 56.70 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 64-58-12 Tangent: 31.84
Chord: 53.71 Course: S 59-15-27 W
Course In: N 63-13-39 W Course Out: S 01-44-33 W
RP North: 28473534.1063 East 612651.8349
End North: 28473484.1294 East 612650.3145
Curve Length: 17.45 Radius: 20.00
Delta: 49-59-42 Tangent: 9.33
Chord: 16.90 Course: S ©66-44-42 W
Course In: S 01-44-33 W Course Out: N 48-15-09 W
RP North: 28473464.1386 East : 612649.7064
End North: 28473477.4556 East 612634.7846
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 13.46
North: 28473467.4133 East : 612625.8223
Line Course: S 90-00-00 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473467.4133 East 612625.8223
Perimeter: 351.65 Area: 7,196 S.F. 0.165 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0065 Course: N 38-48-39 W
Error North: 0.00505 East -0.00406
Precision 1: 54,100.00

Parcel name: Lot 69

North:
Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:

28473511.5796 East

64.43 Radius:
73-50-06 Tangent:
60.07 Course:

Page 14

612696.4796
50.00

37.56

N 10-08-42 W




Course In:

N 63-13-39 W

Phase 3.txt
Course Out:

N 42-56-15 E

RP North: 28473534.1020 East 612651.8395
End North: 28473570.7069 East : 612685.8995
Line Course: N 42-56-15 E Length: 85.16
North: 28473633.0523 East : 612743.9105
Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length: 126.62
North: 28473559.6182 East : 612847.0611
Line Course: S 41-44-40 W Length: 136.10
North: 28473458.0710 East : 612756.4445
Line Course: N 48-15-19 W Length: 80.37
North: 28473511.5824 East 612696.4789
Line Course: N 03-34-35 W Length: 0.00
North: 28473511.5824 East 612696.4789
Perimeter: 492.68 Area: 15,110 S.F. 0.347 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0029 Course: N 13-24-13 W

Error North: 0.00278 East -0.00066
Precision 1: 169,889.66
Parcel name: Lot 70

North: 28473581.5078 East 612635.9433
Line Course: N 48-15-19 W Length: 88.98
North: 28473640.7518 East : 612569.5537
Line Course: N 46-08-47 E Length: 96.52
North: 28473707.6226 East 612639.1554
Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length: 128.59
North: 28473633.0460 East 612743.9109
Line Course: S 42-56-15 W Length: 85.16
North: 28473570.7006 East : 612685.8999
Curve Length: 53.65 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 61-28-29 Tangent: 29.73
Gherdy S .10 Course: N 77-48-00 W
Course In: S 42-56-15 W Course Out: N 18-32-14 W
RP North: 28473534.0957 East : 612651.8399
End North: 28473581.5016 East 612635.9439
Line Course: S 43-37-31 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473581.5016 East : 612635.9439
Perimeter: 452.90 Area: 12,635 S.F. 0.290 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0062 Course: S 05-10-00 E
Error North: -0.00618 East 0.00056
Precision 1: 73,048.39



Parcel name:

North: 28473581.8964 East 61250 Q211
Line Course: S 48-30-52 E Length: 107.41
North: 28473510.7447 East 612597.4844
Curve Length: 17.45 Radius: 20.00
Delta: 49-59-41 Tangent: 9.33
Chord: 16.%90 Course: N 16-45-01 E
Course In: N 48-15-09 W Course Out: N 81-45-10 E
RP North: 28473524.0617 East 612582.5626
End North: 28473526.9306 East 612602.3558
Curve Length: 69.56 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 79-42-36 Tangent: 41.74
Chord: 64.08 Course: N 31-36-28 E
Course In: N 81-45-10 E Course Out: N 18-32-14 W
RP North: 28473534.1028 East : 612651.8387
End North: 28473581.5087 East 612635.9427
Line Course: N 48-15-19 W Length: 88.98
North: 28473640.7527 East 612569, 5531
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 78.89
North: 28473581.8940 East : 612517.0242
Perimeter: 362.30 Area: 7,099 S.F. 0.163 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0040 Course: S 51-25-09 E
Error North: -0.0024% East 0.00312
Precision 1l: 90,572.50
Parcel name: Lot 72
North: 28473581.8964 East 612517.0211
Line Course: S 48-30-52 E Length: 107.41
North: 28473510.7447 East 612597.4844
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.08
North: 28473463.6816 East : 612555.4826
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: %0-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
€hordsz 21 .20 Course: S 86-44-51 W
Course In: N 48-15-09 W Course Out: S 41-44-51 W
RP North: 28473473.6693 East 612544.2913
End North: 28473462.4780 East 612534.3036
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 92.41
North: 28473524.0091 East 612465.3577
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 77.59
North: 28473581.8980 East 612517.0210
Perimeter: 364.05 Area: 8,312 S.F. 0.191 ACRES

Phase 3.txt

Lot 71

Page 16



Phase 3.txt

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0015 Course: N 05-02-22 W
Error North: 0.00153 East : -0.00014

Precision 1: 242,700.00

Parcel name: Lot 73

North: 28473588.1356 East : 612393.4351
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 96.40
North: 28473524.0077 East : 612465.3579
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 77.59
North: 28473581.8966 East : 612517.0211
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.40
North: 28473656.0722 East : 612433.5071
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 62.59
North: 28473609.3746 East : 612392.2316
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
Chenrdy 21 21 Course: S 03-15-09 E
Course In: S 48-15-09 E Course Out: S 41-44-51 W
RP North: 28473599.3869 East : 612403.4229
End North: 28473588.1956 East : 612393.4351

Perimeter: 371.54 Area: 8,595 S.F. 0.197 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: N 00-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 371,540,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 74

North: 28473656.0721 East : 612433.9072

Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 78.89

North: 28473714.9309 East : 612486.4360
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.40

North: 28473640.7553 East : 612569.5500
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 78.89

North: 28473581.8965 East : 612517.0212
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.40

North: 28473656.0721 East : 612433.9072
Line Course: N 42-11-04 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473656.0721 East : 612433.9072

Perimeter: 380.58 Area: 8,788 S.F. 0.202 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Page 17



Phase 3.txt
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000
Precision 1: 380,580,000.00

T T T . . S . . O . . O . L e e i

Parcel name: Lot 75

North: 28473714.9308 East : 612486.4361

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.40

North: 28473640.7552 East : 612569.5501
Line Course: N 46-08-47 E Length: 96.52

North: 28473707.6260 East : 612639.1519
Line Course: N 54-33-09 W Length: 105.44

North: 28473768.7767 East : 612553.2554
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 14.00

North: 28473778.0986 East : 612542.8102
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 84.67

North: 28473714.9274 East : 612486.4328
Line Course: S 43-28-06 E Length: 0.00

North: 28473714.9274 East : 612486.4328

Perimeter: 412.03 Area: 10,309 S.F. 0.237 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0047 Course: S 44-02-34 W
Error North: -0.00339 East : -0.00328

Precision 1: 87,665.96

Parcel name: Lot 76

North: 28473875.3134 East : 612433.8827

Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 25.00

North: 28473891.9596 East : 612415.2306
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473844.5085 East : 612372.8826
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473770.5992 East : 612455.6982
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473818.0503 East : 612498.0462
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 86.00

North: 28473875.3134 East : 612433.8827

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00
Page 18



Phase 3.txt

Parcel name: Lot 77

North: 28473844.5086 East : 612372.8825

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473770.5993 East : 612455.6981
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473723.1482 East : 612413.3501
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473797.0575 East : 612330.5345
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: €3.60

North: 28473844.5086 East : 612372.8825
Line Course: N 32-00-19 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473844.5086 East : 612372.8825

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 78

North: 28473797.0575 East : 612330.5345

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473723.1483 East : 612413.3501
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473675.6972 East : 612371.0021
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473749.6064 East : 612288.1865
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473797.0575 East : 612330.5345
Line Course: N 01-47-24 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473797.0575 East : 612330.5345

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 79



Phase 3.txt

North: 28473749.6065 East : 612288.1864

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473675.6972 East : 612371.0020
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473628.2461 East : 612328.6540
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473749.6065 East : 612288.1864
Line Course: N 80-00-00 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473749.6065 East : 612288.1864

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 80

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473628.2462 East : 612328.6539
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: €3.60

North: 28473580.7951 East : 612286.3059
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473654.7043 East : 612203.4903
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384
Line Course: N 29-21-28 E Length: 0.00

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 81

North: 28473654.7044 East : 612203.4903
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60
North: 28473607.2533 East : 612161.1423

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00
Page 20



Phase 3.txt

North: 28473533.3440 East 612243.9579
Line <Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60
North: 28473580.7951 East 612286.3059
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00
North: 28473654.7044 East 612203.4903
Line Course: N 48-21-59 W Length: 0.00
North: 28473654.7044 East 612203.4903
Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

Parcel name: Street Dedication

North: 28472369.4166 East 613949.2330

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00
North: 28472329.4656 East 613993.9982
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 226.15
North: 28472160.7382 East 613843.4164
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
Chord: 21.21 Course: S 03-15-09 E
Course In: S 48-15-09 E Course Out: S 41-44-51 W
RP North: 28472150.7504 East 613854.6077
End North: 28472139.5592 East 613844.6200
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 188.81
North: 28472013.8402 East: 613985.4886
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
Chord: 21.21 Course: N 86-44-51 E
Course In: N 41-44-51 E Course Out: S 48-15-09 E
RP North: 28472025.0315 East 613995.4763
End North: 28472015.0437 East 614006.6676
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.08
North: 28472062.1069 East 614048.6694
Curve Length: 17.45 Radius: 20.00
Delta: 49-59-41 Tangent: 9.33
Chord: 16.90 Course: N 16-45-01 E
Course In: N 48-15-09 W Course Out: N 81-45-10 E
RP North: 28472075.4239 East 614033.7476
End North: 28472078.2927 East 614053.5408
Curve Length: 244.34 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 279-5%9-23 Tangent: 41.96
Chord: 64.29 Course: S 48-15-09 E
Course In: N 81-45-10 E Course Out: S 01-44-33 W
RP North: 28472085.4650 East 614103.0237
End North: 28472035.4881 East 614101.5033

Page 21




Curve Length:

Delta:

Chord:

Course 1In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:

North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course 1In:

RP North:

End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

17.45
49-59-42
16.90

S 01-44-33 W
28472015.4973
28472028.8143

Phase 3.txt
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
East
East

S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.08

28471981.7512
23.56
90-00-00
Zl 5 21

S 48-15-09 E
28471971.7635
28471960.5722

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
East
East :

S 48-15-09 E Length: 96.61

28471896.2445
18 +US

5-07-13

13.70

S 41-44-51 W
28471280.7232
28471844.7627
238,49
88-58-41
G0

N 46-52-04 E
28471855.0180
28471843.8902

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:

East

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:

East

East

N 47-53-23 E Length: 118.73

28471923.5057
10.93
31-18-02
10,79

N 42-06-37 W
28471938.3428
28471932.6327
126.19
144-36-07

9l5. 27

Si 13=24=39.'F
28471918.3573
28471934.4779
16.93
31=18=01

10 .79

NE Fi=U1E=28 E
28471940.9262
28471925.5808

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:

East

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:

East

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course OQut:

East

East

S 50-06-33 E Length: 70.10

28471880.6238
17 .45
49-59-41
16.90

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Couirises

Page 22

20.00

9.313

S 66-44-42 W
N 48-15-09 W
614100.8952
614085.9734

614043.9717
15.00

15.00

St 88=15=09 E
S 41-44-51 W
614055.1630
614045.1752

614117.2547
825.00

36.89
S-45-41=338l'F
N 46-52-04 E
613567.9291
614169.9959
15.00

14.7%3

S BU=3=17 E
S 42-06-37 E
614180.9426
614191.0010

614279.0815
20.00

5.60

N 32-14-22 E
S 324539 E
614265.6703
614284.8378
50.00

156.68

N 88-53-25 E
N 71-11-28 E
614332.7566
614380.0866
20.00

5.60

Sk 84=27=33 E
S B9=53=27 W
614399.0186
614386.1921

614439.9775
20.00

9.313

S 75-06-24 E



Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:

Line Course:

North:

Line Course:

North:

Line Course:

North:
Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:

Curve

Line Course:

North:
Length:
Delta:

Curve

N 39-53-27 E
28471895.9692
28471876.2794
244.34
219=59=22
64.29

S 10-06-14 E
28471827.0548
28471826.9549
L. 45
49-59-41
16.90

S 89-53-08 W
28471826.9150
28471842.2603

Phase 3.txt
Course Out: S 10-06-14 E
East : ©14452.8041
East : 614456.3127
Radius: 50.00
Tangent: 41.96
Course: S 39-53-27 W
Course Out: S 89-53-08 W
FEast : 614465.0844
East : 614415.0845
Radius: 20.00
Tangent: 9.33
Course: N 25-06-43 W
Course Out: N 39-53-27 E
East : 614395.0845
East : 614407.9111

N 50-06-33 W Length: 84.57

28471896.4973
21.47
82-00-04
12.68

S 39-53-27 W
28471884.9883
28471896.1162

East : 6©14343.0233
Radius: 15.00
Tangent: 13.04
Course: S 88-53-25 W
Course Out: N 42-06-37 W
EFast : 614333.4033
East : 614323.3450

S 47-53-23 W Length: 135.59

28471805.1950
22.40
85=33=39
20.38

S 42-06-37 E
28471794.0671
28471784.3002
192.01
13-20-07
191.58

S 52-19-44 w
28471280.7196
28471620.6891

East : 614222.7568
Radius: 15.00
Tangent: 13.88
Course: S 05-06-33 W
Course Out: S 52-19-44 W
East : 614232.8152
East : 614220.9422
Radius: 825.00
Tangent: 96.44
Course: S 31-00-12 E
Course Out: N 65-39-51 E
East : 613567.9285
East : ©614315.6237

S 24-20-09 E Length: 2.61

28471618.3110

East : 614320.6992

S 65-39-51 W Length: 50.00

28471597.7068

East : 614275.1420

N 24-20-09 W Length: 2.61

28471600.0849
323.50
23-55-00
828 . 1§

S 65-39-51 W
28471280.7196
28471858.9366

FEast : ©614274.0664
Radius: 775.00
Tangent: 164.14
Course: N 36-17-39 W
Course Out: N 41-44-51 E
Fast : 613567.9285
Fast : 614083.9615

N 48-15-09 W Length: 365.42

28472102.2512
23:.916
90-00-00

East : 613811.3266
Radius: 15.00
Tangent: 15.00
Page 23



Phase 3.txt

Chord: 21.21 Course: S 86-44-51 W
Course In: S 41-44-51 W Course Out: N 48-15-09 W
RP North: 28472091.0599 East : 613801.3389
End North: 28472101.0476 East : 613790.1476
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 75.45
North: 28472044.7554 East : 613739.9093
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00
North: 28472084.7063 East : 613695.1441
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 381.60
North: 28472369.4129 East : 613949.2321
Line Course: S 32-00-19 E Length: 0.00
North: 28472369.4129 East : 613949.2321

Perimeter: 3501.57 Area: 95,280 S.F. 2.187 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0038 Course: S 13-46-59 W
Error North: -0.00367 East : -0.00090

Precision 1: 921,468.42

S T e s B i i o e s o i oS s o i i Rl ] o g St ! e i e i i o i W oo e e T el i e o e s i i o et S e i e Bt o

Parcel name: Total Area

North: 28472443.3259 East : 613866.4175
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 185.00
North: 28472320.1438 East : 614004.4435
Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length: 751.56
North: 28471884.2716 East : 614616.6998
Line Course: S 46-55-41 E Length: 204.73
North: 28471744.4581 East : 614766.2544
Line Course: S 80-27-31 W Length: 217.18
North: 28471708.4584 East : 614552.0789
Line Course: S 68-46-47 W Length: 243.33
North: 28471620.3840 East : 614325.2477
Line Course: S 65-39-51 W Length: 55.00
North: 28471597.7193 East : 614275.1346
Line Course: N 24-20-09 W Length: 2.61
North: 28471600.0974 East : 614274.0591
Curve Length: 37.39 Radius: 775.00
Delta: 2-45-52 Tangent: 18.70
Chord: 37.39 Course: N 25-43-05 W
Course In: S 65-39-51 W Course Out: N 62-53-59 E
RP North: 28471280.7321 East : 613567.9212
End North: 28471633.7828 East : 614257.8344
Line Course: S 53-39-25 W Length: 107.04
North: 28471570.3489 East : 614171.6155
Line Course: N 32-39-03 W Length: 138.79
North: 28471687.2064 East : 614096.7357
Line Course: N 37-41-16 W Length: 107.06
North: 28471771.9288 East : 614031.2837

Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 399.06
Page 24



Phase 3.txt

North: 28472037.6426 East : 613733.5505
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 9.55

North: 28472044.7677 East : 613739.9093
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 171.00

North: 28472158.6279 East : 613612.3286
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 381.60

North: 28472443.3345 East : 613866.4166

Perimeter: 3010.90 Area: 420,362 S.F. 9.650 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0086 Course: N 06-12-57 W
Error North: 0.00852 East : -0.00093

Precision 1: 350,104.65

Page 25



QUINLAN"‘ July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14

Zoning Bulletin

in this issue:

Notice/Authority—When neighbor does not receive notice of landowner’s
Act 250 application, district commission issues second notice

Hearings and meetings in general—Planning Commission holds hearing on
permit, but Board of Commissioners fails to provide for notice for hear-
ing before approving same permit

Structures and Scale—Zoning board finds by-law limiting scale of new
construction does not apply to an applicant’s proposed new construction

Vested Rights—After applicant files building permit for farm structures,
town zones land as non-agricultural

Zoning News from Around the Nation

THOMSON REUTERS® Mat #42078518

11



July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14 Zoning Bulletin

Notice/Authority—When neighbor
does not receive notice of
landowner’s Act 250 application,
district commission issues second
notice

Applicant contends district commission lacks authority to
issue second notice after permit is final

Contributors
Corey E. Burnham-Howard

For authorization to photocopy, please contact the West’'s Copyright Clear-
ance Center at 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, USA (978) 750-
8400; fax (978) 646-8600 or West's Copyright Services at 610 Opperman
Drive, Eagan, MN 55123, fax (651) 687-7551. Please outline the specific ma-
terial involved, the number of copies you wish to distribute and the purpose or
format of the use. |

This publication was created to provide you with accurate and authoritative in-
formation concerning the subject matter covered, however, this publication
was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed to practice law in a particu-
lar jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal or other profes-
sional advice and this publication is not a substitute for the advice of an
attorney. If you require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser-
vices of a competent attorney or other professional.

Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 610 Op-
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. For subscription
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing,
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753.

POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bulletin, 610 Opperman
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526.

THOMSON REUTERS®

610 Opperman Drive
P.0. Box 64526
St. Paul, MN 55164-0526
1-800-229-2084
email: west.customerservice@thomsonreuters.com
ISSN 0514-7905
©2018 Thomson Reuters
All Rights Reserved
Quinlan™ is a Thomson Reuters brand

2 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14

Citation: In re Mathez Act 250 LU Permit, 2018 VT 55, 2018 WL 2382006
(Vt. 2018)

VERMONT (05/25/18)—This case addressed the issue of whether a district
commission had the authority to issue a second notice for a final Act 250
permit when a neighbor did not receive notice of the permit before it became
final, and the neighbor failed to timely appeal.

The Background/Facts: Act 250 is Vermont’s land use and development
law under which statutes dictate procedures related to permit applications.
(See, e.g. 10 V.S.A. § 6084). Nine district commissions review Act 250 ap-
plications and issue decisions and land use permits. Under Act 250’s statutory
application process, applicants are required to list on their application, adjoin-
ing landowners and those with a “significant interest in the affected property”
so that those with an interest have notice of the permit application and can
request a hearing on the permit if desired.

On May 9, 2016, Lori and Richard Mathez (the “Applicants*) applied for
an Act 250 permit to build a steel building for commercial vehicle repair and
body shop. Applicants listed their neighbor, Wyle Solomon, but not his spouse,
Sung-Hee Chung (“Neighbor”). Neighbor therefore did not receive an Act 250
notice of Applicants’ permit application, and thus did not request a hearing
before the permit issued, without a hearing, on June 15, 2016.

On July 21, 2016, Neighbor learned about the permit, yet she did not seek
to challenge or appeal the permit. Still, having been advised that Neighbor had
not received notice about the permit, the District Commission, on August 25,
2016, sent out a second Act 250 notice for the permit. That second notice
stated that the District Commission was “again reviewing [Applicants’] ap-
plication under Act 250 Rule 51" and would decide “the status of [the] permit

. . as a component of its current application review.*

The Applicants appealed the second notice to the Superior Court, Environ-
mental Division. The court held that in issuing a second notice, the District
Commission “attempted to void or revoke* the permit, which was analogous
to a collateral attack on a final decision, and the Commission lacked the author-
ity to do so. Having determined that the second notice was therefore beyond
the Commission’s authority, the court granted summary judgment in favor of
the Applicants, and ordered the District Commission to vacate its decision to
issue a second notice of the permit.

Neighbor appealed. Neighbor argued that the District Commission had
authority to issue the second notice of the permit because “the District Com-
mission was correcting an error, not adjudicating the final permit a second
time, and the Commission has express, inherent, and implied authority to cor-
rect errors.”

DECISION: Judgment of Superior Court, Environmental Division,
affirmed.

The Supreme Court of Vermont concluded that Neighbor’s arguments
“miss[ed] the mark,” and held that, “[wlithout deciding whether a District
Commission ever at any time has authority to issue a second notice of a permit
. . . the Commission did not have that authority here.”

In so holding, the court acknowledged that “Act 250 and its rules authorize

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 3




July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14 Zoning Bulletin

the District Commission to grant or deny permits and to correct application er-
rors in certain circumstances.” (See 10 V.S.A.§ 6025(b)(3) (authorizing Natu-
ral Resources Board to create procedures for District Commission to approve
Act 250 permits); Act 250 Rules, Rule 30 (directing District Commission to
approve, approve with conditions, or deny permit applications); Act 250 Rules,
Rule 31 (allowing District Commission to alter Act 250 permits in certain cir-
cumstances); Act 250 Rules, Rule 34 (authorizing District Commission to
amend permit in certain circumstances).) The court also acknowledged that
aggrieved parties could challenge an issued permit. (See 10 V.S.A. § 8504(a)
(authorizing appeal of District Commission decision to Environmental
Division).) However, the court emphasized that such “opportunities are
circumscribed; they do not give the Commission open-ended authority to
change a permit or an aggrieved party unlimited opportunity to appeal.”’

Here, the court found, in light of the lack of required notice, Neighbor had
the legal option of requesting that the court extend or reopen the time to appeal.
(V.R.AP. 4.) The court further found that Neighbor did not do so. ”Having
failed to appeal through an authorized procedure,” Neighbor could not then
appeal Applicants’ permit “through this alternative second-notice process,”
determined the court. The District Commission, said the court, ”is limited by
the applicable statutes and rules and cannot create an alternative mechanism
for review.” In so concluding, the court recognized “the tension between fair-
ness and the finality of judgments that exists in all types of cases,” but found
that “to protect and balance these competing interests,” “existing procedural
rules already set the balance between finality and fairness” through avenues
which Neighbor here did not take advantage.

See also: In re Mahar Conditional Use Permit, 2018 VT 20, 183 A.3d 1136
(Vt. 2018).

See also: In re Treetop Development Co. Act 250 Development, 201 Vt.
532, 2016 VT 20, 143 A.3d 1086 (2016 ).

Case Note:

In its decision, the court also addressed the procedural issue of whether the issuance of
the second permit notice was properly before the Supreme Court for interlocutory
review. The court concluded that interlocutory review was appropriate because the
matter challenged was whether the District Commission “clearly exceeded its jurisdic-
tion,”“ and “delaying review until the final decision would harm the parties.

4 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14

Hearings and meetings in general—
Planning Commission holds
hearing on permit, but Board of
Commissioners fails to provide for
notice for hearing before approving
same permit

Neighbors contend board's failure to notice hearing
violated Georgia’s Zoning Procedures Law, but board
says law only requires one noticed hearing per permit

Citation: Hoechstetter v. Pickens County, 2018 WL 2465513 (Ga. 2018)

GEORGIA (06/04/18)—This case addressed the issue of whether a hearing
before a county planning commission afforded interested citizens a meaning-
ful opportunity to be heard by the county board of commissioners on an ap-
plication for a conditional use permit, and thus satisfied the notice-and-hearing
requirements of the Zoning Procedures Law.

The Background/Facts: In August 2015, Doug and Lynda Tatum (the
“Tatums”) applied for a conditional use permit for a 75-acre parcel in Pickens
County (the “County*). Following publication of notice, in October 2015, the
County Planning Commission held a hearing on the permit application. Sev-
eral neighbors appeared at the hearing and objected to the application. Never-
theless, the Planning Commission approved the permit application. At its
January 2016 meeting, the County Board of Commissioners (the “Board”)
also approved the permit.

Some of the neighbors (the “Neighbors”) then filed a petition for judicial
review. The Neighbors argued that they were denied a meaningful opportunity
to be heard on the application. In particular, the Neighbors asserted that the
Board failed to give notice as required by Georgia’s Zoning Procedures Law
(“ZPL”) of the January 2016 Board meeting at which the Board approved the
Tatums’ permit.

Pursuant to the ZPL, before a county or municipality makes a ”zoning deci-
sion,* it must afford affected landowners and other interested citizens an op-
portunity to be heard. To that end, it must “provide for a hearing” on the
proposed zoning decision and publish notice of that hearing. (See OCGA § 36-
66-4 (a).)

The Board maintained that the hearing for which notice was required under
the ZPL was not its January 2016 meeting, but rather, the October 2015 hear-
ing before the Planning Commission—for which proper notice had been given.

The superior court agreed with the Board, holding that the notice of the
October 2015 hearing was enough to satisfy the ZPL.

The neighbors appealed, and the Court of Appeals affirmed.

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 5




July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14 Zoning Bulletin

The Supreme Court of Georgia then issued a writ of certiorari to review the
decision of the Court of Appeals.

DECISION: Judgment of Court of Appeals reversed.

Agreeing with the Neighbors, the Supreme Court of Georgia held that
because the January Board meeting was “too attenuated in time or circum-
stances® from the Planning Commission’s October decision, it did not afford
interested citizens a meaningful opportunity to be heard by the Board on the
permit application, and therefore another hearing was required for the Board’s
January 2016 meeting in order to satisfy the notice-and-hearing requirements
of the ZPL.

In so holding, the court agreed with the Board that “a hearing is not required
at every stage of the process that leads up to a zoning decision,” and “what the
statute requires is one hearing during the continuous course of a zoning matter
fore the local government.” Nevertheless, the court found that only one hear-
ing in this case was insufficient to afford the Neighbors a meaningful op-
portunity to be heard on the permit application. The court said this was
because: the Planning Commission had no authority to make a final zoning de-
cision; and although the Planning Commission could make recommendations
to the Board, here there was not an adequate record of the hearing before the
Planning Commission made and transmitted to the Board—such that the final
zoning decision of the Board could be said to have been meaningfully
informed by what happened at the Planning Commission’s hearing. Rather,
the Board received only a one-page memorandum about the Planning Com-
mission’s October hearing, which noted “considerable objections from the
surrounding neighbors in attendance,* but “failled] to disclose even the gen-
eral nature of those ‘considerable objections.” “The court could not find how
the memorandum informed the Board in a “meaningful way” of what hap-
pened at the hearing. Accordingly, the court concluded that it could not find
that the hearing before the Planning Commuission afforded interested citizens a
meaningful opportunity to be head by the Board on the Tatums’ permit
application. Thus, the court concluded that the October 2015 hearing did not
satisfy the notice-and-hearing requirements of the ZPL.

See also: City of Roswell v. Outdoor Systems, Inc., 274 Ga. 130, 549 S.E.2d
90 (2001).

6 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulietin July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14

Structures and Scale—Zoning
board finds by-law limiting scale of
new construction does not apply to
an applicant’s proposed new
construction

Abutting landowners challenge that determination and
urge a different interpretation of the by-law and its
applicability

Citation: Sinaikov. Zoning Board of Appeals of Provincetown, 93 Mass.
App. Ct. 274 (May 25, 2018)

MASSACHUSETTS (05/25/18)—This case addressed the issue of the ap-
plication of a municipal zoning by-law to a proposed new construction. The
case involved the interpretation and application of the by-law.

The Background/Facts: Stanley Sikorski (“Sikorski‘‘) apparently agreed
to purchase a vacant lot (the “Lot*) in the Town of Provincetown (the “Town*).
The purchase was contingent on Sikorski obtaining a building permit. Sikorski
proposed to build a two-and-a-half story single-family home, totaling 33,810
cubic feet in volume.

Section 2640 of the Town’s zoning by-law was “applicable to all new build-
ings and all additions in all zoning districts in [the Town].” Section 2640
regulated the scale of new construction and additions. Its purpose was to
preserve the Town’s existing character of “buildings that have relatively con-
sistent and harmonious scale within neighborhoods, and to prevent the
construction of “[nlewer buildings, where the appropriate scale has not been
maintained, [that] have disrupted the character of the neighborhoods.” To
serve that purpose, the by-law limited the size of new buildings and building
additions that could be constructed. More specifically, new buildings were al-
lowed, as of right, in a scale up to 25% larger than the average size of existing
buildings in the area (the “neighborhood average*). The by-law dictated that,
with regard to new construction, the neighborhood average was to be
calculated based on existing structures that lie within 250 feet of the center of
the parcel—with “ ’the largest and smallest structures’ within that radius . . .
to be excluded.”“ Landowners seeking to construct a larger building than could
be built as of right could apply for a special permit from the Town’s Zoning
Board of Appeals (the ‘“Board*).

When Sikorski applied for a building permit for his proposed home, the
building commissioner determined that by-law § 2640—and its scale limita-
tions—was not applicable. The building commissioner so determined because
in calculating the “neighborhood average* structure scale, only two nearby
structures lay within 250 feet of the center of Sikorski’s Lot (with the mean
volume of those structures being 6,380 cubic feet). The building commis-

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 7



July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14 Zoning Bulletin

sioner determined that since § 2640 dictated that the “largest and smallest
structures” within 250 feet be excluded from the scale calculation for proposed
new construction, then § 2640 placed “no constraints on the size of building
that Sikorski could build as of right.”

Jonathan Sinaiko and Camille Cabrey (the “Abutters*) appealed the build-
ing commissioner’s decision. They argued that the plain language of § 2640
required its application to all new construction—including that proposed by
Sikorski, and that, as applied, the by-law required Sikorski to seek a special
permit for his proposed building since its 33,810 cubic feet in volume was
over five times as large as the 6,380 cubic foot mean volume of the two
structures within 250 feet of the center of Sikorski’s Lot.

The Board affirmed the building commissioner’s decision. The Board
agreed with the building commissioner’s interpretation of the application of
§ 2640, and found that, in this case, “there [was] no scale calculation proce-
dure to follow.”

The Abutters appealed. Finding there was not material issue of fact in
dispute, and deciding the matter based on the law alone, the superior court af-
firmed the Board’s decision. The court reasoned that§ 2640 was “ambiguous
because it did not address how the neighborhood average was to be calculated
in the circumstances of this case (i.e., where there are only two structures
within the 250-foot radius of the center of the parcel). The court found it rea-
sonable for the Board to concluded that “where no qualifying structures exist
in the 250[-]foot radius, there is no existing scale which must be protected.

The Abutters again appealed.
DECISION: Judgment of superior court reversed.

The Appeals Court of Massachusetts agreed with the Abutters’ arguments.
It held that by its plain language, § 2640 was “applicable to all new build-
ings,“ and the Board was therefore “not free to determine that the by-law
simply [was] inapplicable.*

Having determined that§ 2640 applied to Sikorski’s proposed structure, the
court next looked at how the neighborhood scale average was to be calculated
in the circumstances presented. The court concluded that there was an inter-
pretation of the by-law that would “accord both its language and its express
purpose.” The court found that “[n]othing in the language of § 2640 com-
pelled the building commissioner to exclude existing structures when doing so
would leave him without a basis upon which to set a neighborhood average.”
In fact, the court found that “the specific language of the by-law cuts in the
other direction.” Finding that the terms “largest* and *“smallest* that appear in
the by-law properly are used only in relation to three or more items, the court
concluded that “a grammatically correct reading of the by-law’s plain
language, the directive that the building commissioner exclude the ’largest’
and ‘smallest’ structures in calculating a neighborhood average would apply
only where there are three or more structures within 250 feet of the applicable
measuring point.” Applying such an interpretation here, the court found that
the two structures within 250 feet of the applicable measuring point would not
be excluded in calculating the neighborhood average.

With Sikorski’s proposed structure having a volume five times greater than

8 © 2018 Thomson Reuters




Zoning Bulletin July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14

the mean volume of the two structures within the 250-foot radius, the court
agreed with the Abutters that the proposed building was “too large to be ap-
proved . . . without a special permit.

See also: MacGibbon v. Board of Appeals of Duxbury, 356 Mass. 635, 255
N.E.2d 347, 1 Env't. Rep. Cas. (BNA) 1122 (1970).

Vested Rights—After applicant files
building permit for farm structures,
town zones land as non-agricultural

Applicant contends Wisconsin’s Building Permit Rule
applies to land and not just structures, thus vesting its
right to agricultural use

Citation: Golden Sands Dairy LLC v. Town of Saratoga, 2018 WI 61, 2018
WL 2710392 (Wis. 2018)

WISCONSIN (06/05/18)-—This case addressed the issue of whether the
Building Permit Rule—which vests the right to use property consistent with
current zoning at the time a building permit application that strictly conforms
to all applicable zoning regulations is filed—applies to all land specifically
identified in the building permit application, or whether it applies merely to
structures.

The Background/Facts: In June 2012, Golden Sands Dairy, LLC (“Golden
Sands*) filed a building permit application with the Town of Saratoga (the
“Town®). Golden Sands sought to operate a farm on 6,388 acres in and around
the Town. In furtherance of that use, Golden Sands’ building permit applica-
tion sought to build seven farm structures on 92 acres of the 6,388 acres. At-
tached to Golden Sands’ building permit application was a map of the property.
The map highlighted the agricultural land in blue and the land on which the
building structures would be constructed in yellow. The map was based on a
U.S. Geological Survey topographical map that contained details such as
county borders, roads, and latitude and longitude.

At the time Golden Sands filed its building permit application, the Town
did not have any zoning ordinances, and the county zoning ordinance zoned
the land as “unrestricted, meaning it could be used for any lawful purpose. In
October 2012, the Town passed a permanent zoning ordinance, which was
ratified by the county in November 2012. Under the Town’s new zoning
ordinance, only 2% of the town—and none of Golden Sands’ land-—was zoned
for agricultural use. Accordingly, Golden Sands’ planned dairy farming opera-
tion did not conform to the zoning ordinance.

Ultimately, in light of its new zoning ordinance, the Town refused to issue
the building permit to Golden Sands. Golden Sands then filed a mandamus ac-
tion to compel the Town to issue the building permit. Golden Sands argued
that the Building Permit Rule extended to all land specifically identified in a

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 9



July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14 Zoning Bulletin

building permit application—and as such, Golden Sands thus had a vested
right to use all of the property for agricultural purposes. Under Wisconsin law,
the Building Permit Rule vests the right to use property consistent with current
zoning at the time a building permit application that strictly conforms to all
applicable zoning regulations is filed.

The circuit court concluded that Golden Sands’ building permit application
was complete and complied with all zoning regulations at the time it was filed.
The circuit court also agreed with Golden Sands and concluded that the Build-
ing Permit Rule extends to all land identified in the building permit application.
Finding there was no material issues of fact in dispute, and deciding the matter
on the law alone, the court issued summary judgment in favor of Golden Sands.

The Town appealed. On appeal, the Town argued that Golden Sands’ build-
ing permit was limited to vesting its right to build the seven structures identi-
fied in the building permit but did not also grant Golden Sands the right to use
for agricultural purposes the farmland specifically identified in the building
permit application.

The court of appeals agreed with the Town. The court of appeals distin-
guished between the right to build a structure and the right to use land. It
determined that “the right to build a structure vests with the filing of a building
permit application that strictly conforms to all applicable zoning regulations,
but the right to use land vests with open and obvious use under the noncon-
forming use doctrine.” Based on that distinction, the court of appeals
concluded that Golden Sands’ building permit vested its right to build the
structures, but not to use the other land identified in the building permit ap-
plication for agricultural purposes—since Golden Sands was not yet using the
land for agricultural purposes. The court of appeals concluded that because
Golden Sands had not established a nonconforming use before the Town’s
zoning ordinance took effect, it could not use any of its land for agricultural
purposes.

Golden Sands appealed.
DECISION: Judgment of court of appeals reversed.

Agreeing with Golden Sands, the Supreme Court of Wisconsin held that
“the Building Permit Rule extends to all land specifically identified in a build-
ing permit application.” The court concluded that, consequently, Golden Sands
had a vested right to use all of the property for agricultural purposes.

In so holding, the court found that the ”primary policy underlining the
bright-line Building Permit Rule* was “predictability. The court concluded
that predictability was “best advanced by applying the [Building Permit Rule]
to all land specifically identified in the building permit application. Otherwise,
noted the court, “piecemealing,” as advanced by the Town and the court of ap-
peals, “would require extensive litigation over how much land specifically
identified in the building permit application [was] necessary . . . .“ Moreover,
said the court, “for any business that requires land in addition to structures for
its operations, a building permit is nearly worthless if the rights vested by
virtue of obtaining a conforming building permit do not extend to the land
necessary to put the structures to their proper use.” Further, the court said that
“[tlo separate structures from their associated land would be to allow zoning

10 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14

authorities to circumvent the Building Permit Rule by enacting restrictive zon-
ing regulations on land that is necessary to give the buildings value.” (The
court found support for its conclusion under the principles advanced in other
jurisdictions—namely those that “emphasize that the rights vested by a build-
ing permit application are to develop land, not merely build structures.”)

Applying its holding to the facts here, the court held that because Golden
Sands’ building permit application included a map that provided “an objective
means to determine the contours of the [pJroperty,” Golden Sands possessed a
vested right to use the property for agricultural purposes.

See also: McKee Family I, LLC v. City of Fitchburg, 2017 WI 34, 374 Wis.
2d 487, 893 N.W.2d 12 (2017 ).

See also: Manna Funding, LLC v. Kittitas County, 173 Wash. App. 879, 295

P3d 1197 (Div. 3 2013), as amended on denial of reconsideration, (Apr. 9,
2013).

Case Note:

Wisconsin is in the minority of United States jurisdictions that adheres to the Building
Permit Rule. The majority of other jurisdictions require both a building permit and
“substantial construction and/or substantial expenditures before rights vest.” The
court explained that under the majority rule, a landowner’s building permit can be
revoked if the property is rezoned (eVen if construction has already begun).

Zoning News from Around the
Nation

HAWAII

The Puna County Council Planning Committee has reportedly postponed
action until mid-July on vacation rental legislation while the County recovers
from its ongoing lava flow emergency. The proposed legislation would pro-
hibit un-hosted short-term rentals in residential and agricultural zones, while
allowing them in hotel and resort zones as well as commercial districts. Exist-
ing rentals in disallowed areas would be able to be grandfathered in by apply-
ing for a nonconforming use ceftificate that must be renewed annually at a
cost of $500. One council woman has reportedly proposed adding language to
the bi]] that would allow the County planning director to accept applications
for new short-term vacation rentals to replace those lost during an emergency.

However, opponents of that proposed amendment argue it is contrary to the
original intent of the bill.

Source: West Hawaii Today,www.westhawaiitoday.com

OHIO

Governor John Kasich recently signed legislation, which, among other
things, contained an amendment that would accelerate an expected referen-

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 11




July 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 14 Zoning Bulletin

dum on the proposed rezoning of approximately 290 acres in the Village of
Lordstown, Trumbull County—on which the TIX Companies has proposed to
build a HomeGoods distribution center. “The legislation allows the Trumbull
County Board of Elections to schedule a special election for the referendum
60 days after a council vote accepting the rezoning.” Without the legislation, a
referendum would not have taken place until the general election in November.

Source: The Business Journal; https.//businessjournaldaily.com

TENNESSEE

Effective May 23, 2018, a new state law (House Bill 1020)—The Short-
Term Rental Unit Act—allows “cities to regulate short-term rental units if
they choose, but will protect those hosts who already have been renting their
properties through online platforms such as Airbnb.”“ Under the new law,
“short-term rentals* are defined as “a residential dwelling that is rented wholly
or partially for a fee for a period of less than 30 continuous days” and does not
include a hotel or bed and breakfast. The new law allows municipalities to
pass local legislation that bans or limits short-term rentals. However, the state
law grandfathers short-term rental hosts that can prove they were offering
short-term rentals for at least six months of the 12-month period before the ef-
fective date of any new municipal law regulating such use.

Source: The Daily Times; www.thedailytimes.com

12 © 2018 Thomson Reuters




QUINLAN'“ August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15

Zoning Bulletin

in this issue:

Vested rights—After developer submits incomplete zoning application, town-

ship adopts ordinance prohibiting developer’s proposed use 2
Civil Rights/Procedures—Property owner appeals issuance of zoning permits
to neighbor, and later brings a civil rights claim against borough 6

Telecommunications Act—After zoning board denies variance for telecom-
munications tower, variance applicant alleges board violated the federal
Telecommunications Act 9

Zoning News from Around the Nation 12

? THOMSON REUTERS® bk BT



August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15 Zoning Bulletin

Vested rights—After developer
submits incomplete zoning
application, township adopts
ordinance prohibiting developer’s
proposed use

Developer says its still entitled to develop pursuant to New
Jersey’s Time of Application Rule, but township says Rule
only applies to “complete” applications

Contributors
Corey E. Burnham-Howard

For authorization to photocopy, please contact the West's Copyright Clear-
ance Center at 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, USA (978) 750-
8400; fax (978) 646-8600 or West's Copyright Services at 610 Opperman
Drive, Eagan, MN 55123, fax (651) 687-7551. Please outline the specific ma-
terial involved, the humber of copies you wish to distribute and the purpose or
format of the use.

This publication was created to provide you with accurate and authoritative in-
formation concerning the subject matter covered; however, this publication
was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed to practice law in a particu-
lar jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal or other profes-
sional advice and this publication is not a substitute for the advice of an
attorney. If you require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser-
vices of a competent attorney or other professional.

Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 610 Op-
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. For subscription
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing,
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753.

POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bulletin, 610 Opperman
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526.

% THOMSON REUTERS®

610 Opperman Drive
P.0. Box 64526
St. Paul, MN 55164-0526
1-800-229-2084
email: west.customerservice@thomsonreuters.com
ISSN 0514-7905
©2018 Thomson Reuters
All Rights Reserved
Quinlan™ is a Thomson Reuters brand

1) © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15

Citation: Dunbar Homes, Inc. v. Zoning Board of Ad justment of Township of
Franklin, 2018 WL 3041000 (N.J. 2018)

NEW JERSEY (06/20/18)—This case addressed the issue of whether an
incomplete zoning application triggers New Jersey’s Time of Application Rule
(the “TOA Rule”) (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-10.5)—which provides that “development
regulations which are in effect on the date of the submission of an application for
development shall govern the review of that application for development.” More
specifically, the case addressed the issue of “whether an application for develop-
ment that does not include all required materials should be considered an ‘ap-
plication for development’ for purposes of the TOA Rule.”

The Background/Facts: Dunbar Homes, Inc. (“Dunbar®) was a land
developer and residential builder. Dunbar owned a 276-unit garden apartment
complex in a General Business Zone (“GB-Zone*) in Franklin Township (the
“Township”). Dunbar also owned 6.9 acres adjacent to its apartment complex.
Dunbar sought to develop on those 6.9 acres an additional 55 garden apartments.

At the time Dunbar was considering the proposed development, under the
Township’s zoning ordinance, garden apartments were a permitted conditional
use in the GB-Zone. As such, Dunbar was required to obtain a (d)(3) variance
and site plan approval. However, in May 2013, the Township introduced a
proposed ordinance that eliminated garden apartments as a permitted conditional
use in the GB-Zone. One day before the public hearing on that proposed
ordinance, Dunbar submitted an application to the Township’s Planning Board
for site plan approval and a (d)(3) variance to build those additional 55 garden
apartments. The next day, July 16, 2013, the Town adopted the new ordinance
eliminating garden apartments as a permitted conditional use in the GB-Zone.
The new ordinance became effective on August 5, 2013. On August 7, 2013, a
Township zoning officer notified Dunbar that its application was incomplete. As
such, and given the effectiveness of the new ordinance, Dunbar was instructed
that it would now need to apply for a (d)(1) variance (with stricter standards)
instead of a (d)(3) variance.

Dunbar appealed the zoning officer’s determination to the Township’s Zoning
Board of Adjustment (the “Board”). Dunbar argued that its application was
“complete’ upon submission and therefore was protected by New Jersey’s Time
of Application (“TOA*) Rule. The TOA rule provides:

“Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, those development regula-
tions which are in effect on the date of submission of an application for development
shall govern the review of that application for development and any decision made
with regard to that application for development. Any provisions of an ordinance,
except those relating to health and public safety, that are adopted subsequent to the
date of submission of an application for development, shall not be applicable to that
application for development.” (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-10.5.)

Dunbar argued that, therefore, for the purpose of its application, the TOA
Rule preserved the zoning ordinance in place at the time Dunbar submitted its
application (allowing garden apartments as permitted conditional uses, and
requiring a less stringent (d)(3) variance). Dunbar contended that despite some
admitted deficiencies in its application, its application was “sufficient.” It also
argued that requiring its application be “complete” for the TOA Rule to be effec-
tive would “frustrate the purpose™ of New Jersey’s Municipal Land Use Law
(“MLUL®) (which includes the TOA Rule), which only required an "application
for development” rather than a “complete application for development* to trig-
ger the protections of the TOA Rule.

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 3



August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15 Zoning Bulletin

The Township argued that the zoning ordinance required an application for
development to be “complete for the TOA Rule to apply.

Agreeing with the Township’s view, the Board denied Dunbar’s appeal. The
Board determined that Dunbar’s application was not an “application for develop-
ment“ as defined by the ordinance because it did not include materials required
by the ordinance. Thus, the Board concluded that because Dunbar’s application
was not deemed “complete’ before the effective date of the ordinance prohibit-
ing garden apartments in the GB-Zone, the TOA Rule did not shield Dunbar
from the Township’s new zoning ordinance, and Dunbar was required to obtain a
(d)(1) variance for its proposed development.

Dunbar appealed to the superior court. The superior court determined that the
TOA Rule should apply “if the applicant provide[s] enough information . . . so
that a meaningful review of the application can commence.”“ And, here, the court
found that Dunbar’s submission met that standard. The court thus concluded that
Dunbar’s application was protected by the TOA Rule.

The Township appealed. The Appellate Division reversed the trial court. In
doing so, the Appellate Division rejected the trial court’s “enough information
for meaningful review* standard. The Appellate Division instead held that an ap-
plication must meet the definition of “application for development* under the
MLUL. Under the MLUL (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-3), “application for development” is
defined as “the application form and all accompanying documents required by
ordinance for approval of a subdivision plat, site plan, planned development,
cluster development, conditional use, zoning variance or direction of the issu-
ance of a permit.”“ Thus, the Appellate Division concluded that “[tJhe benchmark
for determining whether documents required for the submission to constitute an
application for development . . . is whether they are specifically required by the
ordinance.”“ Applying that standard to Dunbar’s application, the Appellate Divi-
sion concluded that Dunbar’s submission did not constitute an “application for
development* within the meaning of the MLUL because it did not include all
items required by the ordinance. Accordingly, the Appellate Division determined
that therefore the Board’s decision not to extend the protection of the TOA Rule
to Dunbar’s submission was not arbitrary or capricious or unreasonable.

Dunbar petitioned for certification, and the Supreme Court of New Jersey
granted the petition.

DECISION: Judgment of Appellate Division affirmed.

Agreeing with the Appellate Division and looking at the plain language of the
MLUL, the Supreme Court of New Jersey held that for protections of the TOA
Rule to apply, an “application for development” must include the information
and all accompanying documents required by the relevant municipal ordinance.
In its holding, the court rejected Dunbar’s argument that the TOA Rule did not
require a “complete application. The court found that although the TOA Rule
did not use the word “complete,” it explicitly cross-referenced the local
ordinance provisions of the MLUL, which list application requirements. (See
N.J.S.A. 40:55D-3, defining “application for development.”)

The court found support for its position in noting that such a “clear, easily, ap-
plied, and objective standard advances the MLUL’s goal of statewide consis-
tency and uniformity in land use decisions.” The court explained that such a
standard “requires that the zoning officer compare the contents of a submission
to the requirements of the municipal ordinance; it does not require review of
each submission to determine whether a ‘meaningful review’ can be undertaken.”

4 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15

Having determined that, to be protected by the TOA Rule, applicants must
submit precisely what the MLUL (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-3) requires—“the applica-
tion form and all accompanying documents required by ordinance for approval
of a. . .site plan, . . . conditional use, zoning variance or direction of the issu-
ance of a permit“—the court concluded that the Board’s determination that
Dunbar’s application was not entitled to the protection of the TOA Rule and that
Dunbar would have to complete a more stringent (d)(1) variance application was
not “arbitrary and capricious or unreasonable.“ The court found it undisputed
that Dunbar’s submission lacked items mandated by the ordinance. Because
Dunbar’s application was incomplete and Dunbar had not sought a waiver, the
court concluded that Dunbar’s application could not benefit from the TOA Rule.

See also: Grabowsky v. Township of Montclair, 221 N.J. 536, 115 A.3d 815
(2015).

Case Note:

In this case, the Supreme Court of New Jersey granted the following motions for leave to
appear as amicus curiae: a joint motion by the New Jersey Builders Association, NAIOP
New Jersey Chapter, Inc., and the International Council of Shopping Centers; a joint mo-
tion by the New Jersey State League of Municipalities and the New Jersey Institute of Lo-
cal Government Attorneys; and an individual motion by the New Jersey State Bar
Association.

Case Note:

In its decision, the Supreme Court of New Jersey also noted “some important practical
limits to Board determinations based on an application’s failure to include all required
materials.” The court said that an application is not rendered “incomplete” simply
because a municipality requires “correction of any information found to be in error and
submission of additional information not specified in the ordinance or any revisions in the
accompanying documents.” (See N.J.S.A. 40:55D-10.3). Further, the court said that “in
the event information required by local ordinance is not pertinent, the applicant may
request a waiver as to that information or those documents it finds extraneous.” (See
N.J.S.A 40:55D-10.3). In such a case, the court explained, if a waiver request for one or
more items accompanies all other required materials, the applicant's submission will
provisionally trigger the TOA Rule. Then, if the Board grants the waiver, the application
will be deemed complete. If the Board denies the waiver, its decision will be subject to
review under the customary “arbitrary and capricious or unreasonable” standard.

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 5




August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15 Zoning Bulletin

Civil Rights/Procedures—Property
owner appeals issuance of zoning
permits to neighbor, and later brings
a civil rights claim against borough

Property owner’s civil rights claim contends borough violated
her substantive right to be heard in her appeal

Citation: Harz v. Borough of Spring Lake, 2018 WL 3117016 (N.J. 2018)

NEW JERSEY (06/26/18)—This case addressed the issue of whether a home-
owner, who challenges the issuance of a zoning permit allowing construction on
neighboring property, has a statutory right to be heard before the municipal plan-
ning board, and if so, whether the violation of that right gives rise to an action
under the New Jersey Civil Rights Act, N.J.S.A. 10:6-1 to -2.

The Background/Facts: In December 2009, the Borough of Spring Lake (the
“Borough*) issued a zoning permit (the “First Permit*) to Thomas Carter
(“Carter”). The permit was for construction of a two-and-a-half story residence
and a detached garage. Mary Harz (“Harz“) owned the property adjacent to
Carter’s. She was unaware of the issuance of the permit until late spring 2010
when construction began on Carter’s residence. Concerned about what she was
observing of the construction, Harz reviewed Carter’s development plans on file
at the Borough’s Zoning Office and determined that they allowed for several
violations of the Borough’s land-use ordinance. Harz brought her concerns to the
Borough’s zoning officer. Unsatisfied with the zoning officer’s response, Harz
hired an attorney.

In June 2010, Harz’s attorney appealed the issuance of Carter’s zoning permit.
Despite Harz’s request to do so, the zoning officer failed to transmit the appeal to
the Borough’s Planning Board. The zoning officer did request revised construc-
tion plans from Carter, and although no stop work order issued, construction on
the project effectively ceased.

In August 2010, the zoning officer approved a new set of revised plans and is-
sued an amended zoning permit to Carter (the “Second Permit*). Harz appealed
the Second Permit, alleging that the revised plans still violated the Borough’s
height regulations. The Planning Board set a hearing for the appeal, but later
cancelled it, and instead the zoning officer issued a stop work order on the deter-
mination that Carter’s construction plans were not in conformance with the
Borough’s land-use ordinance.

After Carter again submitted revised construction plans, another permit (the
“Third Permit*) issued. Harz again believed the revised plans still violated the
Borough’s land-use ordinance. She sought and obtained from the superior court
a temporary restraining order to stop construction, and then she appealed the is-
suance of the Third Permit to the Planning Board.

After a hearing, the Planning Board agreed with some of Harz’s objections,
finding Carter’s construction plans violated some of the Borough’s land-use
ordinance. The Planning board rescinded the Third Permit, and then, once Carter
met specified conditions, issued a final permit to Carter.

6 © 2018 Thomson Reuters




Zoning Bulletin August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15

Harz did not appeal that final permit. However, in August 2011, Harz filed a
federal and state civil rights action against the Borough and the initial zoning of-
ficer (hereinafter, collectively the “Borough”). Among other things, Harz brought
a claim under the New Jersey Civil Rights Act, N.J.S.A. 10:6-1 to -2, alleging
that the Borough violated her substantive rights under the New Jersey Constitu-
tion and New Jersey’s Municipal Land Use Law (the “MLUL”). Essentially,
Harz complained that she had a right to a hearing on her appeal, and that right
was violated, causing her to expend substantial funds to retain an attorney and
other licensed professionals in battling the improperly issued zoning permits.

Finding no material issues of fact in dispute, and deciding the matter on the
law alone, the trial court issued summary judgment in favor of the Borough and
dismissed Harz’s complaint. With regard to Harz’s civil rights claim, the trial
court concluded that the MLUL only established a “right to be heard,” and not a
“right to a hearing.” The court found that Harz was “heard” by filing her appeals,
and therefore concluded that her rights were not violated.

Harz appealed. Disagreeing with the trial court, the Appellate Division found
that, under the MLUL—N.J.S.A. 40:55D-72—Harz had a substantive right to
appeal the issuance of the permits, which the Borough violated when the zoning
officer failed to transmit her initial appeal to the Planning Board and when the
Borough cancelled the hearing on the appeal of the Second Permit. The Appel-
late Division essentially concluded that Harz’s action in getting a temporary
restraining order on construction from the trial court “was the means by which
Harz vindicated her substantive right to secure the [Planning BJoard’s review of
an alleged zoning violation.” ”

The Borough petitioned for certification, challenging the reinstatement of
Harz’s state civil rights claim. The Borough argued that N.J.S.A. 40:55D-72
does not confer on an “interested party,” such as Harz, the “right to a board hear-
ing” on an appeal challenging the issuance of a zoning permit and therefore the
Appellate Division erred in finding the violation of a cognizable substantive
right under the Civil Rights Act. Alternatively, the Borough argued that, even as-
suming that the statute conferred a right to appeal to a Board, Harz received
relief under the statute because the appealed zoning permits issued to her
neighbors were either withdrawn (after Harz’s first Notice of Appeal) or
rescinded (after Harz’s second Notice of Appeal)“—thus rendering moot Harz’s
appeals to the Board.

The Supreme Court of New Jersey granted the Borough’s petition.
DECISION: Judgment of Appellate Division reversed.

The Supreme Court of New Jersey held that Harz did have a substantive right
to be heard pursuant to the MLUL. However, the court concluded that "the
Borough did not violate a substantive right as envisaged under [New Jersey’s]
Civil Rights Act.”

The court explained that New Jersey’s Civil Rights Act—subsection (c) of
N.J.S.A. 10:6-2—provides in part: “Any person who has been deprived of . . .
any substantive rights, privileges or immunities secured by the Constitution or
laws of this State, . . . by a person acting under color of law, may bring a civil
action for damages and for injunctive or other appropriate relief.“ (N.J.S.A.
10:6-2(c).) The court noted that the prevailing party in a private cause of action
under the Civil Rights Act may also receive “reasonable attorney’s fees and
costs.” (N.J.S.A. 10:6-2(f).)

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 7




August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15 Zoning Bulletin

The court further explained that identifying whether a claimed right is a
“substantive right* protected under the state’s Civil Rights Act involves a multi-
step test under which the court must determine: “(1) whether, by enacting the
statute, the Legislature intended to confer a right on an individual” . . . ; (2)
whether the right ”is not so ‘vague and amorphous’ that its enforcement would
strain judicial competence,” . . . ; and (3) whether the statute “unambiguously
impose[s] a binding obligation on the [governmental entity]” ; and (4) whether
the “right is substantive, not procedural.” With regard to differentiating substan-
tive” from “procedural” rights, the court noted that “a substantive right is ‘a]
right that can be protected or enforced by law; a right of substance rather than
form.*

Here, the court found that the nature of the substantive right at issue—a prop-
erty right—was “clearly identifiable,” and that Harz had a right to have her prop-
erty concerns “heard in some form.“ Looking at the MLUL, the court found that
it “clearly” conferred on Harz a right to be heard before the Planning Board.
Finding “an interested party’s right to be heard is inextricably tied to a party’s
property rights,” the court found that the MLUL right to be heard was “substan-
tive, not procedural.”

Although the court found that Harz had a substantive right to be heard by the
Board, the court also found that the zoning officer’s failure to transmit Harz’s
initial appeal to the Planning Board and the Borough’s cancellation of the hear-
ing on the appeal of the Second Permit “did not deprive Harz of a substantive
right because she suffered no adverseness.” The court cited the effective ceasing
of construction on Carter’s property after Harz’s initial appeal as reason that
Harz suffered no adverseness to any property right she possessed.” Moreover,
the court found that nothing in the record suggested that if Harz had not filed her
action with the trial court for the temporary restraining order, the Planning Board
would have denied her a hearing. Thus, the court concluded that, for the purposes
of the state Civil Rights Act, Harz did not exhaust the statutory process for secur-
ing her right to be heard under the MLUL. Having found that Harz failed to
prove that the Borough deprived her of the right to be heard, the court concluded
that Harz’s civil rights claim must be dismissed.

See also: Tumpson v. Farina, 218 NJ. 450, 95 A.3d 210 (2014).

Case Note:

In its decision, the court acknowledged that if the zoning officer had permitted construc-
tion to proceed on Carter's property and blocked Harz's ability to appeal and be heard
by the Board, that scenario may have been a violation of Har?'s substantive property
right and a Civil Rights Act violation.

8 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15

Telecommunications Act—After
zoning board denies variance for
telecommunications tower, variance
applicant alleges board violated the
federal Telecommunications Act

Applicant contends board’s decision failed to provide
substantial evidence related to express consideration of the
Act’s requirements

Citation: American Towers LLC v. Town of Shrewsbury, 2018 WL 3104105
(D. Mass. 2018)

MASSACHUSETTS (06/22/18)—This case addressed the issue of whether a
zoning board’s decision in denying a variance for a telecommunications tower
was supported by “substantial evidence,” as required by the federal Telecom-
munications Act. It also addressed the issue of whether the federal Telecom-
munications Act requires municipal zoning boards, when denying a particular
application, to expressly consider the requirements of the Telecommunications
Act—including coverage gap or whether a denial is an effective prohibition of
wireless services.

The Background/Facts: American Towers LLC and T-Mobile Northeast
LLC (collectively, “American Towers®) entered into a lease agreement to lease a
certain part of a property in the Town of Shrewsbury (the “Town*). American
Towers planned to construct a wireless communications facility on the property,
including a 149-foot multicarrier monopole-style tower. The property was lo-
cated in a Rural A Zoning district which did not allow wireless communication
towers or structures taller than 35 feet. Accordingly, American Towers applied to
the Town’s Zoning Board of Appeals (“ZBA*) for a use variance and a
dimensional variance.

Eventually, the ZBA voted to deny the variances. The ZBA issued a three-
page decision denying the application. The decision explained that the Board
found that the proposed tower “would create a nuisance by virtue of noise, odor,
smoke, vibration, traffic generated, unsightliness and other conditions detrimen-
tal to the public good.“ The ZBA also found “no unique conditions of the lot’s
size, topography, orientation, and shape, where strict compliance with the
requirements of the Zoning Bylaw would be an undue hardship upon [American
Towers].*

American Towers later brought a lawsuit against the Town and the ZBA.
American Towers contended that the ZBA’s denial of the variances violated the
federal Telecommunications Act of 1996 (“TCA®).

Among other things, the TCA provides that the state and local regulation of
“the placement, construction, and modification of personal wireless service fa-
cilities“ shall not “unreasonably discriminate among providers of functionally
equivalent services® or “prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting the provision

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 9



August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15 Zoning Bulletin

of personal wireless services.” (47 U.S.C.A. § 332(c)(7)(B)(i) and (iii).) Also,
when a local zoning authority denies an application to construct a wireless facil-
ity, the TCA requires the local authority’s decision be (1) ”in writing” and (2)
“supported by substantial evidence contained in a written record.” (47 U.S.C.A.
§ 332(c)(7)(B)(iii).)

Here, under Count 1 of its complaint, American Towers alleged that the Town
had effectively prohibited cell-phone service in violation of the TCA. Under
Count 2, American Towers alleged that the ZBA’s opinion was not based on
substantial evidence contained in a written record, in violation of the TCA.

American Towers asked the court to find there were no material issues of fact
and to issue summary judgment in their favor on Count 2. American Towers
sought this summary judgment on the theory that if the ZBA’s denial of the vari-
ances was found not to be supported by substantial evidence—in violation of the
TCA—American Towers would be entitled to an injunction requiring the Town
to approve the variances (and Count 1 would then be moot). American Towers
argued that the ZBA did not comply with the TCA’s requirement that its decision
be “supported by substantial evidence contained in a written record.” Specifi-
cally, American Towers contended that the "hardship” warranting their requested
variance was a significant gap in wireless service coverage. They further
contended that the TCA required local zoning boards to treat such a gap in cover-
age as an additional category of hardship under the Massachusetts variance
standard. (Under the Massachusetts Zoning Act, zoning variances are permitted
for hardships related to soil conditions, shape, or topography of the land. (Mass.
Gen. Laws Ch. 40A, § 10.)) Thus, they contended that the ZBA had a duty to
consider, under the TCA’s substantial-evidence requirement, whether a variance
denial effectively prohibited wireless service. They argued that: “(1) they dem-
onstrated, without contradiction, a significant gap in coverage—indeed, the
Board so found; (2) the Board’s refusal to permit the closing of such a gap con-
stitutes an ‘effective prohibition of wireless service’ within the meaning of the
TCA; and (3) the Board did not give any reason as to why its refusal to permit
the variance did not constitute ’effective prohibition’; {and] therefore (4) the
Board’s decision [was] not supported by substantial evidence contained in a
written record.”

In a cross-motion, the Town asked the court to issue summary judgment on
Count 2 in its favor.

DECISION: American Tower’s motion for partial summary judgment on
Count 2 and the affirmative defenses granted in part as to liability for Count
2, and denied in part without prejudice as to the affirmative defenses and
the remedy for Count 2. Town’s cross-motion for partial summary judg-
ment on Count 2 denied.

The United States District Court, D. Massachusetts, held that the ZBA’s deci-
sion did violate the substantial-evidence standard of the TCA.

In so holding, the court rejected American Tower’s argument that a zoning
board must expressly consider the requirements of the TCA—including cover-
age gap or whether a denial is an effective prohibition of wireless services. The
court found the TCA did require a variance if a town’s denial would be an effec-
tive prohibition of wireless services. And, the court found that the TCA requires
zoning decisions be supported by substantial evidence. However, in reviewing
the statutory language, First Circuit (Court of Appeals) guidance, and explicit
holdings in other circuits, the court found those two requirements were separate.

10 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15

For example, explained the court, “[tJo demonstrate an effective-prohibition
claim based on the denial of a particular proposal, the proponent of the tower has
the burden to show ‘that further reasonable efforts are so likely to be fruitless
that it is a waste of time to even try. “ Moreover, “[w]hile an individual denial
by a zoning board might amount to an effective prohibition, the information nec-
essary to make that determination is broader than the particular site for which
approval is sought— . . . presumably includ[ing] information about the town’s
regulatory scheme, the feasibility of other possible locations, and so on.” In
comparison, to demonstrate a “substantial evidence” claim, “a plaintiff need
only establish that the particular decision by the zoning board in a given case
was not in writing or not supported by substantial evidence.“ Those different
standards of review, said the court, “appear to reflect a judgment that deference
is due to the zoning board’s specific decision about the appropriateness of a par-
ticular project, whereas the question of whether wireless service has been ef-
fectively prohibited is a question on which a lay zoning board has no particular
expertise.“ Thus, the court concluded that a zoning board “need not expressly
consider the requirements of the TCA.“ Rather, “[t]he relevant standard the
[bJoard must use to determine a variance is that set forth by state and local law.*
Accordingly, the court concluded that its substantial-evidence review here was
limited to the ZBA’s decision under the Massachusetts Zoning Act’s standards
for obtaining a zoning variance.

Under that review, the court concluded that the ZBA failed to support its zon-
ing variance denials with substantial evidence, as required by the TCA. The
court noted that “it is not sufficient under the TCA for a board to simply recite
the applicable legal standard.“ Here, the court found that was all that the ZBA
had done in issuing its decision denying American Tower’s variances. The ZBA,
found the court, failed to address Massachusetts Zoning Act variance standards—
such as the hardship of land topography (which might require a tall tower). In
fact, the court found that the ZBA failed to address any claimed hardship at all.
The court concluded that the ZBA’s “bare-bones decision” was not “sufficient
explanation of the reasons for the denial ‘to allow a reviewing court to evaluate
the evidence supporting those reasons.’” ““ In short, the court concluded that the
reasons given by the ZBA for variance denials were “plainly inadequate.

Having concluded that the ZBA violated the TCA’s substantial-evidence
requirement, the court next addressed the remedy due American Towers. Ameri-
can Towers had argued that the ZBA’s violation of the TCA’s substantial-
evidence requirement warranted an injunction, ordering the Town to issue the
variances. While the court acknowledged that an injunction might be warranted
for such a violation under “some circumstances“—such as when a “board is
hostile to an applicant and using an . . . unsupported decision as cover for
unreasonably obstructing a proposal“—ahere, the court concluded that it was not
yet prepared to address a remedy for the substantial-evidence violation. The
court said it would not address a remedy until American Tower’s effective-
prohibition claim under Count 1 of the complaint was resolved (which could be
dispositive).

See also: Nextel Communications of Mid-Atlantic, Inc. v. Town of Wayland
Mass., 231 F. Supp. 2d 396 (D. Mass. 2002).

See also: Second Generation Properties, L.P. v. Town of Pelham, 313 F.3d 620
(1st Cir. 2002).

See also: T-Mobile Central, LLC v. Unified Government of Wyandotte County,
Kansas City, Kan., 546 F3d 1299 (10th Cir. 2008).

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 11




August 10, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 15 Zoning Bulletin

See also: MetroPCS, Inc. v. City and County of San Francisco, 400 F3d 715
(9th Cir. 2005).

Case Note:

In its decision, the Court further noted that “although it is by no means required to do so,
a local zoning board is not prohibited from considering whether its decision in a particu-
lar case would amount 10 an effective prohibition on the provision of wireless services.”
The court said that in choosing 1o address the effective-prohibition issue, a zoning board
thereby “retain{s] substantial control over where and how cell towers are built within its
borders.” Still, if the zoning board chooses not o address that issue—as it may, the court
advised that “it runs the risk that an individual decision might be held to be an effective
prohibition, and it may be forced to issue a variance without further discussion of
alternatives.”

Zoning News from Around the
Nation

MAINE

The state House and Senate have passed a “sweeping medical marijuana
reform bill.” The bill was headed to Governor LePage. Among other things, the
bill would let medical marijuana caregivers “open retail stores, letting them
become mini dispensaries that can serve as many card-carrying patients as they
can from 30 flowering marijuana plants, but only in towns that have authorized
medical marijuana storefronts.” A municipal opt-in amendment that was adopted
with the bill “essentially allows a town to shut out caregiver retail stores by do-
ing nothing,” and also allows towns “to shut down existing stores that have
popped up without municipal authorization.”

Source: The Times Record; www.timesrecord.com

NEW YORK

The state Senate recently quashed a bill—Senate Bill S6760—which would
have eliminated the cap on the residential floor area ratio. If the bill had passed,
it would have allowed for taller and denser residential building.

Source: Brownstoner; www.brownstonercom

OHIO

The state Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee is considering a
bill—House Bill 114—that would reportedly “relax the state’s strict wind turbine
setbacks rules but again weaken renewable and energy efficiency standards.”
Under the bill property line setbacks for commercial wind turbines would be “at
least 1,225 feet to the nearest habitable structure on a property.”

Source: Energy News Network; https.//energynews.us

12 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



in this issue:

Inverse Condemnation—City encourages and invites public to use

privately-owned beach parcel 2
Vested Rights/Preemption—Under county zoning ordinance,
licensed medical cannabis dispensary is denied a building permit 6

Vested Rights/Mootness—After Village denies special-use permit
for strip club, state adopts ordinance essentially foreclosing
any locations for strip clubs in village 9

Zoning News from Around the Nation 11

¢+ THOMSON REUTERS® Mat #42078524



August 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 16 Zoning Bulletin

Inverse Condemnation—City
encourages and invites public to
use privately-owned beach parcel

Parcel owner sues city, alleging a taking of
property without just compensation

Citation: Chmielewski v. City of St. Pete Beach, 890 F.3d 942 (1lth
Cir. 2018)

Contributors
Corey E. Burnham-Howard

For authorization to photocopy, please contact the West’s Copyright Clear-
ance Center at 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, USA (978) 750-
8400; fax (978) 646-8600 or West’'s Copyright Services at 610 Opperman
Drive, Eagan, MN 55123, fax (651) 687-7551. Please outline the specific ma-
terial involved, the number of copies you wish to distribute and the purpose or
format of the use.

This publication was created to provide you with accurate and authoritative in-
formation concerning the subject matter covered; however, this publication
was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed to practice law in a patticu-
lar jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal or other profes-
sional advice and this publication is not a substitute for the advice of an
attorney. If you require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser-
vices of a competent attorney or other professional.

Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 610 Op-
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. For subscription
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing,
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753.

POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bullietin, 610 Opperman
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526.

THOMSON REUTERS®

610 Opperman Drive
P.0. Box 64526
St. Paul, MN 55164-0526
1-800-229-2084
email: west.customerservice@thomsonreuters.com
ISSN 0514-7905
©2018 Thomson Reuters
All Rights Reserved
Quinlan™ js a Thomson Reuters brand

2 © 2018 Thomson Reuters




Zoning Bulletin August 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 16

The Eleventh Circuit has jurisdiction over Alabama, Florida, and
Georgia.

ELEVENTH CIRCUIT (FLORIDA) (05/16/18)—This case ad-
dressed the issue of whether a city’s encouragement and invitation to
the general public to access private beachfront property amounted to an
illegal seizure in violation of the property owner’s Fourth Amendment
rights, and a taking without just compensation in violation of the Flor-
ida Constitution.

The Background/Facts: The estate of Chester Chmielewski (the
“Chmielewskis*) owned beachfront property in the Don CeSar Place
Subdivision in the City of St. Pete Beach (the “City*). Specifically, the
Chmielewskis’ home sat adjacent to one of the two blocks of the
subdivision—Block M, and the Chmielewskis had title to the beach-
front portion of Block M contiguous to their residence and extending
across Block M to the mean high water line (“MHWL®) of the Gulf of
Mexico. The Chmielewskis’ fee simple ownership was subject only to:
(1) a 1925 plat restriction that allowed Don CeSar Subdivision owners
the right to use Block M, including the Chmielewskis’ beach parcel, for
“beach and bathing purposes®; and (2) Florida law making available
for public use the beach area between the water and the MHWL.

In 1975, the City acquired the original Don CeSar subdivision
developer’s residence, known as the Don Vista property. The Don Vista
property adjoined Block M, just north of the Chmielewskis’ property.
From 2003 to 2005, the City renovated the Don Vista property, turning
it in to a community center. As part of the renovations, the City cleared
a direct public access path from a mini-park across from Block M to
the Gulf of Mexico, and posted large signs with the City’s emblem stat-
ing “Beach Access.” The City also provided public parking to facilitate
beach access, and published a map showing public access to the Block
M beach at the Don Vista Center. While the City was renovating the
Don Vista Center, it also zoned and mapped Block M, including the
Chmielewskis’ beach parcel, as “recreation open space/public park.
That zoning designated the property as a public beach for public use
(inconsistent with the Chmielewskis’ private ownership rights).

The Chmielewskis later claimed that following these City renova-
tions and actions, large numbers of public beachgoers flocked onto the
Chmielewskis’ private beach parcel. The Chmielewskis also claimed
that the City declined to enforce its trespassing laws against those
members of the public trespassing on the Chmielewskis’ property.
Moreover, the Chmielewskis pointed to the fact that the City actually
facilitated public use of the Chmielewskis’ beach parcel by, among
other things: allowing Block M to be used for weddings, including
nuptials on the Chmielewskis’ beach parcel; and organizing a large
wiffle ball tournament that occurred on Block M, including the
Chmielewskis’ beach parcel.

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 3




August 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 16 Zoning Bulletin

In 2009, the Chmielewskis sued the City. They alleged the City com-
mitted an unreasonable seizure of the property in violation of the
Chmielewskis’ Fourth Amendment rights and an unlawful taking of
their property without full compensation in violation of the Florida
Constitution.

Ultimately, a jury returned a verdict for the Chmielewskis on both
the federal and state claims. The jury awarded the Chmielewskis
$1,489,700—which was the exact amount that the Chmielewskis’ ap-
praiser testified represented “just compensation” for the value of the
entire beach parcel plus the severance damages to the Chmielewskis’
residential property.

After trial, the City moved for judgment as a matter of law (i.e.,
arguing that the evidence was insufficient to support the jury’s verdict),
asking the court to issue judgment in the City’s favor. The district court
refused. The court held that the evidence was sufficient to support the
jury’s finding that ”the City had meaningfully interfered with the
Chmielewskis’ use and enjoyment of their property, in violation of the
Fourth Amendment, and that the Chmielewskis had presented substan-
tial evidence from which a reasonable jury could find that the City’s
statements and actions had demonstrated ‘more than a passive attitude’
about the public’s use of the Chmielewski property.” On the takings
claim, the district court also held that the evidence supported a finding
that the City: “created a right of public access across Block M behind
the Don Vista Center, so that a fair-minded person could conclude that
the City’s actions gave members of the public a permanent and continu-
ous right to pass to and fro on Block M, so that the Chmielewski Block
M beach parcel may be continuously traversed.

The City had also contended that if the judgment was to be enforced,
then the City should receive title to the Chmielewskis’ beach parcel.
The district court denied this request.

The City appealed. On appeal, the City argued that the inverse
condemnation award must be reversed because there was no evidence
of a taking under Florida law. Alternatively, the City again contended
that if the judgment was to be enforced, it should receive title to the
beach parcel.

DECISION: Judgment of United States District Court for the
Middle District of Florida affirmed.

The United States Court of Appeals, Eleventh Circuit, was “unper-
suaded by the City’s arguments.” The court first held that the evidence
at trial supported the jury’s finding that a physical taking occurred
through the continuous occupation of the Chmielewskis’ property by
members of the general public, and that, through its actions, the City
encouraged public occupation.

The court noted that Article X, § 6(a) of the Florida Constitution

4 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin August 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 16

provides: “No private property shall be taken except for a public
purpose and with full compensation therefor paid to each owner . . ..”
The court explained that this clause prohibits the government from tak-
ing private property for a public use without paying for it. Moreover,
the court explained that a plaintiff (such as the Chmielewskis here)
“need not demonstrate direct government appropriation of private prop-
erty to prove a taking.“ Notably, citing United States Supreme Court
precedent, the court said that “[a] taking also occurs when the govern-
ment gives third parties ‘a permanent and continuous right to pass to
and fro, so that the real property may continuously be traversed.”
“[E]ven a temporary or intermittent invasion of private property can
trigger physical takings liability,” said the court.

Here, the court found that the City encouraged public use of the
beach parcel by placing beach access signs, clearing vegetation, creat-
ing nearby parking spaces, hosting events at the property, and refusing
to remove trespassers. The court found that those City actions “resulted
in frequent public use of the beach parcel.”

The City had argued that a taking could not be found here because
the City had “never asserted ownership or exclusive control over [the
Chmielewskis® beach parcel]l” But the court asserted that “ownership
and exclusive control are not necessary elements for a takings claim.
Rather, noted the court, a physical taking can occur “when government
‘deliberately brings it about that . . . the public at large regularly use
or permanently occupy space or a thing which theretofore was under-
stood to be under private ownership.‘ ”

Here, the court found that there was sufficient evidence to establish
that the continuous public trespassing and occupation of the
Chmielewskis’ property was “the natural and intended effect of the
City‘s actions.” In other words, the court found that the City’s actions
imposed a de facto public access easement on the Chmielewskis’
property.

Addressing the City‘s alternative request for fee simple ownership of
the beach parcel upon payment of the judgment, the court held such
relief was not warranted under Florida law and that the district court
did not abuse its discretion in denying the City’s request to transfer
title. The court explained that, under Florida law, “the taking of an
easement may, in some cases, amount to the taking of the full value of
the fee with resultant severance damages, but ‘naked fee title’ still
remains in the property owner.“ Moreover, the court noted that Florida
law restricts the City from acquiring a greater interest in condemned
property than necessary to serve the public purpose for which it is
acquired. Because existing plat restrictions prevented the land in ques-
tion from being developed, the court found that the City needed noth-
ing more than a public easement across the land to accomplish its goal

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 5




August 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 16 Zoning Bulletin

of beach access (i.e., it didn’t need to own the fee simple). Furthermore,
the court noted that the jury’s award of inverse condemnation damages
was based on an appraisal by the Chmielewskis’ expert who used a
“before and after” approach to determine the loss of value to the
Chmielewskis’ property as a result of the easement-type taking, which
thus did not reflect a market valuation of the fee simple estate. Accord-
ingly, the court affirmed the district court’s ruling denying the City’s
request to transfer title of the beach parcel. However, the Eleventh
Circuit also made clear in its holding that the City had “’paid for, and is
entitled to, a permanent easement across the Chmielewskis’ beach prop-
erty for the benefit of the public.”

See also: Nollan v. California Coastal Com’n, 483 U.S. 825, 107 S.
Cr. 3141, 97 L. Ed. 2d 677, 26 Envt. Rep. Cas. (BNA) 1073, 17 Envtl.
L. Rep. 20918 (1987 ).

See also: Loretto v. Teleprompter Manhattan CATV Corp., 458 U.S.
419, 102 S. Ct. 3164, 73 L. Ed. 2d 868, 8 Media L. Rep. (BNA) 1849
(1982).

See also: Smith v. City of Tallahassee, 191 So. 2d 446 (Fla. 1st DCA
1966).

Case Note:

The City had also sought a new trial on both counts. The appellate court
concluded that there was no basis to grant a new trial.

Vested Rights/Preemption—Under
county zoning ordinance, licensed
medical cannabis dispensary is
denied a building permit

Dispensary sues claiming entitlement to the
permit and arguing state cannabis regulations
preempt the county ordinance

Citation: Hippocratic Growth, LLC v. Board of County Commission-
ers of Queen Anne's County, 2018 WL 3343588 (Md. Ct. Spec. App.
2018)

MARYLAND (07/09/18)—This case addressed the issue of whether
a medical cannabis dispensary possessed a protected property inter-

6 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin August 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 16

est—either a vested right in the zoning use or a legitimate claim of
entitlement to a permit or approval—in a medical cannabis dispensary
interest. The case also addressed the issue of whether a county
ordinance requiring conditional use approval and establishing set-back
requirements for cannabis growing operations was preempted by state
legislation—specifically the regulatory framework established by the
Maryland Medical Cannabis program.

The Background/Facts: In anticipation of receiving a license to
dispense medical cannabis, Hippocratic Growth, LLC (“HG*) entered
into agreements with 101 Drummer Drive, LLC (“Drummer”) and 111
Scherr Lane, LLC to open a dispensary at an address (the “Property”)
in Queen Anne’s County (the “County”). In December 2016, HG was
awarded preliminary licensing approval. In February 2017, Drummer
submitted a building permit application for the Property.

Meanwhile, in January 2017, the County Commissioners enacted
Resolution 17-06, which put a temporary moratorium on the approval
of medical cannabis zoning applications. In March 2017, Resolution
17-06 was rescinded. In April 2017, Ordinance 17-06 was adopted.
Among other things, Ordinance 17-06 created regulations that required
conditional use approval and established set-back requirements for
cannabis growing operations.

In May 2017, the County Planning Department notified Drummer
that its building permit had been denied pursuant to Ordinance 17-06.

HG and Drummer (collectively, the ”Applicants®) brought a legal
action for: (1) mandamus; (2) declaratory judgment; (3) preliminary
injunctive relief; (4) permanent injunctive relief; and (5) violations of
the Maryland Constitution and Maryland Declaration of Rights. More
specifically, the Applicants argued that they had a protected constitu-
tional interest in completing “Stage 2” of Maryland’s Cannabis Com-
mission’s licensing approval process. According to the Applicants,
upon the Commission’s announcement of HG’s preliminary approval
in December, 2016, the Applicants “possessed a vested property inter-
est in a medical cannabis dispensary license that is cognizable under
Article 24 of the Maryland Declaration of Rights.” They maintained
that right was violated when the County Commissioners passed Reso-
lution 17-06, which had the effect of prohibiting them from completing
Stage 2 of the licensing process, and Ordinance 17-06, which imposed
zoning regulations “so restrictive that identifying a qualifying property
in the unincorporated portion of Queen Anne’s County became virtu-
ally impossible.“ The Applicants further argued that Ordinance 17-06
was preempted by the Maryland Medical Cannabis Program’s regula-
tory framework.

The County, on the other hand, maintained that the Applicants did
not have a vested property interest because they did not obtain a build-

© 2018 Thomson Reuters i



August 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 16 Zoning Bulletin

ing permit, and did not make a substantial beginning to reconstruct the
building at the Property. The County also argued that the state
Legislature did not intend to preempt local municipalities from exert-
ing zoning control over the medical cannabis industry.

The circuit court found that the Applicants “failed to meet the
requirements under Maryland law to assert a claim that they acquired a
property interest to develop [the Property] and, as a result, [could] not
meet the burden required to prove either a substantive due process or
procedural due process claim.” The circuit court also concluded that
the Ordinance was not preempted “by any other legislation.

The Applicants appealed.
DECISION: Judgment of circuit court affirmed.

The Court of Special Appeals of Maryland first held that the Ap-
plicants did not acquire a vested property interest or “have a legitimate
claim of entitlement to any other cognizable constitutional interest.

In so holding, the court explained that there were “two avenues* by
which the Applicants could acquire a constitutionally protected prop-
erty interest: (1) by obtaining a “vested right” in the existing zoning
use; or (2) by possessing a “legitimate claim of entitlement” to a permit
or approval. The court addressed each of those avenues.

The court explained that, under Maryland law, in order to obtain a
vested right in the existing zoning use that will be constitutionally
protected against a later change in the zoning ordinance prohibiting or
limiting that use, the owner must: “(1) obtain a permit or occupancy
certificate where required by the applicable ordinance and (2) must
proceed under that permit or certificate to exercise it on the land
involved so that the neighborhood may be advised that the land is be-
ing devoted to that use.” Here, the court found that the Applicants
“never acquired a vested property interest” since they did not obtain a
permit at the Property, and did not make a substantial beginning to
reconstruct the building at the property such that “the neighborhood
[was] advised that the land [was] being devoted to that use.”

In finding that the Applicants also did not have a legitimate claim of
interest to a permit or approval, the court explained that whether the
property interest at issue here was a permit license or a medical can-
nabis dispensary license, the test would be the same: a constitution-
ally cognizable interest requires a ‘legitimate claim of entitlement’ and
turns on whether the ‘local agency lacks all discretion to deny issuance
of the permit or to withhold its approval.‘ ” Here, the court found that
the County did not lack discretion to deny the permit or withhold its
approval. In fact, the court found that ’the [Cannabis] Commission’s
regulations indicate that local zoning authorities wield independent
authority in the licensing process.” Specifically, Commission regula-
tions authorize the Commission to issue a dispensary license on a de-

8 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin August 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 16

termination that the proposed premises “comply with all zoning and
planning requirements (COMAR 10.62.25.07(B)(3)(b)), and require
“[t}he premises and operation of a licensee shall conform to all local
zoning and planning requirements” (COMAR 10.62.27.02(D)).
Furthermore, the court noted that Maryland courts had “made clear that
the issuance of a building permit is not a ministerial act unless applica-
tions ‘fully comply with applicable ordinances and regulations[.]*
Moreover, the court found that a lack of certainty as to the County’s
medical cannabis zoning requirements was “evidence that the zoning
regulations [were] discretionary, not objective in nature.*

Addressing the Applicants preemption argument, the Court of
Special Appeals of Maryland also held that the Maryland Medical Can-
nabis Program's regulatory framework did not preempt “the entire field
of zoning law.” And, the court held that Ordinance 17-06 did not pro-
hibit an activity that was intended to be permitted by state law “where
the plain language of the regulations requires dispensaries, growers,
and processors to ’conform to all local zoning and planning
requirements.” *“ As such, the court held that there was no preemption
of Ordinance 17-06, and therefore it applied to the Property.

See also: Siena Corporation v. Mayor and City Council of Rockville
Maryland, 873 F.3d 456 (4th Cir. 2017 ).

Vested Rights/Mootness—After
Village denies special-use permit
for strip club, state adopts
ordinance essentially foreclosing
any locations for strip clubs in
village

District court concludes applicant’s appeal for
injunctive relief is thus moot, but applicant claims
a vested right to regulations at the time of the
permit application

Citation: Chicago Joe's Tea Room, LLC v. Village of Broadview, 894
F3d 807 (7th Cir. 2018)

The Seventh Circuit has jurisdiction over Illinois, Indiana, and
Wisconsin.

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 9




August 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 16 Zoning Bulletin

SEVENTH CIRCUIT (ILLINOIS) (06/29/18)—This case addressed
the issue of whether an applicant for a special-use permit had a vested
right to use the property for operation of a strip club. The case also ad-
dressed the issue of whether the applicant’s claim seeking injunctive
relief was mooted by Illinois’ adult entertainment facility statute.

The Background/Facts: Chicago Joes’ Tea Room, LLC was formed
to operate a strip club. In 2006, Pervis Conway (“Conway*‘) contracted
to sell land (the “Property*) in the Village of Broadview (the “Village*)
to David Donahue (“Donahue*). Donahue assigned the land contract to
Chicago Joe’s Tea Room, LLC. The manager of Chicago Joe’s Tea
Room, LLC then applied to the Village for a special-use permit needed
to operate a strip club on the Property. The Village denied the
application.

Subsequently, Chicago Joe’s Tea Room, LLC and Conway (herein-
after, collectively, “Chicago Joe’s*) sued the Village. They alleged that
the Village violated Chicago Joe’s First Amendment rights. Among
other things, Chicago Joe’s asked the district court to declare that
certain Village zoning ordinances were unconstitutional, in violation of
the First Amendment. Chicago Joe’s also asked the court to issue an
injunction blocking the Village from enforcing its zoning ordinance.

The Village’s zoning ordinance required a special-use permit for
“adult businesses,* which included strip clubs. The Village’s zoning
ordinance also used a separate adult-use zoning ordinance to regulate
the placement of strip clubs.

Finding there were no material issues of fact in dispute, and deciding
the matter based on the law alone, the district court judge granted sum-
mary judgment in favor of the Village on Chicago Joe’s declaratory
judgment and injunction claims. With regard to the injunction claim,
the district court concluded that those claims were moot in light of an
Illinois statute prohibiting the location of “adult entertainment facili-
ties* within one mile of certain other uses.

Chicago Joe’s appealed that order, limiting its arguments on appeal
to the denials of injunctive relief.

DECISION: Judgment of United States District Court for the
Northern District of Illinois affirmed.

The United States Court of Appeals, Seventh Circuit, agreed with
the district court that Chicago Joe’s injunction claims were moot.

The court explained that, a few months after the Village had denied
Chicago Joe’s permit application, the Illinois legislature had amended
its “adult entertainment facility” statute to prohibit “locat{ing],
constructfing], or operat{ing] a new adult entertainment facility within
one mile of the property boundaries of any school, day care center,
cemetery, public park, forest preserve, public housing, or place of

10 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin August 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 16

religious worship located in that area of Cook County outside of the
City of Chicago.” (See 65 Ill. Comp. Stat. Ann. 5/11-5-1.5.) The court
noted that Illinois statutes preempt conflicting ordinances by non-
home-rule municipalities—such as the Village here. The Property at is-
sue here—on which Chicago Joe’s sought a special-use permit to oper-
ate a strip club—was within one mile of a cemetery, two schools, three
parks, and a church. Thus, by its terms, the state statute foreclosed
Chicago Joe’s attempt to operate a strip club at the Property, or, in fact
to operate a strip club anywhere in the Village. Accordingly, the
Seventh Circuit concluded that Chicago Joe’s claims for injunctive
relief were moot.

Chicago Joe’s argued that it had a vested right to use the Property in
accordance with the law that existed at the time that it submitted the
special-use permit application (i.e., when the prior version of the state
statute, which was less restrictive, required only a 1,000-foot setback).
The Seventh Circuit disagreed. The court explained that Illinois courts
have “made clear that a property owner who claims a vested right must
proceed according to the law as it existed at an earlier time, by ‘at-
tempting to comply with an ordinance as written.” ” Here, the court
concluded that Chicago Joe’s did not have a vested right because its
proposal to use the property would have violated at least one Village
ordinance. The court found that Chicago Joe’s application proposed a
use with sales of alcoholic beverages, which would have violated a Vil-
lage ordinance that expressly forbade adult businesses to “sell, distrib-
ute, or permit beer or alcoholic beverages on the premises.”

In summary, the Seventh Circuit agreed with the district court that
Chicago Joe’s claims for injunctive relief were moot because Illinois’
“adult entertainment facility” statute now prohibited Chicago Joe’s
from opening anywhere in the Village. The court concluded that the
current state statute would effectively prohibit a court from granting ef-
fective relief to Chicago Joe’s even if Chicago Joe’s prevailed on its
federal constitutional challenges to the Village ordinances.

Zoning News from Around the
Nation

ILLINOIS

The DeWitt County Zoning Board of Appeals is reportedly looking
to amend its wind farm ordinance governing such facilities. Among the
changes being considered are the following: adding a requirement that
wind farms have aircraft detection lighting systems; lowering the ac-
ceptable noise level limit from a turbine from 50 dBA to 37 dBA; set-

© 2018 Thomson Reuters 11



August 25, 2018 | Volume 12 | Issue 16 Zoning Bulletin

ting a standard for shadow flicker caused when rotating blades cast
moving shadows on the ground; mandating an analysis verifying
turbines will not interfere with public communication; and establishing
setbacks from property lines instead of from existing homes for turbine
locations.

Source: Herald & Review; https://herald-review.com

MASSACHUSETTS

State Attorney General Maura Healey is allowing municipalities to
extend temporary bans on recreational marijuana for another year—
through June 2019 “without having to ask their residents about the
decision.“ This extension is reportedly intended to “give communities
more time to create [related] zoning rules.”

Source: WBUR, www.wburorg

TEXAS

A Travis County Judge has ruled that the Austin City Council must
put a petition ordinance related to CodeNEXT, the city’s rewrite of the
land development code, on the November ballot. If the ordinance were
to pass, it would require voter approval to implement CodeNEXT—if
CodeNEXT is ultimately approved by the city council. The City of
Austin reportedly has acknowledged the court’s order, but questions
“whether zoning is an appropriate subject for election.”

Source: KVUE;, www.kvue.com

12 © 2018 Thomson Reuters



	09-06-18 Agenda.pdf (p.1-3)
	08-07-18 Draft Minutes.pdf (p.4-20)
	Item I.A.1 Var 9-18 Luna.pdf (p.21-38)
	Item I.B.1. CUP 4-86 Transfer Giammalva.pdf (p.39-58)
	Item I.B.2. FP 11-18 Great Basin Estates Ph 3.pdf (p.59-97)
	Zoning Bulletin - July 25,2018.pdf (p.98-109)
	Zoning Bulletin - August 10, 2018.pdf (p.110-121)
	Zoning Bulletin - August 25, 2018.pdf (p.122-133)

